NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF
THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (“GHURA”) will hold
its Regular Meeting of the GHURA Board of Commissioners on Friday,
May 14, 2021 at 12:00 PM. This Board Meeting is open to the public
via teleconference.

If you would like to join the meeting, please contact Audrey Aguon at
475-1378 by Wednesday, May 12, 2021 for more information.

For special accommodations, contact Katherine Taitano at 475-1322 or TTY
472-3701.
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GOVERNMENT OF GUAM BUSINESS PRIVILEGE TAX
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021E AND 2021F

The Government of Guam (Government) through the Guam Economic
Development Authority ("GEDA") is mandated by P.L. 30-191 to offer a portion of
the Government of Guam Business Privilege Tax Refunding Bonds Series, 2021E,
$26,370,000* and 2021F, $249,670,000* for sale to local retail investors. The
Government and GEDA are committed to making bonds available to individuals,
who are residents of Guam, on a first priority basis through an early order period
known as the Retail Order Period ("ROP”). The ROP is scheduled to take place on
or around May 14, 2021. Bonds cannot be purchased directly from the
Government of Guam or GEDA. Retail investors must have an account with the
one of the brokerage firms participating in the bond sale, listed below. Contact
the broker with whom you have an account to get more information to buy bonds
during the ROP.

Raymond James & Associates, Inc.
Tel: (671) 969-5000

Guam "retail" order is defined as an order placed for the account of a Guam
individual or investment advisor acting on behalf of a Guam individual, with a
maximum of $500,000 per account. Guam retail orders do not include orders for
bank portfolios, insurance companies, bond funds or municipalities, The
Government and GEDA reserve the right to audit any retail order and request
information verifying such orders. The Government and GEDA also reserve the
right to make changes to the financing structure and interest rates after orders
are placed, if it is in the best financial interest of the Government. The
Government and GEDA do not endorse any particular brokerage firm.

Additionally, the Government and GEDA do not guarantee that the firm will open
an account for an investor. Any questions related to this notice should be directed
to GEDA at 647-4332. This notice does not constitute an offer to sell or the
solicitation of an offer to buy any Bonds. Any such offer or solicitation will be
made pursuant to a iminary official and official which
prospective investors should review in its entirety before making any investment
decision. The Government and GEDA reserve the right to change or modify their
plans as they deem appropriate.

Please note all orders should be directed to the firm listed above.

*Ppreliminary, subject to change.
This ad wos paid for by bond funds.

Js/ MELANIE MENDIOLA,
GUAM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY CEQ/ADMINISTRATOR

H : OF THE GUAM HOUSING
e j AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (“GHURA”) will
hold its Regular Meeting of the GHURA Board of Commissioners on
Friday, May 14, 2021 at 12:00 PM. This Board Meeting is open to
the public via teleconference.

{%\ NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

If you would like to join the meeting, please contact Audrey Aguon
at 475-1378 by Wednesday, May 12, 2021 for more information.

For special accommodations, contact Katherine Taitano
at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.
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» SYSTEM INC.

GENERAL ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR

is looking to hire for the following positions:

e HEAVY EQUIPMENT OPERATOR
* CRANE OPERATOR
e LINEMAN
e GENERAL HELPER
¢ SENIOR ESTIMATOR (ELECTRICAL)

Interested applicants may pick-up an
application at our office located at
176 Pedro Benavente St., Barrigada.

To schedule interview appointment,
applicant can call our office at (671) 633-2009.
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Personal Items below $500 in total value
GOOD: 3 Lines, 7 Consecutive Days............524.50
BETTER: 3 Lines, 10 Consecutive Days........533.00
BEST: 3 Lines, 14 Consecutive Days........... $40.00

*Price must be included in the ad to qualify.
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Personal Items below $2,500 in total value
GOOD: 3 Lines, 7 Consecutive Days........... ..$33.00
BETTER: 3 Lines, 10 Consecutive Days....... $43.50
BEST: 3 Lines, 14 Consecutive Days.............554.00

*Price must be included in the ad to qualify.

Personal Items below $2,501 in total value
GOOD: 3 Lines, 7 Consecutive Days............. $59.00
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BEST: 3 Lines, 14 Consecutive Days. ...5$80.00

*Price must be included in the ad to qualify.
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Call 472-1PDN for more information

Guam Board of Examiners
for Dentistry

Virtual Board Meeting
Wednesday, May 19, 2021 - 3:00 PM (ChST)

Please join the meeting from your computer,
tablet or smartphone.

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/518891821

For more information, please contact the Board office at
735-7404/10 thru 12. Persons needing telecommunication
devise for the Hearing/Speech Impaired (TDD)
may contact 475-8339.

/‘\’4 \..___,
GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY
Suite 200, GBN Public Service Building
688 Route 15, Mangilao, Guam 96913
Phone: (671) 300-6076/6852 Fax: (671) 300-6896

The Consolidated Commission on Utilities is hereby
accepting applications to fill the following position:

Staff Attorney
EOE 024-2021

HOW AND WHERE TO APPLY:

Applicants must submit an Employment Application -
Form A2 to the GWA Personnel Services Division - Human
Resources Office, #205 (2nd Floor) in the Gloria B. Nelson
Public Service Building, 688 Route 15, Mangilao, Guam
96913 between 8:00 am and 5:00 pm, Monday to Friday,
excluding holidays, on or before the closing date of the job
announcement and encouraged to submit electronically
at hrjobs@guamwaterworks.org.

If you are unable to submit your application electronically,
you can call 671.300.6852 to pre-arrange drop off of your
application at a specific time during normal business
hours, 8am-5pm, Monday through Friday at Fadian.

The job announcement is also available for review on the
GWA HR website on the Careers page, provided on the
link below. Job application is also available for download
on the same webpage.

http://guamwaterworks.org/Careers/

/s/ Miguel C. Bordallo, PE.

#=5%=,  NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING
{ : OF THE GUAM HOUSING

s AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (“GHURA”) will
hold its Regular Meeting of the GHURA Board of Commissioners on
Friday, May 14, 2021 at 12:00 PM. This Board Meeting is open to
the public via teleconference.

If you would like to join the meeting, please contact Audrey Aguon
at 475-1378 by Wednesday, May 12, 2021 for more information.

For special accommodations, contact Katherine Taitano
at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.
Sesteman Laibirihan Pupblekon Gudhan ;_\2
GUAM PUBLIC
LOURDES A LIBRARY SYSTEM

LEON GUERRERO
Governor Government of Guam

JOSHUA F. TENORIO
Lt. Governor

Guam Public Library System (GPLS)

Regular Board Meeting
of the Board of Directors

Wednesday, May 19, 2021 at 3:30 pm

Meeting will be held via Zoom.

—

N

MELVIN
WON PAT-BORJA
Acting Director

Please call June Aflague
at GPLS 475-4755/54 for ID and passcode.

General Manager

Powered by TECNAVIA
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ROLL CALL

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and
the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled
board meeting was called to order at 12:00 P.M., Friday, May 14, 2021 at the
GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Flores. He
indicated that 5 members of the Board of Commissioners were present,
representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled.

PRESENT: (VIA ZOOM VIDEO
CONFERENCE)

Sabino Flores, Chairman
Monica Guzman, Vice
Chairwoman

George Pereda, Commissioner
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner
Anisia Delia, Commissioner
Karl Corpus, Resident
Commissioner (attendance
only)

ABSENT:

LEGAL COUNSEL:
Anthony Perez, Esq.

MANAGEMENT & STAFF:

Ray Topasna, Executive

Director

Elizabeth Napoli, Deputy Director
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant
Lucele Leon Guerrero, Controller Il
Greta Balmeo, Buyer Supervisor

PUBLIC: (VIA ZOOM VIDEO
CONFERENCE)
Dan Fitzgerald (Deloitte & Touche, LLP)

BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS

1-Printing -Friday, May 07, 2021

2-Printing - Wednesday, May 12, 2021
ACKNOWLEDGED. The Chairman also indicated that the announcement was
posted on both dates in the Pacific Daily News.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES

[051/21] Chairman Flores made a motion to approve the meeting minutes
of April 8,2021. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Ishizaki.
With no objections by the other board members, the motion was passed.

Board Minutes of May 14, 2021

PAGE 1 of 7



IV. NEW BUSINESS
1. [052/21] Resolution No. FY2021-012
Resolution commending and congratulating the GHURA Apprenticeship
program graduates Class of 2021.

Director Topasna stated the following:

o Back in March 2012, GHURA focused on enhancing the skills of its
maintenance personnel.

s GHURA entered into an agreement with the US Dept. of Labor, Office of
Apprenticeship, and the Guam Community College to formally adopt the
apprenticeship standards for the maintenance repairer, Building
occupation.

+ In April 2012, GHURA successfully attained approval by the USDOL,
Office of Apprenticeship, for the second Apprenticeship standards. This
class was the Office manager/administrative services occupation.

e Today, GHURA has 9 employees who have completed the Journey
Worker Certificate in their respective apprentice occupational
category. The following are the 9 GHURA graduates:

1. William Aisak, Maintenance Repairer, Building

2. Jeanna Rosemarie A. Blas, Office Manager/Administrative
Services

3. Maritess Liban Bondal, Office Manager/Administrative Services

4. Joseph Jay Cruz, Office Manager/Administrative Services

5. Erica Ann C. Gumataotao, Office Manager/Administrative
Services

6. Maria Magdalena Mendiola, Office Manager/Administrative
Services

7. Michael Orot, Maintenance Repairer/Building

8. Remedios P. Taitague, Office Manager/ Administrative Services

9. Virginia M. Torres, Office Manager/ Administrative Services

o Be it resolved that the Board of Commissioners issues this resolution
commending and congratulating the graduating Class of 2021-
Cohort#3; and be it further resolved that the Chairman of the Board of
Commissioners shall certify, and the Executive Director attest the
adoption hereof Resolution No. FY2021-012, and that thereafter shall
be presented to each graduate, whereby a copy shall be placed in
his/her official personnel folder, and a copy provided to the Governor
of Guam.

Vice Chairwoman Guzman congratulated the GHURA graduates and inquired
about whether plans are being made for a future cohort. Director Topasna
stated that since 2012, 27 GHURA employees have completed the
apprenticeship program. He added that GHURA encourages employees to take
part in the program, so plans are being made for a fourth cohort.

Director Topasna also added that he and Deputy Director Napoli are blessed
to be surrounded by so much talent at GHURA. He stated thatin a press release,
he indicated that there were 160+ Certifications collectively, held by GHURA

Board Minutes of May 14, 2021 PAGE 2 of 7



employees. He expressed how proud he was of level of commitment that
GHURA employees have to their education in order to perform better in their
respective capacities.

Deputy Director Napoli added that HR will be compiling a list of GHURA staff
interested in participating in the next apprenticeship program. She stated that
staff participation in the program and in various trainings will help to improve
GHURA's succession planning.

Director Topasna indicated that a trainer with NanMckay will be arriving on
island to conduct further training sessions to 55 GHURA employees. He also
added that 26% of GHURA's workforce are apprentices of GCC. 34% of the staff
have some form of Nationally recognized certification and exactly 163 Housing
Industry Certificates have been issued over the years. Moving forward, he
stated that GHURA will continue to push for more trainings for its employees.

Vice Chairwoman Guzman congratulated everyone involved in the
apprenticeship program. There were no further discussions or comments.

[053/21] Commissioner Delia made a motion to approve the Resolution
commending and congratulating the GHURA Apprenticeship Program
Graduates Class of 2021, also known as Cohort#3. Commissioner Pereda
seconded the motion. With no objections by the other board members,
Chairman Flores approved the Resolution  FY2021-012.

2. [054/21] Contract Cancellation / Intent of Award
GHURA-10-02-2020-AMPs 1, 3, & 4; Renovation of (8) Public Housing
Units

Director Topasna stated the following:

e Ataregular Board meeting on December 2020, the board approved the
award of a contract to Excellent Construction, Inc. for Bid Item#1 and
to O.H. Construction for Bid Item#2.

e Due to the unresponsiveness of Excellent Construction, GHURA is
requesting to cancel the Bid award for Bid Item #1 and award it to the
next lowest bidder.

e The contract indicated the cancellation primarily because of time
constraints. Specifically, in December 2020, GHURA issued an Intent of
Award, HUD had approved the units that were to be placed under
Modernization with the date of completion by June 2021. He stated that
the contract duration for the completion of the two units in the scope
was 60 days.

¢ Unfortunately, a response was not submitted by the contractor to
GHURA.

e GHURA was not able to meet the HUD determined completion date and
must now request for an extension.

e Based on the staff's review and determination, GHURA is requesting that
the board approve the request to cancel the Bid Award for Bid Item#1

Board Minutes of May 14, 2021 PAGE 3 of 7



to Excellent Construction, Inc. for $62,790 and award the contract to the
next lowest bidder.

e The next lowest responsive and responsible bidder is 0.H. Construction
at $74,900.

Attorney Perez inquired about whether Excellent Construction, Inc. submitted
a bid bond. If so, and the award is to be made to them and they don’t go
forward, there could be a chance GHURA could call on the bid bond. He added
that he would coordinate with Greta Balmeo to find out more. Chairman Flores
added that they may want to confirm whether the contract was put out as a
Small Purchase Construction Contract, which would increase the threshold,
which means there would not be a requirement for bid bonding. He also
recommended that they also look into a Performance Bond.

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired whether Excellent Construction, Inc. had ever
failed to respond to a bid award. Miss Balmeo stated that Excellent
Construction, Inc. was a new contractor with GHURA and their first bid
proposal submission. However, due to Excellent Construction, Inc.’s
unresponsiveness, GHURA does not foresee working with them in the future.
She also stated that the Excellent Construction, Inc. did submit a bid bond.
Attorney Perez indicated that they should look into calling the bid bond in.
Chairman Flores stated that the bid bond amount may be used to cover the
difference. Miss Balmeo then added that O.H. Construction, the next lowest
bidder, did come in below the government estimate.

Chairman Flores asked Miss Balmeo to clarify the request before the board.
Miss Balmeo confirmed that the request brought before the board was to
cancel the Intent to Award.

Chairman Flores stated that the previous action by the board was to approve
the issuance of the Intent to Award. Director Topasna confirmed this. Director
Topasna also added that the record will show that there was due diligence on
GHURA’s part to reach out the contractor. Unfortunately, they were not
responsive. Chairman Flores stated that based on the documents presented
before the board, that there were no further communications from the
company. There were no further discussions.

[055/21] Chairman Flores made a motion to cancel the previously issued
Intent of Award for GHURA-10-02-2020 for AMPS 1, 3, & 4; Renovation of
(8) Public Housing Units for Bid Item#1 in the amount of $62,790
previously issued to Excellent Construction and approve and issue the
Intent of Award to the second lowest bidder, submitted by O.H.
Construction in the amount of $74,900. Commissioner Ishizaki seconded
the motion. There were no objections by the other board member. The
motion was approved.
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V. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS
1. [056/21] A/E Manager’s Update

Director Topasna indicated the following:

SINJANA ART CENTER- Scheduled for completion 10/2021 and is 45%
complete. Mega United is the contractor. Project is $770,000. Due to
increase in price of materials, contractor requested a change order. A/E
team currently reviewing the request. Director Topasna has reached out to
DPW’s Director to assist with the A/E’s review.

Lighthouse Recovery Center for Women- Construction Barrier
Fabrication has commenced. Installation to begin this week at the
construction site. Building permit has been approved. Construction to
commence shortly.

Umatac Baseball Field- Completion status is 75%. Lighting installation
completed in April 2021. Contractor is Infratech. Project is $474,000.
Construction continues.

Sinajana Fire Station- Received 5 proposals to RFP. Proposals under
evaluation with A/E and GFD.

Inarajan Basketball Court- Received construction permit and
Performance Bond. Working with the Governor’s office to schedule
Groundbreaking event. J] Global is the contractor. A Change Order may be
submitted by the contractor due to the increase in prices for materials and
labor.

MTM Basketball Court- Bid Docs are being finalized. Advertise in mid-
May.

Solar Project- Guma Trankilidat- A/E is currently reviewing proposals.
53 units to be impacted by this phase of the solar project.

Renovations and CIPs- awarded bids-8 units at GT and 11 units at various
AMP sits. Public Bids under preparation for addition 10 units and door
replacements at GHURA 100 and Lead Based Paint Abatement GHURA -wide.
Modifications to 27+ units are ongoing. A/E is currently processing 5 properties
for Affordable Homes Construction Projects. Upcoming AMP projects include
the Maintenance/ Storage facility and the Environmental Controls at AMP4.

Chairwoman Guzman was pleased with the updates on all of GHURA's
projects, but was especially pleased with the Solar Project at Guma
Trankilidat. She thanked the Director and the GHURA staff for their hard work
and dedication. Director Topasna stated that the goal is to provide renewable
energy technology to all of GHURA’s Public Housing units. Chairman Flores
inquired on the structure of the bid. He asked if the bid was a Power Purchase

Agreement or if GHURA would own the systems. Director Topasna indicated
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that based on the RFP, it may be a 20-year Power Purchase Agreement.
Chairman Flores asked whether the winning company would Purchase,
Install, Maintain and Ensure the system runs. Director Topasna confirmed
this. Chairman Flores stated that it is a very ambitious project.

There were no further discussions.

3. [057/21] FY2020 Audit Report

Mr. Dan Fitzgerald of Deloitte & Touche, LLP, stated the following:
¢ Federal Government View: Perspective

¢
¢
¢

GHURA processes a large number of transactions.

There will be errors because of the large number of transactions.
Federal Government has a Risk Reward thought process- If there is a
1% error, that isn’t cause for concern. If there is a 2% error, this may be
some cause for concern. If there is 4-5% errors, this would be
considered a Material Issue that needs to be resolved.

Audit findings need to be put into perspective. An organization the size
of GHURA is expected to have audit findings. The Federal Government
recognizes this.

The questions to focus on when reading GHURA’s audit should be,
“What is the nature of these findings, are these big issues, are the minor
issues? Are these required to be reported?”

Mr. Fitzgerald stated that when he reads GHURA’s findings, he sees that
they do not represent material findings.

He further stated that GHURA's findings are not what is known as
material weaknesses, but rather Reportable Matters which fall within
the 2% threshold. Which means, they must be reported. Are they big
issues? No.

He added that although GHURA’s Audit Report does not reveal Material
findings, it still reveals findings. The Federal Government does not view
them as findings. However, they can be viewed as reminders to monitor
those findings.

Mr. Fitzgerald stated that if GHURA had the same results for its audit
next year, GHURA would be classified a Low Risk Entity because there
are no Material [ssues.

The Federal Government wants a balance between Risk and Reward.
And GHURA must continue to achieve this balance.

Mr. Fitzgerald stated that GHURA'’s Audit Report is very good.

Key take-away: If GHURA duplicates this Audit Report, next year, it will
be classified as LOW RISK, which means GHURA has come a long way.
He thanked GHURA Management, Staff, and Board members for doing
what they committed to doing as an Organization.

Director Topasna stated that GHURA’s FY20 Audit report was a clean audit.
GHURA received unmodified opinions on both Financial statements and
Compliance and GHURA was also able to meet the local deadline.
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Vi. GENERAL DISCUSSION /| ANNOUNCEMENTS
1. [058/21] Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting: Friday, June 11th @
12:00 p.m.

There were no objections to the next scheduled board meeting date and time.

Vice Chairwoman Guzman requested that the Director and Deputy Director
provide a summary of what GHURA may expect to receive from additional
COVID Funding. Director Topasna stated that GHURA is encountering some
challenges due to restrictions. He added that as part of the American Rescue Plan
Act, GHURA is receiving an additional 87 Section 8 Emergency Housing
Vouchers. More funding is coming our way.

He informed the board that GHURA is providing technical assistance to DOA for
The Emergency Rental Assistance Program to ensure a smooth process.

Vil. ADJOURNMENT
[059 /21] With no further discussions, Vice Chairwoman Guzman moved to
adjourn. Chairman Flores seconded the motion. There were no objections.
Motion passed at 1:08PM.

SEAL

SS9l

RAY S//TOPASNA
Board Secretary / Executive Director
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION NO. FY2021-012

Moved by: ANISIA S. DELIA Seconded by: GEORGE F. PEREDA

RESOLUTION COMMENDING AND CONGRATULATING THE GHURA
APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM GRADUATES CLASS OF 2021 (COHORT #3)

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

the Board of Commissioners and the Executive Management acknowledges
the importance of a highly-skilled workforce, and the necessity for employee
training and development; and

the Board of Commissioners are committed to recognizing and commending
the achievements of the Authority’s employees; and

in March 2012, focusing on enhancing the skills of the GHURA maintenance
personnel, Acting Executive Director Ray S. Topasna entered into an
agreement with officials of the U.S. Department of Labor - Office of
Apprenticeship and the Guam Community College, to formally adopt the
apprenticeship standards for the Maintenance Repairer, Building occupation;
and

a month later in April 2012, Acting Executive Director Topasna successfully
attained approval from the U.S. Department of Labor - Office of
Apprenticeship, the second apprenticeship standards for the Office
Manager/Administrative Services occupation; and

with Cohort #3 having completed all the academic requirements and on-the-
job training hours, the following graduates are awarded the distinction of
carning the Journey Worker Certificate in their respective apprenticeship
occupational category:

William M. Aisek, Maintenance Worker
Journey Worker Certificate
Maintenance Repairer, Building

Jeanna Rosemarie A. Blas, Housing Specialist
Journey Worker Certificate
Office Manager/Administrative Services

Maritess Liban Bondal, Interviewer Clerk
Journey Worker Certificate
Office Manager/Administrative Services

Joseph Jay Cruz, Data Control Clerk II
Journey Worker Certificate
Office Manager/Administrative Services



Erica Ann C. Gumataotao, Interviewer Clerk
Journey Worker Certificate
Office Manager/Administrative Services

Maria Magdalena Mendiola, Administrative Assistant
Journey Worker Certificate
Office Manager/Administrative Services

Michael M. Orot, Maintenance Worker
Journey Worker Certificate
Maintenance Repairer, Building

Remedios P. Taitague, Interviewer Clerk
Journey Worker Certificate
Office Manager/Administrative Services

Virginia M. Torres, Housing Specialist
Journey Worker Certificate
Office Manager/Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners are proud to recognize these employees’
diligence, commitment and determination in successfully completing the
GHURA Apprenticeship Program; and therefor be it

RESOLVED, the Board of Commissioners issues this resolution commending and
congratulating the graduating Class of 2021 - Cohort #3; and be it further

RESOLVED, the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners shall certify, and the Executive
Director attest the adoption hereof Resolution No. FY2021-012, and that
thereafter shall be presented to each graduate, whereby a copy shall be placed
in his/her official personnel folder, and a copy provided to the Governor of
Guam.

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM - MAY 14, 2021.
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES:

AYES: Sabino Flores, Monica Guzman, George Pereda, Frank Ishizaki, Anisia Delia
NAYS: NONE
ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAINED: NONE

[ hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true,
and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by
the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Board of Commissioners on May 14, 2021.

(SEAL) / L Oty )Z/\

RAY S. TOPASNA
Secretary / Executive Director




GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
ATURIDAT GINIMA YAN RINUEBAN SIUDAT

MEMORANDUM:

TO: Board of Commissioners \/

FROM: Ray S. Topasna /Z/U/A/\ '
Executive Director \ l

DATE: May 10, 2021

SUBJECT: Contract Cancellation Due to Non-Responsiveness / Intent of Award
Project: GHURA-10-02-2020 Renovation of 8 Public Housing
Units Contractor: Excellent Construction, Inc.

At the Regular Board Meeting of December 18, 2020 the above subject project was
approved for award. Intend of Award was issued to Excellent Construction, Inc. for Bid
Item No.1 and to O.H. Construction for Bid Item No. 2. Due to the un-responsiveness
of Excellent Construction we request to cancel the bid award for Bid Item No. 1 and
award it to the next lowest bidder, O.H. Construction.

The A/E Division has reached out numerous times via phone and email to Excellent
Construction for the submission of required documents with no response. On March 30,
2021 a Notice of Contract Termination was issued to Excellent Construction for non-
responsiveness. A request to acknowledge the receipt of the Notice still has not been
received. A chronology of events to justify the determination of un-responsiveness is
attached.

Supporting Documents:
e BOC Memorandum
e Memo to Supply Manager Administrator with chronology of events
e Notice of Contract Termination

The Intent of Award was issued since December 22, 2020, over 4 months ago. HUD
approved the unit to be placed under Unit Modernization with the date of completion of
June 30, 2021. The contract duration for the completion of the two units in the Scope
of Work is 60 days. Due to the un-responsiveness of the contractor we will not be able
to meet the HUD determined completion date and will have to request HUD for an
extension.

Excellent Construction bid proposal for Bid Item No. 1 is $62,790, the next lowest
bidder is O.H. Construction at $74,900. Based on our staff's review and determination,
we are requesting that the Board approve the request to cancel the bid award for Bid
Item No. 1 to Excellent Construction and award the contract to the next lowest
responsible/responsive bidder, O.H. Construction.

At the Regular Board Meeting of May 14, 2021, a motion was made by Chairman Flores and seconded by
Commissioner Ishizaki to cancel the previously issued Intent of Award for GHURA-10-02-2020 AMPs 1,3 & 4
involving the Renovation of 8 Public Housing units for Bid item No. 1 in the amount of $62,790 to Excellent
Construction and to approve the Intent of Award to the next lowest bidder submitted by O.H. Construction in
the amount of $74,900. Without any further discussion and objection, the motion was approved.




Alice James
==

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Attachments:

Hafa Adai Mr. Fu

Alice James

Wednesday, March 31, 2021 4:05 PM

Dun Yuan Fun (fudunyuan@gmail.com)

Greta Balmeo; Sonny Perez; 'jbarrot671@gmail.com’

Notice of Contract Termination for IFB# GHURA-10-02-2020; AMPs 1, 3 & 4 Renovation
of 8 Public Housing Units.

GHURA-10-02-2020-AMPs 134; Notice of Contract Termination.pdf

Attach is a letter of Notice of Contract Termination for IFB# GHURA-10-02-2020; AMPs
1, 3 & 4 Renovation of 8 Public Housing Units.

Please acknowledge the attach Notice of Contract Termination letter by signing, dating
and returning a copy to Ms. Great Balmeo via email to D . Deadline for
submission is 12:00pm Friday, April 2, 2021.

Sincerely,

Alice A. James

Wage Compliance Officer

Architect and Engineering Division

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
117 Bien Venida Avenue

Sinajana, Guam 96910

(671) 475-1403 Fax (671) 300-7565
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Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governor of Guam

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt. Governor of Guam

Sabino P. Flores
Chairman

Monica O. Guzman
Vice Chairwoman

Anisia S. Delia
Commissioner

Frank T. Ishizaki
Commissioner

George F. Pereda

Commissioner

Joseph M. Leon Guerrero

Resident Commissioner

Ray S. Topasna
Executive Director

Elizabeth F. Napoli
Deputy Director

GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671) 472-3701

Website: www.ghura.org EQUAL HOUSING

March 30, 2021

Dun Yuan Fu

President

Excellent Construction

P.O. Box 202 979 Army Drive
Barrigada, Guam 96913

Notice of Contract Termination
IFB#GHURA-10-02-2020
AMPs 1, 3 & 4 Renovation of 8 Public Housing Units

Subject:

Dear Mr. Dun Yuan Fu:

This letter is to inform you that GHURA will cancel the awarded contract for
IFB#GHURA-10-02-2020 due to Excellent Construction’s non-
responsiveness. Despite several attempts to reach out and finalize the
necessary paperwork for the award of the aforementioned project, to date,
GHURA has not yet received the Schedule of Values needed to proceed
with the project (see A/E Manager's Request to Cancel Contract letter,
attached hereto).

Excellent Construction has failed to respond in a timely manner, therefore
the award to Excellent Construction will be terminated and awarded to the
next lowest bidder.

Your time and effort in this project is appreciated. Please acknowledge this
Notice of Contract Termination letter by signing, dating, and returning a copy
to Ms. Greta Balmeo via email to gbalmeo@ghura.org. Should you have any
questions, please contact Ms. Balmeo via email or directly at 475-1356.

Si ely,

.

S. Topasna
xecutive Director

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers.

OPPORTUNITY ___
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Acknowledged By:

Signature

Print name:

Date:

Attachment: A/E Manager’'s Request to Cancel Contract with Excellent Construction
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Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Govemor of Guam

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lt. Governor of Guam

Sabino P. Flores
Chairman

Monica O. Guzman
Vice Chairwoman

Anisia S. Delia

Commissioner

Frank T. Ishizaki

Commissioner

George F. Pereda

Commissioner

Joseph M. Leon Guerrero
Resident Commissioner

Ray S. Topasna
Executive Director

Elizabeth F. Napoli
Deputy Director

GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910

Phone: (671) 477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7565 - TTY: (671) 472-3701 EQUAL FOUSING
Website: www.ghura.org QFFORTUHITY

March 12, 2021

To: Supply Management Administrator
From: A/E Manager
Subject: Request to Cancel Contract with Excellent Construction Due to Non-

Responsiveness: IFB #GHURA — 10-02-2020
AMPs 1, 3, 4; Renovation of Eight Public Housing Vacant Units

Dear Ms. Balmeo:

This is a request to cancel the subject bid award due to Excellent Construction’s (EC) non-
responsiveness. We have maintained sufficient communication with their representatives
since the issuance of their Notice of Award on December 24, 2020. Since then, we have not
received all the required documentation from them to contractually proceed with the subject
project. Please note the chronology of events:

Date Action

12/20/2020 Issued Notice of Award to EC

01/08/2021 EC submitted Worker's Compensation and Certification of Liability
Insurance; awaiting acknowledgement of Intent to Award, signed
contracts and 20% escrow of the contract amount

01/11/2021 Sent a follow-up email for requested documents on 01/08/2021

02/11/2021 Emailed EC requesting detailed breakdown per bid item as found in
their HUD-51000 (Schedule of Values) form

03/02/11 Emailed EC confirming receipt of the Schedule of Values and
informing EC to correct their submission. Notified submission
deadline on the same day.

03/02/11 Received response from EC to submit the Schedule of Values by COB
03/02/11

As of 03/02/11, we have not received any communication from Excellent Construction. It has
been 79 days since Excellent Construction was notified of the subject bid award. It is
recommended to cancel the subject award for non-responsiveness as the delays are
counting against the AMP managers occupancy ratings. We have afforded more than
sufficient time for EC to respond and submit all required documentation, taking into account
all of the COVID restrictions. Should you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 1-
671-475-1404 or email sperez@ghura.org.

Sincerely,

. J ,
Sonny @Peresz
A/E Manager

GHURA does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers.



Alice James

From: J Arriola <jbarrot671@gmail.com> on behalf of J Arriola

Sent: Tuesday, March 02, 2021 11:55 AM

To: Alice James; fudunyuan@gmail.com

Cc: Sonny Perez

Subject: Re: Schedule of Values Correction - IFB#GHURA-10-02-2020 AMPs 1, 3, 4; Renovation

of (8) Eight Public Housing Vacant Units.

Alice,

I've just seen this email. | am at FHP Clinic and a battery of test are being conducted. | will try to get the SOV to you as
requested.

Joseph B. Arriola

From: Alice James <alicej@ghura.org>

Sent: Tuesday, March 2, 2021 7:53:34 AM

To: J Arriola <jbarrot671@gmail.com>; fudunyuan@gmail.com <fudunyuan@gmail.com>

Cc: Sonny Perez <sperez@ghura.org>

Subject: FW: Schedule of Values Correction - IFB#GHURA-10-02-2020 AMPs 1, 3, 4; Renovation of (8) Eight Public
Housing Vacant Units.

Hafa Adai Joe,

This is to confirm receipt of Schedule of Values. However, after review correction needs
to be made. Please break down per Bid item and unit.

Please refer to attach sample. Deadline for submission is close of business today.

Regards,

Alice A. James

Wage Compliance Officer

Architect and Engineering Division

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
117 Bien Venida Avenue

Sinajana, Guam 96910

(671) 475-1403 Fax (671) 300-7565



From: Alice James <alicej@ghura.org>

Sent: Thursday, February 11, 2021 1:40 PM

To: 'J Arriola' <jbarrot671@gmail.com>

Subject: Schedule of Values Correction - IFBEGHURA-10-02-2020 AMPs 1, 3, 4; Renovation of (8) Eight Public Housing
Vacant Units.

Hafa Adai Joe,

Per our discussion for IFB#GHURA-10-02-2020 AMPs 1, 3, 4; Renovation of (8) Eight
Public Housing Vacant Units. When submitting HUD-51000 (Schedule of Values) with
more than one Bid Item. GHURA requires the contractor to submit a breakdown per Bid
Item, unit with the description of the item.

Please see attach sample for your reference and submit an revised original followed with
a transmittal sheet as soon as possible. Should you have any questions feel free to
contact me.

Sincerely,

Alice A. James

Wage Compliance Officer

Architect and Engineering Division

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
117 Bien Venida Avenue

Sinajana, Guam 96910

(671) 475-1403 Fax (671) 300-7565



Alice James

e S e A S SR S
From: Alice James
Sent: Monday, January 11, 2021 1:16 PM
To: 'fudunyuan@gmail.com’; 'Joseph B. Arriola’
Cc: 'Sonny Perez’; 'Greta Balmeo'
Subject: RE: IFB # GHURA-10-02-2020-AMPs 1,3, & 4

Hafa Adai Mr. Arriola,
This is to follow up on the pending submissions listed below.

Deadline for submission is close of business today 5:00pm at GHURA’s main office located in Sinajana. Please submit
pending documents immediately.

Sincerely,
Alice James
671-475-1403

From: Alice James <alicej@ghura.org>

Sent: Friday, January 08, 2021 3:53 PM

To: 'fudunyuan@gmail.com' <fudunyuan@gmail.com>; 'Joseph B. Arriola' <jbarrot671@gmail.com>
Cc: Sonny Perez <sperez@ghura.org>; 'Greta Balmeo' <gbalmeo@ghura.org>

Subject: RE: IFB # GHURA-10-02-2020-AMPs 1,3, & 4

Hafa Adai Mr. Arriola,

Confirming receipt of the following documents:
- Worker’s compensation
- Certificate of Liability Insurance

However, we are following up on the following submissions:
- Acknowledgement of the Intent of Award for the subject mentioned project,
- And the three (3) sets of the contract, and first and last page of the project drawings and specifications, and
- 20 percent cash escrow of the contract amount

Please submit the pending documents immediately. Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.
Sincerely,

Alice James

671-475-1403

From: Joseph B. Arriola <jbarrot671@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, January 08, 2021 1:11 PM

To: Alice James <alicej@ghura.org>

Subject: IFB # GHURA-10-02-2020-AMPs 1,3, & 4

Happy New Year Ms. Alice,

Please see attachments, if you have any questions or | am missing anything, please do not hesitate to let me know.



BTW, Excellent Construction will be Sub-Contracting Liang Construction for this project.
lremain.....ccceevennnnee
Sincerely,

Joseph B. Arriola

_GHURA Project (Excellent Construction).pd

Cell: 487-2337



Alice James

From: Alice James

Sent: Thursday, December 24, 2020 12:54 PM

To: ‘fudunyuan@gmail.com'’

Cc: Sonny Perez

Subject: Notice of Award - GHURA-10-02-2020-AMPs 1, 3 & 4; Renovation of 8 Public Housing
Vacant Units

Attachments: Contract Forms - Excellent.pdf; GHURA-10-02-2020-AMPs;Notice of Intend of Awa.pdf

Hafa Adai,

Attach is the Notice of Award for the GHURA-10-02-2020-AMPs 1, 3 & 4; Renovation of
8 Public Housing Vacant Units. Please acknowledge receipt of these documents by
signing, dating and returning the attached copy of this letter. Please contact Alice James
and stop by our office between 8:00am to 1:00pm to pick up your bid bond. You must
execute the Contract within 10 days upon receipt of letter.

Sincerely,

Alice A. James

Wage Compliance Officer

Architect and Engineering Division

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
117 Bien Venida Avenue

Sinajana, Guam 96910

(671) 475-1403 Fax (671) 300-7565



1
] Delcitte & Touche LLP
e OI e 361 S. Marine Corps Drlve
& Tamuning, GU 96913-3973

USA

Tel: (671) 646-3884
Fax: {671) 649-4932
www._deloitte.com

‘March 30, 2021

Mr. Ray Topasna

Executive Director

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
117 Bien Venida Avenue :
Sinajana, GU 96910

Dear Mr., Topasna:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Guam Housing and Urban
Renewal Authority (GHURA) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020 {on which we have issued
our report dated March 30, 2021), in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, we considered GHURA's
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of GHURA's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of GHURA’s internal control over financial reporting,

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, in connection with
our audit, we identified, and included in the attached Appendix |, deficiencies related to GHURA's
internal control over financial reporting and other matters as of September 30, 2020 that we wish to
bring to your attention.

We have also issued a separate report to the Board of Commissioners, also dated March 30, 2021, on
our consideration of GHURA’s compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). 1t also includes our consideration of GHURA’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters.

The definition of a deficiency is also set forth in Section Il of the attached Appendix |.

A description of the responsibility of management for establishing and maintaining internal control over
financial reporting and of the objectives of and inherent limitations of internal control over financial
reporting, is set forth in the attached Appendix Il and should be read in conjunction with this report.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, management,
the Office of Public Accountability of Guam and others within the organization and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.



Deloitte.

We will be pleased to discuss the attached comments with you and, if desired, to assist you in
implementing any of the suggestions.

We wish to thank the staff and management of GHURA for their cooperation and assistance during the
course of this engagement.

Very truly yours,

ANy



APPENDIX |

SECTION | - DEFICIENCIES

We identified the following deficiencies involving GHURA's internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2020 that we wish to bring to your attention:

{1} Long Outstanding Accounts

Comment: As of September 30, 2020, the following general ledger account balances represent long
outstanding amounts that may no longer be valid:

Account Amount

Prepayments — payroll clearing S 73,108

Prepayments — deferred credits ' 15,903

Accounts receivable - HUD 379,307
Accrued liabilities {161,090)
Accounts payable -~ (240,500}
Deferred revenue (365,760)
Net impact $ (299,032)

As the above amounts were not considered material to the financial statements, no audit adjustments
were proposed.

Recommendation: We recommend that management review the above items and consider corrective
action,

{2) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Comment: As of September 30, 2020, collectability of receivables in the amount of $472,000 were
considered doubtful yet an allowance for doubtful accounts was not considered. The under-allowance
resulted from the current provision methodology wherein only notes and tenant receivable accounts
over 90 days are provided with a full allowance. This provisioning methodology excludes tenant-fraud
receivables and housing assistance payment recoverable amounts, which have been substantially
outstanding for more than a year. As this amount was not considered material to the financial
statements, no audit adjustment was proposed.

Recommendation: We recommend that management revisit the provisioning methodology and consider
a periodic analysis of all past due accounts.

SECTICN 1l - OTHER MATTERS

Other matters related to our observations concerning operations, compliance with laws and regulations,
and best practices involving internal control over financial reporting that we wish to bring to your
attention at this time are as follows:

(1) Fixed Assets

Comment: The following were noted from the fixed asset register:

a. A leasehold improvement was depreciated over five years while 12 furniture and fixture items
were depreciated over 15 years. These useful lives exceeded established policy and such items
have net book value of $50,104 as of September 30, 2020. Additionally, 76 furniture and fixture
items were previously fully depreciated over 15 years as of September 30, 2020.

b. 17 items were previously capitalized that were below the $5,000 capitalization threshold.

Recommendation: We recommend management to revisit the appropriateness of capitalized costs,
assigned useful lives and depreciation of its fixed assets.




APPENDIX I, CONTINUED

SECTION Il - DEFINITION
The definition of a deficiency is as follows:

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent, or detect and correct misstatementson a timely basis. A deficiency in design exists when (a)
a control necessary to meet the control objective is missing or (b) an existing control is not properly
designed so that, even if the control operates as designed, the control objective would not be met. A
deficiency in operation exists when (a) a properly designed control does not operate as designed, or {b)
the person performing the control does not possess the necessary authority or competence to perform
the control effectively.



APPENDIX I

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR, AND THE OBIECTIVES AND LIMITATIONS OF, INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The following comments concerning management’s responsibility for internal control over financial
reporting and the objectives and inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting are
adapted from auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management's Responsibility

GHURA’s management is responsible for the overall accuracy of the financial statements and their
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In this regard, management is also
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.

Objectives of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting is a process affected by those charged with governance,
management, and other personnel and designed to provide reasonable assurance about the
achievement of the entity’s objectives with regard to reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Internal control over the
safeguarding of assets against unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition may include controls related
to financial reporting and operations objectives. Generally, controls that are relevant to an audit of
financial statements are those that pertain to the entity’s objective of reliable financial reporting (i.e.,
the preparation of reliable financial statements that are fairly presented in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles).

Inherent Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Recause of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



E - Deloitte & Touche LLP
e OI e 361 S. Marine Corps Drive
. @ Tamunlng, GU 96913-3873
USA
Tel: {671) 646-3884

Fax: (671) 649-4932
www.deloitte.com

March 30, 2021

Board of Commissioners
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority

Dear Members of the Board of Commissioners:

We have performed an audit of the financial statements of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal
Authority (GHURA) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America (“generally accepted auditing
standards”) and have issued our report thereon dated March 30, 2021.

We have prepared the following comments to assist you in fulfilling your obligation to oversee the
financial reporting and disclosure process for which management of GHURA is responsible. ‘

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of
Commissioners, the Office of the Public Accountability of Guam and others within the organization
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
However, this report is also a matter of public record.

Yours truly,

D S

cc: The Management of Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
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OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER GENERALLY ACCEPTED AUDITING STANDARDS, GENERALLY ACCEPTED
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Our responsibility under (1) generally accepted auditing standards, (2) the standards applicable to
financial audits, contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States ("generally accepted government auditing standards") (generally accepted auditing
standards and generally accepted government auditing standards are collectively referred to herein as
the "Auditing Standards") and (3) the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (the Uniform Guidance) has been described in our engagement letter dated September 14,
2020. As described in that letter, the objectives of an audit conducted in accordance with the Auditing
Standards and the Uniform Guidance are to:

. Express an opinion on the fairness of GHURA’s financial statements and the accompanying
supplementary information, in relation to the financial statements as a whole, for the year
ended September 30, 2020 (the “financial statements”), in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“generally accepted accounting
principles”) in all material respects, and to perform specified procedures on the required
supplementary information for the year ended September 30, 2020;

. Express an opinion on whether the supplementary information that accompanies the financial
statements, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole;

. Report on GHURA's internal control over financial reporting and on its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters for the year
ended September 30, 2020, based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance
with generally accepted government auditing standards; and

. Express an opinion on GHURA's compliance with requirements applicable to each major
program and report on GHURA’s internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance.

Our responsibilities under the Auditing Standards and Uniform Guidance include forming and
expressing an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared with the
oversight of management and the Board of Commissioners are presented fairly, in all material
respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or the Board of Commissioners of their responsibilities.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether caused by fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, we considered internal control over financial reporting
relevant to GHURA’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that were appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of GHURA's internal control over financiat reporting. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of GHURA's internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of internal control over financial reporting was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses.

We also considered GHURA’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. Our audit does not, however, provide a
legal determination of GHURA’s compliance with those requirements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GHURA’s significant accounting policies are set forth in Note 2 to GHURA's 2020 financial statements.
During the year ended September 30, 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the
Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which postpones the effective dates of GASB
Statement No. 84, 89, 90, 91, 92 and 93 by one year and GASB Statement No. 87 by 18 months;
however, earlier application of the provisions addressed in GASB Statement No. 95 is encouraged and
is permitted to the extent specified in each pronouncement as originally issued. in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 95, management has elected to postpone implementation of these statements.

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement is to improve
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting
purposes and how those activities should be reported. The requirements of this Statement will
enhance consistency and comparability by (1) establishing specific criteria for identifying activities that
should be reported as fiduciary activities and (2) clarifying whether and how business-type activities
should report their fiduciary activities. Management does not believe that this statement, upon
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 84 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2021.

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet
the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for
leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefuiness of governments’ financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified
as operating leases and as inflows of resources or outflows of resources recognized based on the
payment provisions of the contract. Management believes that this statement, upon implementation,
will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 35,
GASB Statement No. 87 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022,

In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a
Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1} to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and
(2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.
Management does not believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect
on the financial statements. In accordance with GASE Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 89 will
be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

In March 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - An Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component
units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally
separate organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity
interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of
an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose
government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment {including
permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those governments and funds should
measure the majority equity interest at fair value. Management does not believe that this statement,
upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 90 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30,
2021.

In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of this
Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2} arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves
those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a
conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and
financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.
Management does not believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect
on the financial statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 91 will
be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

In January 2020, GASB issued statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement are
to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation
and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics and includes
specific provisions about the effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide
No. 2019-3, Leases, for interim financial reports, the terminology used to refer to derivative
instruments and the applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to
postemployment benefits. The requirements related to the effective date of GASB Statement No. 87
and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reissuance recoveries and terminology used to refer to derivative
instruments are effective upon issuance. The remaining requirements of GASB Statement No. 92 is
effective for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022,

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The primary
objective of this statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting
implications of the replacement of an IBOR. Management does not believe that this statement, upon
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 93 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements.
This statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment
arrangements. Management does not believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a
material effect on the financial statements. GASB Statement No. 94 will be effective for fiscal year
ending September 30, 2023.

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use
subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the
capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of
a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. Management does not believe that this
statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. GASB
Statement No. 96 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023.

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The
primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board
typically would perform; (2} mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined
contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit {OPEB) plans, and
employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans {other employee benefit plans) as
fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance,
consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a
pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans. Management does not believe that this
statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. GASB
Statement No. 97 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

We have evaluated the significant qualitative aspects of the GHURA's accounting practices, including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures and concluded that the
policies are appropriate, adequately disclosed, and consistently applied by management.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s current judgments, Those judgments are normally based on knowledge
and experience about past and current events and on assumptions about future events.

Significant accounting estimates reflected in the GHURA’s 2020 financial statements include
management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible accounts, which is determined based on
management’s evaluation of the coliectability of current accounts and historical trends, management’s
estimate of the provision for inventory obsolescence, which is determined based on management’s
evaluation of the inventory’s realizable value, and management’s estimate of depreciation expense,
which is based on estimated useful lives of the respective capital assets. During the year ended
September 30, 2020, we are not aware of any significant changes in accounting estimates or in
management’s judgments relating to such estimates.

UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

Our audit of the financial statements was designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused
by error or fraud. We have attached to this letter, as Appendix B to Attachment |, a summary of
uncorrected misstatements passed that we presented to management during the current audit
engagement that were determined by management to be immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

MATERIAL CORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

As the result of our audit work, we identified matters that resulted in audit adjustments that we
believe, either individually or in the aggregate, would have a significant effect on GHURA’s financial
reporting process. Such adjustments, listed in Appendix A to Attachment |, were brought to the
attention of management as a result of our audit procedures and were corrected by management
during the current period and are reflected in the 2020 financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORTS OF THE AUTHORITY

When audited financial statements are included in documents containing other information, such as
Annual Reports, we will read such other information and consider whether it, or the manner of its
presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or the manner of its presentation, in the
financial statements audited by us. In the event that GHURA issues an Annual Report or other
documentation that inciudes the audited financial statements, we will be required to read the other
information in GHURA’s 2020 Annual Report and will inquire as to the methods of measurement and
presentation of such information. If we note a material inconsistency or if we obtain any knowledge
of a material misstatement of fact in the other information, we will discuss this matter with
management and, if appropriate, with the Board of Commissioners.

DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT

We have not had any disagreements with management related to matters that are material to
GHURA's 2020 financial statements.

OUR VIEWS ABOUT SIGNIFICANT MATTERS THAT WERE THE SUBJECT OF CONSULTATION WITH
OTHER ACCOUNTANTS

We are not aware of any consultations that management may have had with other accountants about
auditing and accounting matters during 2020.
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SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS OR ISSUES DISCUSSED, OR SUBJECT OF CORRESPONDENCE, WITH
MANAGEMENT PRIOR TO OUR RETENTION

Throughout the year, routine discussions were held, or were the subject of correspondence, with
management regarding the application of accounting principles or auditing standards in connection
with transactions that have occurred, transactions that are contemplated, or reassessment of current
circumstances. In our judgment, such discussions or correspondence were not held in connection with
our retention as auditors.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS OR ISSUES ARISING FROM THE AUDIT DISCUSSED, OR SUBJECT OF
CORRESPONDENCE, WITH MANAGEMENT

Throughout the year, routine discussions were held, or were the subject of correspondence, with
management. In our judgment, such discussions or correspondence did not involve significant findings
or issues requiring communication to the Board of Commissioners.

SIGNIFICANT DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT

In our judgment, we received the full cooperation of GHURA's management and staff and had
unrestricted access to GHURA's senior management in the performance of our audit.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
CoviD-19

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, GHURA determined that the COVID-19 pandemic
may negatively impact its business, results of operations and financial position. However, due to
uncertainty surrounding the duration, GHURA is unable to reasonably estimate its ultimate financial
impact.

Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
MANAGEMENT’S REPRESENTATIONS

We have made specific inquiries of GHURA’s management about the representations embodied in the
financial statements. Additionally, we have requested that management provide to us the written
representations GHURA is required to provide to its independent auditors under generally accepted
auditing standards. We have attached to this letter, as Attachment |, a copy of the representation
letter we obtained from management.

CONTROL-RELATED MATTERS

We have issued a separate report to you, dated March 30, 2021, on GHURA’s internal control over
financial reporting and on its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters, which was based upon the audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards. Within that report, we noted certain matters that were considered to
be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. We have also issued a separate report to you, also dated March 30, 2021, involving
GHURA’s compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

We have communicated to management, in a separate letter also dated March 30, 2021, certain
deficiencies and other matters related to GHURA’s internal control over financial reporting that we
identified during our audit.

Although we have included management’s written responses to our comments, such responses have
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the
appropriateness of the responses or the effectiveness of any corrective actions described therein.
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GHURA

(tuam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’® Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan
117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone:; (671)477-9851 - Fax: (671) 300-7365  TTY: (671) 472-3701
Website: www.ghura.org

March 30, 2021

Deloitte & Touche LLP
361 South Marine Corps Drive
Tamuning GU, 96913

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the statements of
net position of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA), a
component unit of the Government of Guam (GovGuam), as of September 30,
2020 and 2019, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes
in net position and of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise GHURA's
financial statements for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position, results of operations and change in net position, and cash flows of
GHURA in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP).

We confirm that we are responsible for the following:

a. The preparation and fair presentation in the financial statements of
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows, in accordance
with GAAP,

b. The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control:

¢ Relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error

e To prevent and detect fraud

¢. The review and approval of the financial statements and related notes
and acknowledge your role in the preparation of this information.
Specifically, we acknowledge that your role in the preparation of the
financial statements was a matter of convenience rather than one of
necessity. We have reviewed the financial statement preparation
assistance provided by you and acknowledge that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. Our review was
hased on the use of the stand-alone business-type activities checklist by
the Government Finance Officers Association. Additionally, we agree to
the recorded adjustments included in Appendix A,

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters
that are material. Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they
involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in light of
surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced
by the omission or misstatement.

GHURA does net discriminate against persons with disabilities.
The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone rumbers,

ATTACHMENT |
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We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you
during your audits.

1. Thc?dfinancial statements referred to above are fairly presented in accordance with GAAP. In
addition:

a. Net position components (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) are
properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

b. Deposits are properly classified in the category of custodial credit risk.

c. Capital assets are properly capitalized, reported, and, if applicable, depreciated.

d. Required supplementary information is measured and presented within prescribed
guidelines.

e. Other supplementary Information is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines,

f.  Applicable laws and regulations are followed in adopting, approving, and amending budgets.

g. Revenues and expenses are appropriately classified in the statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position within operating revenues, non-operating revenues and
expenses,

h. GHURA’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is

av?_ilable and appropriately disclosed and that net position is properly recognized under the
policy.

2. GHURA has provided to you all relevant information and access as agreed in the terms of the audit
engagement letter.

3. GHURA has made available to you:

a. All minutes of the meetings of the Board of Commissioners or summaries of actions of recent
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. The following details the summary

of minutes:

Name Date Name Date

Regular Meeting October 11, 2019 Regular Meeting July 10, 2020
Regular Meeting October 25, 2019 Regular Meeting August 14, 2020
Regular Meeting November 15, 2019  Regular Meeting August 28, 2020
Regular Meeting November 22,2019 Regular Meeting September 11, 2020
Regular Meeting December 13,2019  Regular Meeting September 25, 2020
Regular Meeting January 10, 2020 Regular Meeting October 9, 2020
Regular Meeting January 24, 2020 Regular Meeting November 13, 2020
Regular Meeting February 14, 2020 Regular Meeting December 18, 2020
Regular Meeting February 28, 2020 Regular Meeting  January 8, 2021
Regular Meeting June 12, 2020 Regular Meeting February 12, 2021
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b, All financial records and related data for all financial transactions of GHURA and for all funds
administered by GHURA. The records, books, and accounts, as provided to you, record the
financial and fiscal operations of all funds administered by GHURA and provide the audit trail
to be used in a review of accountability. information presented in financial reports Is
supportad by the books and records from which the financial statements have been
prepared.

c. Contracts and grant agreements {including amendments, if any) and any other
correspondence that has taken place with federal agencies.

4. There has been no:

a. Action taken by GHURA management that contravenes the provisions of federal laws and
Guam laws and reﬁulations, or of contracts and grants applicable to GHURA except as
discussed in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs section of your Independent
Auditors’ Reports on Internal Control and on Compliance.

b. Communications with other regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or
deficiencies in financial reporting practices or other matters that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

1]

. We believe the effects of any uncorrected financial statement misstatements aggregated by you
during the current audit engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole, A
summary of such uncorrected misstatements has been attached as Appendix B,

6. GHURA has not performed a formal risk assessment, including the assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud, However, management has
made available to you their understanding about the risks of fraud in GHURA and do not believe
that the financial statements are materially misstated as a result of fraud.

7. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting GHURA involving:

a. Management.
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control.

¢. Others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

w

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting GHURA’s financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others,

9. There are no unasserted claims or assessments that we are aware or that legal counsel has
advised us are probable of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with GASB Codification
of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (“GASB Codification”) Section
C50, Claims and Judgments. Management is of the opinion, based on discussions with applicable
lega! counsel, that adequate provision has been made in the financial statements for unasserted
claims or assessments and we do not believe that resolution of these matters will have material
impact on the financial statements.

10. The methods, significant assumptions, and the data used by us in making the accounting
estimates and the related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or
disclosure that is in accordance with GAAP.
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We are responsible for the preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {"OMB
Uniform Guidance”). We have identified and disclosed all of GHURA's government programs and
related activities subject to the OMB Uniform Guidance compliance audit. In addition, we have
accurately completed the appropriate sections of the data collection form.

We are responsible for compliance with local, state, and federal laws, rules, and regulations,
including compliance with the requirements of OMB Uniform Guidance, and provisions of grants
and contracts relating to GHURA’s operations. We are responsible for understanding and
complying with the requirements of the federal statutes and regulations and the terms and
conditions of federa! awards related to each of GHURA's federal programs. We are responsible
for establishing and maintaining the components of internal conirol relating to our activities in
order to achleve the objectives of providing reliable financial reports, effective and efficient
operations, and compliance with laws and regulations. GHURA is responsible for maintaining
?cgolunting and administrative control over revenues, cobligations, expenditures, assets, an
iabilities,

We have informed you of all investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated during
the year ended September 30, 2020 or are in process as of September 30, 2020.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained,
effective internal control over compliance for federal programs that provides reasonable
assurance that we are managing federal awards in compliance with federal statutes, regulations,
and the terms and conditions of the federal awards that could have a material effect on its
federal programs, ‘

We have disclosed to you all deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting identified as part of our evaluation, including separately disclosing to you all
such deficiencies that are significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over
financial reporting.

No events have occurred subsequent to September 30, 2020 that require consideration as
adjustments to or disclosures in the schedule of federal awards and related notes or that existed
at the end of the reporting period that affect noncompliance during the reporting period,

We have disclosed all known noncompliance with direct and material compliance requirements
occurring subsequent to September 30, 2020,

No changes in internal control over compliance or other factors that might significantly affect
internal control over financial reporting, including any corrective actions taken by GHURA with
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance,
have occurred subsequent to September 30, 2020,

Federal awards expenditures have been charged in accordance with applicable cost principles.

GHURA has obligated, expended, received, and used public funds in accordance with the purpose
for which such funds have been appropriated or otherwise authorized by local, state, or federal
law. Such obligation, expenditure, receipt, or use of public funds was in accordance with any
limitations, conditions, or mandatory directions imposed by local, state, or federal law.

Money or similar assets handled by GHURA on behalf of the Federal Government have been
properly and legally administered, and the accounting and record keeping related thereto is
proper, accurate, and in accordance with law,
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22. The Reporting Package submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) as defined by the
OMB Uniform Guidance section 2CFR200.512{3}{c) does not contain protected personally
identifiable information.

23. We have disclosed all contracts or other agreements with service organizations.

24. We have disclosed to you all communications from service organizations relating to
noncompliance with the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions
of federal awards at those organizations.

25, We have:

a. Identified and disclosed to you the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and condltions of federal awards that are considered to have a direct and material
effect on each major program under audit.

b. Complied, in all material respects, with the direct and material compliance requirements
identified above in connection with federal awards except as disclosed in the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.

c. Identified and disclosed interpretations of any compliance requirements that have varying
interpretations.

d. Made available all federal awards (including amendments, if any} and any other
correspondence relevant to federal programs and related activities that have taken place with'
federal agencies or pass-through entities. Management has made avallable all documentation
related to compliance with the direct and material compliance requirements, including
information related to federal program financial reports and claims for advances and
reimbursements. Federal financial retports and claims for advances and reimbursements are
supported by the books and records from which the financial statements have been prepared
and are prepared on a basis consistent with that presented in the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards. The copies of federal program financial reports provided are true copies of
the reports submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the federal agency or pass-through
GHURA, as applicable,

e. |dentified and disclosed all amounts questioned and all known noncompliance with the direct
and material compliance requirements of federal awards, including the results of other
audits, program reviews, or any communications from federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities concerning possible noncompliance refated to the objectives of the audit.

f. Identified previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other
studies related to the objectives of the audit and the corrective actions taken to address
significant findings and recommendations, including the status of follow-up on prior audit
findings {and information about all management decisions) by federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities.

g. Provided to you our views on the reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations for
your report.

26. We are responsible for follow-up on all prior-year findings. We have prepared a summar?/
schedule of prior-year findings by federal awarding agency and pass-through entity, including a |
management decisions, to report the status of our e forts in imptementation of the prior-year’s
corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings includes all findings required
to be included in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance.
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27. We are responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings and have developed a corrective
action plan that meets the requirements of OMB Uniform Guidance, We have included in the
corrective action plan for current-year findings the name of the person in our organization
responsible for implementation of the actions, the best actions to be taken, and the estimate ofa
completion” date, We have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, illegal acts,
violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that you report.

28. Management has identified and disclosed to you all laws and regulations that have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.

29. No organizations were identified that meet the criteria established in GASB Codification Section
2100, Defining the Financial Reporting Entity.

Except where otherwise stated below, matters less than $380,000 collectively are not considered to
be exceptions that require disclosure for the puguose of the following representations. This amount is
not necessarily indicative of amounts that would require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial
statements.

30, Except as listed in Appendix B, there are no transactions that have not been properly recorded in
the accounting records underlying the financial statements.

31. GHURA has no plans or intentions that may affect the carrying value or classification of assets and
liabilities,
32. Regarding related parties:

a. We have disclosed to you the identity of GHURA's related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

b. To the extent applicable, related parties and all the related-party relationships and
transactions, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and
guarantees (written or oral) have been appropriately identified, properly accounted for, and
disclosed in the financial statements.

33, In preparing the financial statements in accordance with GAAP, management uses estimates. All
estimates have been disclosed in the financial statements for which known information available

prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that both of the following criteria are
met:

a. It is reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect on the financial statements of a
condition, situation, or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the financial
statements will change in the near term due to one or more future confirming events.

b. The effect of the change would be material to the financial statements.

34. Risks associated with concentrations, based on information known to management, that meet all of
the following criteria have been disclosed in the financial statements:

a. The concentration exists at the date of the financial statements.
b. The concentration makes the enterprise vulnerable to the risk of a near-term severe impact.

c. It is at least reasonably possible that the events that could cause the severe impact will occur in
the near term.
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34.There are no:

a. Instances of identified or suspected noncompliance with laws, regulations, or provisions of
contracts or grant agreements whose effects should be considered when preparing the
financial statements, or other instances that warrant the attention of those charged with
governance.

b. Known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements that have not been disclosed to you and accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with GAAP.

c. Known actual or likely instances of abuse that have occurred that could be guantitatively or
qualitatively material to the financial statements.

d. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by
GASB Codification Section C50, Claims and Judgments, except as disclosed In the notes to the
financial statements.

35. Regarding required supplementary information:
a. We confirm that we are responsible for the required supplementary information.

b. The required supplementary information is measured and presented in accordance with the
requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

c. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information have not
changed from those used in the prior period.

36, Regarding supplementary information:

a. We are responsible for the fair presentation of the supplementary information in accordance
with GAAP.

b. We believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented
in accordance with GAAP.

¢. The method of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information has not
changed from those used in the prior period.

37. During the year ended September 30, 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the
Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which postpones the effective dates of GASB
Statement No. 84, 89, 90, 91, 92 and 93 by one year and GASB Statement No. 87 by 18 months;
however, earlier application of the provisions addressed in GASB Statement No. 95 is encouraged
and is permitted to the extent specified in each pronouncement as originally issued. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, management has elected to postpone implementation
of these statements.

38. In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, This Statement is to improve
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting
purposes and how those activities should be reported. The requirements of this Statement will
enhance consistency and comparability by {1) establishing specific criteria for identifying activities
that should be reported as fiduciary activities and (2) clarifying whether and how business-type
activities should report their fiduciary activities. Management does not believe that this
statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 84 will be effective for fiscal year
ending September 30, 2021.
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In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’
financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and as inflows of resources or outflows of resources
recognized based on the payment provisions of the contract. Management believes that this
statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 87 will be effective for fiscal year
ending September 30, 2022,

In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End
of a Construction Perfod. The objectives of this Statement are #1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period
and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.
Management does not believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a material
effect on the financial statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement
No. 89 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022,

In March 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - An Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the
consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally
separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain
component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a_majority equity
interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s
holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest
that meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless
it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or
an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those
governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value, Management
does not believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the
financial statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 90 will be
effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2021,

In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers
and eliminate diversity in practice associated with {1) commitments extended by issuers, (2)
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This
Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt
obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing
standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations;
and improving required note disclosures. Management does not believe that this statement,
upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with
GASB St??tement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 91 will be effective for fiscal year ending September
30, 2023,

In January 2020, GASB issued statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement
are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified
during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a
variety of topics and includes specific provisions about the effective date of Statement No. 87,
Legses, and !mplementation Guide No. 2019-3, leases, for interim financial reports, the
terminology used to refer to derivative instruments and the applicabllity of certain requirements
of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to postemployment benefits. The requirements related
to the effective date of GASB Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reissuance

URBAN ATTACHMENT |, CONTINUED
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recoveries and terminology used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance.
The remaining requirements of GASB Statement No. 92 is effective for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2022,

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The
primary objective of this statement is to address those and other accounting and financial
reporting implications of the replacement of an IBOR, Management does not believe that this
statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 93 will be effective for fiscal year
ending September 30, 2022.

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this statement is to improve
financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership
arrangements. This statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for
availability payment arrangements. Management does not belleve that this statement, upon
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. GASB Statement No. 94
will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023.

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
{governments). This Statement (1} defines a SBITA; (2} establishes that a SBITA results in a right-
to-use subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription liability; (3)
provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including
implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA.
Management does not believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a material
effect on the financial statements. GASB Statement No. 96 will be effective for fiscal year ending
September 30, 2023,

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No.
32. The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparabllity
related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential
component unit does not have a governing board and the primary government performs the
duties that a governing board typically would perform; {2) mitigate costs associated with the
reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or
OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund
financial statements; and {3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the
accounting and financial reporting for Interna! Revenue Code {IRC) Section 457 deferred
compensation plans {Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for
benefits provided through those plans. Management does not helieve that this statement, upon
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. GASB Statement No. 97
will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022,

GHURA has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral except as disclosed in note 7 to the financial
statements.

GHURA has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that may have an effect on the
financial statements except for instances of noncompliance included in the Schedule of Findings
and Questioned Costs.

ATTACHMENT I, CONTINUED
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No department or agency of GHURA has reported a material instance of noncompliance to us
except for instances of noncompliance inciuded in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs.

GHURA has identified all derivative instruments as defined by GASB Codification Section D40,
Derivative Instruments, and appropriately recorded and disclosed such derivatives in accordance with
GASB Codification Section D40.

Arrangements with financia! institutions involving compensating balances or other arrangements
involving restrictions on cash balances, line of credit, or similar arrangements have been properly
disclosed in the financial statements.

Financial instruments with significant individual or group concentration credit risk have been
appropriately identified, properly recorded, and disclosed in the financial statements.

GHURA has disclosed whether, subsequent to September 30, 2020, any changes in internal

control or other factors that might significantly affect internal controi, including any corrective

ra]ction takendby management with regard to significant deficlencies and material weaknesses,
ave occurred.

No evidence of fraud, possible irregularities, or dishonesty in fiscal operations of programs
administered by GHURA has been discovered.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for sales
or other charges arising on or before the balance-sheet date and have been appropriately
reduced to their estimated net realizable value.

Quantitative and qualitative information regarding the allowance for doubtful accounts has been
properly disclosed in the financial statements.

Provision has been made to reduce excess or obsolete inventories to their estimated net
realizable value. All inventories are the property of GHURA and do not include any items
consigned to it or any items hitled to customers.

GHURA, using Its best estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections, reviews long-lived assets for impairment.

We believe that all expenditures that have been deferred to future periods are recoverable.
We have disclosed to you all additions or changes to the existing pension plan,

We agree with the findings of the experts contracted by the GovGuam Retirement Fund and the
GovGuam Department of Administration for the actuarial evaluations of GovGuam’s retirement
plan, postretirement liabilities and other post-employment benefits (OPEB). We did not give any
instructions, nor cause any instructions to be given, to management’s experts with respect to
values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias his or her work, and we are not aware of any
matters that have affected the independence or objectivity of management’s experts.

We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and
postretirement liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the
circumstances. These amounts have been appropriately recoghized and displayed as assets,
liabilities, deferred inflows, deferred outflows, net position and changes in net position in the
financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Fingncial
Reporting for Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions ond Related Assets That Are Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and
Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.
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64. We believe that the actuartal assumptions and methods used to measure other post-employment
benefit liabilities are appropriate in the circumstances. These amounts have been appropriately
recognized and displayed as assets, liabilities, deferred inflows, deferred outflows, net position
and changes In net position in the financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement No.
75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which
replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans.

65. We have no intention of terminating our participation in the GovGuam Retirement plans or taking
any other action that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of the
plans. We are not aware of any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of our
pension plans to which we contribute.

66. All additiogls to GHURA’s property accounts consist of replacements or additions that are properly
capitalizable,

67. There were no items of physical property contained in the property accounts of GHURA that were
either {a) abandoned or (b) out of service and not regarded as either (i) standby property or
equipment or {ii} property held for use only temporarily out of service.

68, V\:;e do not plan to make frequent amendments to our pension or other postretirement benefit
plans.

69. GHURA has implemented staggered staffing to address social distancing in response to COVIR-19
g[obalclaandemic. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is uncertainty
around the duration. Due to uncertainty, the accompanying financial statements do not reflect
any adjustments that may ultimately arise from these matters.

70. No events have occurred after September 30, 2020, but before March 30, 2021, the date the

financial statements were available to be issued that require consideration as adjustments to or
disclosures in the financial statements.

Very truly yours,

oyt

Ray S. Topasfia
Executive Director

bcels & (%%‘71 Iﬁl&@v\ﬁ/m

Lucele D, Leon Guerrero L
Controtler
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APPENDIX A - POSTED ADJUSTMENTS

Journhal Entrles - AJE

1 AJE To adjust allowance

Retiree Ad hoc COLA and supplemental benefits 171,100.00

Transfers from GovGuam 171,100.00
174,10C.00 171,100.00

2 AJE To adjust Pension llability

Penslon expense 447,571.00

Deferred Qutfiow of Resources 826,352.00

Accrued Pansion and OPEB Liakilities 1,353,840.00

Deferred Inflow of Resources 79,817.00

1,353,840.00 1,353,840.00

3 AJE To record retiree haalthcare costs paid on behaif of GHURA

Retiree Healthcare costs 219,844,31

Transfers from GovGuam 219,844,31
219,844.31 219,844.31

4 AJE To adjust OPER Nabllity

Retlree OPEB Expense 657,508,00

Deferred Cutflow of Resources 2,557,734,00

Accruad Pension and OPEB Liabllities 4,242,777.00

Deferred Inflow of Resources 1,027,535.00

4,242,777.00 4,249,777.00
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APPENDIX B ~ UNPOSTED ADJUSTMENTS PERTAINING TO LATEST PERIOD PRESENTED

Balange Sheet ______[Income Statement

Net Revenue

Misstatement Type of Asseats Liabilitles Positlon Expenses

Description Mistatement Dr (Cr) Dr(Cr} Dr(Cr) Dr (C1)

To clear long-outstanding prepayments Factual (89,078) 89,078
To clear long-cutstanding accrued liabllities Factual 161,090 {161,090)
To clear long-outstanding accounts payabie ) Factual 240,500 (240,500)
To clear jong-outstanding A/R and Deferred Revenue from HUD Factual (379,307) 365,760 13,547
To record additional provisioning for A/R as of 9/30/2020 Judgmental (472,000} 472,000

{940,385) 767,350 0 173,035
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Commissioners
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal
Authority (GHURA), a component unit of the Government of Guam, which comprise the statements of
net position as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, the related statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position and of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We beljeve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of GHURA as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in its net position and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.



Deloitte.

Emphasis of Matter
CovViD-19

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, GHURA determined that the COVID-19 pandemic may
negatively impact its business, results of operations and financial position. However, due to uncertainty
surrounding the duration, GHURA is unable to reasonably estimate its ultimate financial impact.

Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter,
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generalty accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 23 as well as the Schedules of Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability on pages 59 through 61, the Schedule of Pension Contributions on page 62, the Schedule
of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 63, the Schedule of the Proportionate
Share of the Total OPEB Liability on page 64 and the Schedule of OPEB Employer Contributions on page
65 be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Financial Information .

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole,
The combining statements of net position and of revenues, expenses and changes in net position on pages
67 through 74 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements.

The combining statements of net position and of revenues, expenses and changes in net position are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining statements of net position and of revenues, expenses and changes
in net position are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

The schedule of salaries, wages and benefits on page 66 has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 30,
2021, on our consideration of GHURA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of GHURA’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
GHURA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ol SR Y

March 30, 2021



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

As the management of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA), a component unit of
the Government of Guam (GovGuam), we offer readers of this narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities of GHURA for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019.

The annual financial report consists of four parts - management’s discussion and analysis (this section),
the basic financial statements, the accompanying footnotes, and the supplementary information.

PROFILE OF THE AUTHORITY
Qur Mission

To assure the availability of quality housing for low-income persons, to promote the civic involvement
and economic self-sufficiency of residents, and to further the expansion of affordable housing on Guam.

General Information

Created in 1962, GHURA’s goal is to provide adequate housing and planning for those who live in our
community and receive assistance through our various rental and home ownership programs. Our
programs are designed to support our clients and enable them to fulfill goals for themselves and their
families. Our goal is to create opportunities for our client’s successful participation in the workforce and
housing in the private/public sector.

GHURA's staff (of approximately 98 Full Time Equivalents) is committed to excellence in the foundation
for facilitating our clients’ goals. We aggressively pursue partnerships with public and/or private entities
to allow for the implementation of programs beneficial to our clients.

Neighborhood by neighborhood, we are changing the definition of public housing. Public housing no
longer means fencing off a property where no one from outside the “project” dares to wander in. Today,
it means modernizing our developments that blend in and become part of the surrounding community.

At GHURA, we welcome constructive suggestions on how we can improve our services. We look forward
to meeting the affordable housing needs for the island of Guam.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The management discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to GHURA's basic
financial statements. GHURA’s basic financial statements are comprised of two components: 1)
authority-wide financial statements; and 2) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards as supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Authority-Wide Financial Statements

GHURA-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of GHURA's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of GHURA's assets and deferred outflows of
resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources with the difference between the two reported
as net position. The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources for GHURA. The
statement is presented in the format where assets, minus liabilities, equal “Net Position”. Assets and
liabilities are presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as “Current” (convertible into cash within
one year), and “Non-current”.
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The focus of the Statement of Net Position {the “Unrestricted Net Position”} is designed to represent the
net available liquid (non-capital} assets, net of liabilities, for the entire Authority. Net Position is reported
in three broad categories:

Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt: This component of Net Position consists of all Capital
Assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Position: This component of Net Position consists of restricted assets, when constraints
are placed on the asset by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations,
etc.

Unrestricted Net Position: Consists of Net Position that do not meet the definition of “Net investment
in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt”, or “Restricted Net Position”.

GHURA-wide financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position (similar to an Income Statement). This Statement includes Operating Revenues, such as rental
income, Operating Expenses, such as administrative, utilities, and maintenance, and depreciation, and
Non-Operating Revenue and Expenses, such as grant revenue, investment income and interest expense.
The focus of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position is the “Change in Net
Position”, which is similar to Net Income or Loss.

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used for operating
activities, non-capital financing activities, and from capital and related financing activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the authority-wide financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Fund Financial Statements
presentation more familiar. The focus is on Major Funds, rather than fund types, A fund is a grouping
of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. GHURA uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. GHURA has only one fund type, namely an Enterprise fund.
_Enterprise funds utilize the full accrual basis of accounting. The Enterprise method of accounting is
similar to accounting utilized by the private sector accounting.

GHURA's Funds
PUBLIC HOUSING — ASSET MANAGEMENT PROPERTIES

Public Housing was established to provide decent, safe, and sanitary rental housing for eligible families,
the elderly, and persons with disabilities. Public Housing comes in all sizes and types — from scattered
single-family houses to clustered units for elderly families or persons with disabilities. The Public Housing
Program is operated under an Annual Contributions Contract {ACC) with the U.S. Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). The rent paid by the tenant is a percentage of tenant gross income subject to a $50
minimum; it cannot exceed the greater of the following amounts: (a) 30% of the family’s adjusted
monthly income, {b) 10% of the family’s monthly income, or (c) GHURA's flat rent amount.
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GHURA owns and operates 750 Public Housing units consisting of four Asset Management Properties
(AMP): AMP 1 Central Site Base, AMP 2 - Southeast Site Base, AMP 3 - Southwest Site Base, and AMP 4
- Northern Site Base. These site bases consist of the following developments:

AMP 1 — Site Base consists of 158 units located at Sinajana, Agana Heights, Mongmong, and
Asan.

AMP 2 — Silge Base consists of 163 units located at Yona, Inarajan, and Talofofo and Talofofo
Elderly.

AMP 3 — Site Base consists of 195 units located at Agat, Agat Elderly, Merizo, Merizo Elderly,
and Umatac.

AMP 4 — Site Base consists of 234 units located at Toto, Dededo, and Dededo Elderly.

Each AMP has a Property Site Manager directly responsible for their respective property management
activities. Collectively, each individual AMP’s property management activities include budgeting,
oversight and monitoring of daily operations, overall maintenance of rental units, and the upkeep of
common areas within their respective developments. in addition, each AMP also has asset management
responsibilities that include short- and long-term capital improvement planning, review of finances,
monitoring fixed assets and consumable stock, regulatory compliance, and planning for the long-term
sustainability of the program. Property Site Managers oversee resident services, work orders, income
reexaminations, evictions, and other matters.

The intention of working under an AMP system is to improve the short- and long-term management of
public housing through more accurate information and better decision-making, thus, expanding the
viability of the public housing program over a long-term period, By converting to the AMP system, we
now have three main advantages to offer our clients: increased efficiency, improved accountability, and
better planning for the future.

As noted in the chart below, each AMP operates their own Site Base Waiting List. Below is a breakdown
of the number of applicants for each bedroom size. There are currently 2,587 applications on hand.

Wait List (No. of applicants by bedroom size)

1 2 3 4 5 6
AMPL 277 357 208 78 26 0
AMP2 16 334 154 91 32 4
AMP3 1 131 139 58 26 0
AMP4 136 173 242 76 28 0

GHURA is dedicated to providing quality public and affordable housing for all. Each of our developments
is a special place, reflecting the rich diversity in the experiences and backgrounds of our residents and
the surrounding neighborhoods. We welcome people from many walks of life and enjoy being part of
their lives in a meaningful way by providing decent, safe, sanitary, and affordable housing. We work
diligently to create positive living environments to enhance the quality of life for our residents.
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The chart below reflects the diversity of families within our developments.

Head of Household Nationality (By birthplace anly)

AMP1 AMP2 AMP3 AMP4
CHUUK 47 62 52 53
FSM 1 2 2 2
GUAM 64 61 87 28
JAPAN 1 0 1 1
KOREA 1 1 4 4
MARSHALL ISL. 2 1 1 2
N MARIANAS 1 2 0 1
PALAU 2 0 0 4
PHILIPPINES 4 1 13 13
POHNPE 0 1 6 2
SAIPAN 11 9 6 6
SAMOA 0 1 0 0
TINIAN 0 1 0 0
u.s. 8 2 7 11
YAP 0 1 1 1
OTHER 1 0 0 0
NOT LISTED 10 6 5 31
153 151 185 219

GHURA is a “Standard Performer” under HUD’s interim Public Assessment System (PHAS).

PHAS INDICATOR

ORIGINAL SCORE

MAXIMUM SCORE

Physical 30 40
Financial - Late Penalty Point 24 25
Management 19 25
Capital Fund 7 10
PHAS TOTAL SCORE 80 100

At the end of FY 2020, GHURA had 708 units occupied with 94.4% occupancy rate and an adjusted rate
of 7% with 21 units under modernization. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, GHURA

received $5.8 million in Operating Subsidy funds.
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Capital Fund Program

In order to maintain its public housing inventory as a safe and habitable source of affordable housing,
GHURA develops an annual Capital Improvement Plan. Through the Capital Fund Program, GHURA
receives an annual formula grant of approximately $2.4 million (based on the most recent grant} to
implement such plan.

HUD provides grant funds to authorities with Low Rent Public Housing units on a formula basis. The funds
are predominantly used to make physical improvements to buildings and dwelling units owned by
GHURA. The funds are used for repairs, major replacements, upgrading and other non-routine
maintenance work that needs to be done on GHURA's dwelling units to keep them clean, safe, and in
good condition. A portion of the funds may also be used to support operations and to make
improvements in the management and operation of GHURA.

THE SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM (HCV)

In 2020, the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program had to cope with the paramount challenge of
trying to meet its mission during the midst of a pandemic. GHURA’s operation was disrupted by the
COVID-19 pandemic that resulted in two subsequent shut down and government restrictions that
continued onto FY2021. The outbreak of the COVID-19 virus forced two island-wide shut down, the first
in March through May and then in late August to the end of September. The agency had to implement
new policies and procedures necessary to continue assisting families. During the initial shutdown, only
a few essential staffs were permitted to come to work to ensure rental assistance payments were made
to respective landlords in a timely manner. As restrictions slowly eased in May, the Section 8 Program
operated by appointments only; utilizing the postal mail system, a drop box, telephonic and electronic
email as a means of communication with its clients. The Section 8 Program also implemented some key
HUD waivers and alternative measures that would ensure families are provided continued assistance.
These measures include the following:

e Moratorium on evictions for non-payment of rent: No Section 8 family may be evicted for non-
payment of monthly rent. Section 8 families with loss wages. The non-eviction maratorium ends
March 31, 2021.

e Family Income annual and interim re-examinations: GHURA was permitted to adopt waivers to
delay annual re-exams, prioritizing processing of interim changes, and utilize self-certifications in
place of third-party verifications. This modification ends June 30, 2021.

» Housing Quality Standards Inspections: It is a statutory requirement for PHAs to ensure the unit
is physically inspected to ensure it meets Housing Quality Standards prior to approving tenancy
and releasing housing assistance payments. During the pandemic, GHURA implement the
following measures to comply with the Government of Guam imposed restrictions:

o Non-life threatening — GHURA adopted HUD's recommendation to waive the requirement
of withholding payment if NLT repairs are not made within the required 30 days. GHURA
may provide an additional 30 days extension and if repairs are not completed by the
extended date, GHURA must withhold payment.

o Initial Inspections — GHURA adopted HUD’s recommendation to implement an alternative
to an actual physical inspection before executing a contract or releasing housing assistance
payment. in place of a physical inspection, GHURA accepted self-certification from the
owner that the unit is in safe, decent, sanitary and in good repair. When restrictions are
lifted and it is reasonably safe, an actual Housing Quality Inspection will be performed on
all self-certified units.
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o Biennial Inspections - HUD approved the delay of biennial inspections until it is reasonably
safe for GHURA to perform the physical inspection.

o PBV Turnover inspection — HUD approved the delay of this requirement, but must perform
a HQS inspection as soon as possible, not to exceed one-year.

o HQS Quality Control Inspections — HUD waived this requirement up to June 30, 2021.

o Family Self-Sufficiency Contract of Participation: 24 CFR 984.303(d) authorizes GHURA to extend
a family’s contract of participation for a period not to exceed two years for good cause. HUD
determines that the circumstances surrounding COVID-19 pandemic qualifies as “good cause”
and to grant an extension of a family’s CoP,

e Oral Briefings: When a family is selected for admission into the Section 8 HCV Program, it is
required for the family to attend an oral briefing. GHURA adopted the HUD recommendation to
waive this requirement. To ensure the family is briefed on the program, families are provided a
handbook, which explains the HCV Program, the terms of the voucher, the role of the PHA, the
property owner and the family’s obligation.

e Term of Voucher Extensions: GHURA is permitted to grant a family one or more extensions of
the initial voucher term in accordance with GHURA’s policy. HUD waived this requirement and
GHURA may grant extensions beyond its policy.

o Approval of Assisted Tenancy {HAP Contract Execution): HUD waived the requirement which
allows GHURA to execute a contract after the 60-day deadline has passed and make housing
assistance payment back to the beginning of the lease term.

o Absence from the Unit: GHURA effectuated a temporary policy to continue making housing
assistance payments and not to terminate a family’s assistance due to extenuating circumstances
if the family is absent from the unit due to hospitalization, staying at a nursing home or caring for
a family member outside the home.

e Family Unification Program {Youth) age eligibility and length of assistance: Regulation states
that FUP youth must not be more than 24 years of age when placed under HAP contract. HUD
waived this requirement and extended the age before they turn 26. HUD also waived the length
of time of participation, which is not to exceed 36 months. GHURA is permitted to suspend
termination of assistance for period of six months from the date the youth’s assistance would
have been terminated.

) SEIVIAdP: As a result of the pandemic, HUD carried forward the most recent SEMAP score on
record.

e PHA Reporting (HUD form 50058): HUD waived the 60-day deadline, and as an alternative,
GHURA must submit transactions impacted by implemented waivers and alternative
requirements within 90 days of the effective date.

The consequences of the pandemic brought about temporary measures and waivers that must be sorted
out in FY2021, The immediate goal and objective in 2020 were to ensure families or housed or remained
house to stop the spread of the novel corona virus.



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Demographic of Section HCV Program Participants:
In 2020, GHURA Section 8 HCV Program participant characteristics are as follows:

o The average household annual income was $6,531.93 for non-working families and $15,705.12
for working families. Income sources for non-working families come from various sources such
as general assistance, Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP; commonly known as
food stamps) and Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF).

. E’he mo)st requested unit sizes were three (43%), two (27%) and four-bedrooms {15%), and one
11.6%).

e The average housing assistance payment paid was $1,101.98 per unit and the average tenant
rent share was $138.

e The race breakdown of households consists of 89 percent Pacific Islander, followed by 8.5 percent
Asian, 1.3 percent Caucasian, less than 1 percent Black American and the remaining consist of
other races. Ethnicity, 99% of participants are non-Hispanic.

e 2,014 households with female head of households and 484 male head of households.

s 13% of households included a person or persons with disabilities and 13 percent were elderly
households over the age of 62 or older.

The Family Self-sufficiency Program:

The FSS Program enables families assisted through the Section-8 Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) and
Public Housing programs to increase their earned income and reduce their dependency on welfare
assistance and rental subsidies. The FSS Program works in collaboration with a Program Coordinating
Committee (PCC) to link services from public and private resources. Eligible families selected for
participation under the program are required to execute a 5-year Contract of Participation. The contract
delineates specific rights and responsibilities, as well as goals and services for the family. The FSS
Coordinator links services and other resources necessary to assist the family to complete their goals.
Examples of the services coordinated through the program include: child-care, transportation,
education, job training, employment counseling, financial literacy, and homeownership counseling,
among others.

There are three key features to the FSS program: A financial incentive in the form of an escrow account,
coaching and case management, and stable housing through rental subsidies. The escrow account is an
interest-bearing account established by GHURA for each participating family and provides a unique
opportunity for participants to build substantial savings. As the family’s rent share increases because of
an increase in earned income, the increases are credited to the family’s Escrow account. Under certain
circumstances, the PHA may allow for interim disbursements during the family’s participation for
purposes consistent with their Contract of Participation (CoP). Examples include disbursements for
completion of higher education, job training, start-up expenses for a small business, vehicle repair to
ensure that they may continue to get to work, and disbursements for college tuition to ensure that they
graduate. Once a family successfully graduates from the program, they may access their escrow funds,
which may then be used toward additional self-sufficiency goals, such as putting a down payment toward
the purchase of a new home. Escrow monies dispersed to successful families are not subject to federal
taxation.

Over the course of 2020, and in line with COVID-19 restrictions, FSS Program Coordinators employed
alternate means of ensuring continuity of services for FSS families, and that they were provided with
critical pandemic related information by implementing a series of virtuaily based one-to-ones. These
included virtual orientations, enrollments, basic needs assessments and service coordination, as well as
progress-based appointments.
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Additionally, an immense outreach campaign (via telephone and email) was conducted to ensure that
FSS families were made aware of essential services and resources which were available to them during
the time of pandemic. This informational campaign consisted of the availability of pandemic related
assistance, including (un)employment assistance, food commodity resources, free personal protective
equipment distributions, diaper drives, COVID educational materials, testing resources, and vaccination
schedules. Other information provided included proper COVID-19 sanitation and disinfection routines,
educational resources for school-aged children, and coping mechanisms for dealing with the financial
and emotional stress of the pandemic.

Through continued collaboration with Program Coordinating Committee (PCC) partners, and in spite of
pandemic related shut-downs, FSS families were able to avail of virtual job fairs, virtual academic
advisement services, a virtual cost-free training opportunity (certification and job placement) for a
temporary certified nursing assistant program, as well as a construction bootcamp.

F$S Coordinators participated numerous online trainings and webinars throughout the year; particularly
those pertaining to continuity of services and resources and benefits available to support FSS families in
the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic. Notable workshops and activities included a series of consumer
finance webinars to help FSS families deal with the financial stress of the pandemic, and budgeting
counseling in the areas of bills, debt and credit. Information obtained from these webinars were shared
with FSS families based on their individual needs.

In conclusion, with the unwavering support of GHURA’s staff and management, FSS Coordinators
concluded 2020 by successfully organizing its 4™ annual Toys-for-Tots toy-drive. The 2020 drive allowed
for the distribution of 138 Christmas gifts for FSS families and GHURA tenant families with children aged
0~ 17 years,

SUPPORTIVE HOUSING FOR THE ELDERLY (Guma Trankilidat Project}

The Guma Trankilidat Project is an elderly housing rental program, consisting of 50 dwelling units (49
one-bedroom and 1 two-bedroom unit). Construction of Guma Trankilidat Project was financed through
a loan from the U.S. Department of Agriculture Section 515 Rural Rental Housing Program for $2 Million
and amortized for a 50-year period beginning March 26, 1980. Annua} rental subsidies of approximately
$600 thousand are provided through project-based vouchers through the U.S, Department of Housing
and Urban Development’s Multifamily Housing program. These subsidies cover both the
annual operating expenses and mortgage payments.

In compliance with Federal Regulation, a Capital Needs Assessment (CNA) and Section 504 Transition
plan was conducted on October 2013. An estimate of $2.6 Million was identified to address
improvements in order to operate over the next 20 years. GHURA has identified funding in Project
Reserves to address this requirement.

Of the 50 dwelling units, a total of 20 units have been upgraded and completed to date for a total cost
of $329,600.

Phase | — 6 units completed on May 31, 2018, total cost $84,300
Phase Il — 6 units completed on December 11, 2018, total cost $94,000
Phase Ill — 8 units completed on December 12, 2019, total cost $151,300

An additional eight (8) units are currently in preparation to be upgraded.
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COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT FUNDS

Of the many HUD-funded activities administered by GHURA, the activities funded through the HUD
Office of Community Planning and Development (CPD} represents the greatest diversity of projects
engaged to benefit low and moderate-income populations, and special needs populations. These funds
find their way into the community to support activities that meet the needs of persons over a muititude
of di\r/]erse economic and social backgrounds from the homeless to those trying to afford their first home
purchase.

On an annual basis, Guam receives funds from HUD’s CPD Office to address housing and community
needs in Guam. GHURA is the administrator of these funds from HUD. GHURA, on Guam’s behalf,
receives these funds in the form of three formula grants — the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG); the Home Investment Partnership Grant (HOME); and the Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG).
GHURA also administers funds competitively awarded under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Program to
address the needs of homeless populations.

During FY2020, GHURA administered $5.5 million in eligible CPD-funded activities. In fiscal year 2020
alone, a total of $4,343,277 was received to fund eligible projects and activities with formula grant funds.
CoC funds totaling $994,448 were approved for activities in fiscal year 2020,

Community Development Block Grants

GHURA engages in community development activities for the benefit of low- and moderate-income
populations across the island. CDBG funds in the reporting year were used to fund public service
programs and public facility improvements such as the following: :

Public Service —

(1) To support the operations of a shelter for special needs individuals, homeless men and men of
low/moderate income in recovery from substance abuse.

{2) The Family Service Center/One-Stop Homeless Assistance Center (FSC/One-Stop) received
match funding to support the operation of the Homeless Management Information System
(HMIS). HMIS is the repository for data that tracks the assistance provided to the island’s
homeless through the various government and non-profit service providers.

(3) The Family Service Center/One-Stop Homeless Assistance Center (FSC/One-Stop) received
funds for operations to administer homeless prevention and rapid re-housing services under
the Emergency Solutions Grant.

(4) The Opportunity Initiative is a program administered by the Big Brothers Big Sisters of Guam to
provide on-site enrichment activities and curriculum-based programs to enhance work
readiness and literacy skills for youth and adults.

(5} Kurason Ysengsong received funds to provide community learning and resource centers
including adult and youth computer literacy classes, GED preparation, and other educational
programs.

(6) Guam's Alternative Lifestyle Association (GALA) received funds to provide work-force
development assistance for youth and families, adult workplace mentorship, and family literacy
programs for adult and youth.

(7) To provide one-to-one counseling, homebuyer education, group education; and case
management to eligible families under the HOME, Section 8, and PHA programs.
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Public Facilities and Improvements —

(1) Acquisition/Construction of the Central Police Precinct Command-Funds were used to acquire
1and for the construction of a new Central Police Precinct Command facility for the Guam Police
Department.

(2) Sinajana Community Recreational Facility-Funds were used to rehabilitate the Sinajana baseball
field, basketball court, and the park across the GHURA main facility to provide the community
in Sinajana with a decent and safe recreational facility.

(3) Rehabilitation of Umatac Baseball Field-Funds were used to rehabilitate the Umatac baseball
field to installation of lighting, fences, dugouts, ADA-compliant restrooms, sidewalks, and utility
and sewer connections.

(4) Residential Treatment Center for Women-Funds were used to construct a 14-bed facility for
women who are undergoing treatment for substance abuse.

(5) Central Community Arts Hall-Funds were used to construct a lecture/theater-style building that
will have a 150-seat capacity.

(6) Inarajan Basketball Court construction-Funds will be used to construct a baskethall court,
restroom facilities and installation of light fixtures.

Program Administration and Consolidated Planning —
(1) GHURA utilized CDBG funds in the administration and planning of CDBG activities.
Home Investment Partnerships Program {HOME)

Guam uses HOME funds to address the needs of homebuyers and homeowners of low- and moderate-
income. In the current reporting year, HOME funds were used for such activities as the following:

Homebuyer —
(1) Acquisition and Rehabilitation of Single Family Homes. Funds were used to acquire and
rehabilitate single-family units and make them available for sale to low and moderate income
qualified and eligible homebuyers.

(2) Rehabilitation of Affordable Housing (Isla Apartments)-Funds were used to renovate a 14-unit
facility to be used as affordable rental housing.

Program Administration — GHURA utilized HOME funds in the administration of the HOME program.
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

In FY2020, ESG funded activities serving homeless populations. ESG funds were used in providing
homeless prevention and rapid re-housing services to individuals and families who are homeless or at
risk of becoming homeless.

Program Administration — GHURA utilized ESG funds in the administration of the ESG grant.
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Cares Act Funds (CDBG and ESG)

$6,197,940 of CDBG and ESG CARES Act funds was awarded to prevent, prepare for and respond to

coronavirus activities for the benefit of low- and moderate-income and homeless populations across the

island. Project selection was based on the review of applications submitted by community groups for

gctivi)ties, which would satisfy the needs and goals outlined in the report “Guam Consolidated Plan (2015-
019)”.

Continuum of Care Grant Funds

Housing first Rental Assistance Program-provides rental voucher assistance to homeless individuals. To
qualify for assistance, participants must be homeless and disabled by chronic alcohol or drug problems,
serious mental iliness, or other disabilities. In addition to receiving a rental subsidy, participants receive
support services through a network of local service agencies.

Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). HMIS is the data repository to record the provision
of services and track participants receiving assistance for homelessness. The service is intended as a tool
to improve the provision of services by the numerous service providers.

¥’ Jahame Permanent Housing Program is an 8-unit project-based permanent housing program for
homeless persons with disabilities.

Empowered Together. Elim Pacific Ministries provides permanent housing and supportive services to
chronic homeless women with children who are recovering from substance abuse.

Guma Mami Inayek Program. Funds used to provide rental assistance and supportive services for up to
six homeless participants with disabilities who are victims of domestic violence and sexual assault.

Gai Animas Project. Funds used to provide joint transitional housing rapid re-housing/permanent
housing and supportive services to victims of domestic violence and sexual assault.

Coordinated Entry System. Funds used to develop and implement the Coordinated Entry System utilizing
the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). Coordinated entry is a process developed to
ensure that all people experiencing a housing crisis have fair and equal access and are quickly identified,
assessed for, referred, and connected to housing and assistance based on their strengths and needs.

Continuum of Care Planning Costs. GHURA is designated to administer HUD funds on hehalf of
GovGuam. As the designated Collaborative Applicant, GHURA coordinates CoC activities, conducts
monitoring of CoC for program performance and compliance, and provides guidance and assistance to
address homelessness.

Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Program

The Low-Income Housing Tax Credit {LIHTC) Program, created by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, is intended
to encourage the construction or rehabilitation of low-income rental units. The regulations that govern
this program are contained in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code” or IRC}. The LIHTC
Program provides Federal tax credits to qualified project owners who agree to maintain all or a portion
of a project’s units for low-income individuals or families.

GHURA is the recognized state housing credit agency authorized to allocate LIHTC Program credits in
Guam. GHURA has been designated as the agency responsible for the administration of the LIHTC
program. The LIHTC Program assists in the development of low-income rental housing by providing
qualified owners with tax credits to offset their federal tax obligations. LIHTC Program credits are
available to owners of qualifying buildings and projects that meet certain fow-income occupancy rent
restric;cions. Tax credits are allocated to eligible jurisdictions by the Internal Revenue Service on an
annual basis.
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Since 2005, the LIHTC Program has been a primary tool in support of affordable rental housing
development in Guam. The LIHTC Program has contributed to the construction of over 1,000 units of
affordable housing in northern and central Guam. The FY2018-2019 Application Cycle yielded two
projects for award. The two projects will result in the development of 152 units of new affordable rental
housing. The first project for 88 units is the second phase of a 138-unit development along Canada Road
in Toto. The second project awarded for the FY2018-2019 cycle has been completed and has leased its
units since January 2020. In addition, this completes the last phase of a 399-unit development in Lada
Avenue in Dededo. Both projects continue the current GHURA Qualified Allocation Plan focus to develop
opportunities for larger families with a greater number of 2-bedroom and 3-bedroom units. in addition,
begau;e of their locations, both projects continue to promote access to opportunities of employment
and education.

HEowineomeHEtsIRE T

.- . Project Name’ " Developer .| Units T 0w o Llocatleh | Status
irenwood Estates Ironwood Estates, LLC 108 | Machanao, Dededo in Service*
Ironwood Manor tronwood Manor, LLC 100 | Machanao, Dededo In Service*
tronwood Glen Ironwood Glen, LLC ' 93 | Machahac, Dededo in Service*
Ironwood Heights | ironwood Helghts, LLC |1 72 | vighway 148, Tamuning In Service®
ironwood Heights I Ironwood Heights, LLC 60 | Highway 148, Tamuning in Service*
Summer Green Rasltdences Summer Green DE, LLC 72 So. Marine Corps'DrNe, Tamunihg In Service™
Summer Homas Summer Homas DE, LLC ' 81 | Route9, Dededo In Service*
Surmmer Town Elderly Housing | Summer Town Estates, DE LLC - | Lada Avenue, Dededo E
Phase | o . 128 In Service**

Phase il (Section 8 Project-Base) - 112 ' D In Service**

Summer Town Estates Phase Il | Summer Town Estates I, DELLC | 93 | Lada Avenue, Dededo In Service*

Summer Town Estatas Phase Ili Summer Town Estates LIl DE LLC 66 Lada Avenue, Dededo 1 In Service*

ironwood Villa Del Mar Phase | | Villa De! Mar, LLC ' 50 | canada-Toto Road, just off of Route 8 | In Service*

lronwood Villa Dal Mar Phase 1) viila Del Mar, LLC ' 88 Canada-Tote Road, Just off of Route 8 | Under Construction
Summer Town Estates IV Summer Town Estates IV, DELLC | 64 [ Lada Avenue, Dededo ~ | InService* ]

*  Individuals and Families
** Elderly Housing, Serving persons 55 years of age and older {128 units) and 62 years of age and clder {112 units}.

State and Local Funds

These Funds consist of various community projects funded through the local government and grants-in
aid. They also include programs for land sales and leases for low to moderate-income individuals and
various urban renewal and development projects.

15



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Authority-Wide Financial Statements

Statements of Net Position

The following summary presented below reflects the condensed 2018 to 2020 Statement of Net Position.
GHURA is engaged only in Business-Type Activities.

GHURA’s Net Position

As of September 30
Table 1
$ Change FY % Change FY
2019 to FY 2019 to FY
2020 2019 2020 2020 2018

Current and cther assets s 24,084,757 % 21,648,045 $ 2,438,712 11.3% & 20,895,235

Capital assets 17,644,865 19,820,874 § {2,176,009) -11.0% 21,190,244

Other reat estate 2,636,152 2,636,152 - 0.0% 2,686,152

Total assets 44,365,774 44,105,071 260,703 0.6% 44,721,631

Deferred outflows of resources 7,390,493 4,006,407 3,384,086 84.5% 3,021,411

& 51,756,267 § 48,111,478 § 3,644,789 7.6% §$ 47,743,042

Currant and ather liakilittes s 36,100,413 & 29,099,926 & 7,000,487 24,1% $ 30,322,992

Long-term debt 821,572 896,243 {74,671) -8.3% 966,317

Total liablilities 36,521,985 29,996,165 6,925,816 23.1% | 31,288,309

Deferred inflows of resources 3,862,902 4,970,354 {1,107,452) -22.3% 1,803,860
Net position:

Net investment In capital assets 19,459,435 21,560,783 (2,101,338) -9.7% 22,860,079

Restricted 18,279,634 16,820,947 1,458,687 8,7% 16,743,204

Unrestricted (26,767,699) (25,236,775} {1,530,924) 6.1% {24,953,410)

Total net position 10,971,380 13,144,955 (2,173,575) ~16.5% 14,649,873

5 51,756,267 § 48,111,478 $ 3,644,789 7.6% % 47,743,042

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources of GHURA as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 amounted
to $51,756,267, an increase of $3,644,789 or 7.6% as compared to 548,111,478 as of September 30,
2019 and as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $48,111,478, an increase of $368,436 or 0.8%
as compared to $47,743,042 as of September 30, 2018. Cash and cash equivalents as of September 30,
2020 and 2019 totaled $17,164,799 and 515,613,356, increases of 51,551,443 and $685,541 or
approximately 9.9% and 4.6% as compared to $15,613,356 and $14,927,815 as of September 30, 2013
and 2018, respectively.

While the results of operations are a significant measure of GHURA's activities, the analysis of the
changes in Unrestricted Net Position provides a clearer change in financial well-being.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Table 2 presents details on the change in Unrestricted Net Position for the fiscal years ended September
30, 2018 to 2020. (1) Depreciation is treated as an expense and reduces the results of operations but
does not have an impact on Unrestricted Net Position.

GHURA’s Change in Unrestricted Net Position
Years Ended September 30

Table 2
$ Change FY % Change FY
2019%0 FY 2019 to FY
2020 2019 2020 2_020 2018
UUnrastricted net position, beginning S (25,236,775} & (24,953,410} S {283,365) 11% % (24,996,313)
Change in net position {2,173,575) (1,504,918) {668,657) a44.,4% {1,703,216)
Adjustments:

Depreciation {1) 3,431,193 3,024,691 406,502 13.4% 2,477,408
Adjusted change in net position 1,257,618 1,515,773 (262,155) -17.2% 774,192
Change in restricted net position (1,458,687) (77,743) (1,380,944} 1776,3% {106,612}
Acquisition and disposal of caplital assets {1,255,184) {1,655,321) 400,137 «24.2% {557,866)
Repayment of long-term debt (74,671) (70,074) {4,597) 6.6% {66,811)
Net change (1,530,924) (283,365} (1,247,559) 440.3% 42,903

Unrastricted net poslition, ending S (26,767,699) $  (25,236,775) $ (1,530,924) 6.1% $  (24,953,410)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position

The following summary presented below reflects the condensed 2018 to 2020 Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position.

GHURA’s Change in Net Position
Years Ended September 30

Table 3
S Change FY % Change FY
2019 to FY 2019 to FY
2020 2019 2020 2020 2018

Revenues;

Operating and capital grants $ 45,400,026 S 42,892,270 § 2,507,756 5.8% & 41,386,123

Tenant rental revenue 749,460 860,390 (110,930} «12.9% 729,784

Cther operating revenues 359,511 340,818 18,5693 5.5% 1,044,424

Nonoperating 495,144 559,963 (64,819) -11.6% 676,574
Total revenues 47,004,141 44,653,441 2,350,700 g% 43,836,905
Expenses:

Housing assistance payments 32,498,722 28,598,318 3,900,404 13.6% 27,846,756

Other operating expenses 16,627,185 17,481,802 (854,617) -4.9% 17,633,697

Nonoperating 51,809 78,239 {26,430) -33.8% 59,668
Total expensas 49,177,716 46,158,359 3,019,357 E'_.S_% 45,540,121
Change in Net Position &  (2,173,575) $ (1,504,918) $ (668,657} 44.4% $  (1,703,216) SS

Table 3 presents the changes in GHURA's net position for the years ended September 30, 2018 to 2020.
GHURA had total revenues of $47,004,141 in 2020 and $44,653,441 in 2019, an increase of $2,350,700
or 5.3% while total expenses were $49,177,716 in 2020 and $46,158,359 in 2019, an increase of
$3,019,357 or 6.5%. Total revenues amounted to $44,653,441 in 2019 and $43,836,905 in 2018, an
increase of $816,536 or 1.9% while total expenses amounted to $46,158,359 in 2019 and $45,540,121
in 2018, an increase of 5618,238 or 1.4%.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam})

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019
Major Factors Affecting the Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Revenues

GHURA’s revenues consist of Operating Subsidies, Grants, Tenant Rents and Others. The majority of its
revenues are from HUD. Table 4 presents a summary of operating and capital grants received by GHURA
for the years ended September 30, 2028 to 2020.

GHURA's Grant Revenues
Years Ended September 30

Table 4
2020 2019 2018
Revenues:
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher § 34,516,746 S 30,179,391 $ 30,063,004
Low-income housing 5,798,628 3,863,520 4,530,104
Public Housing capital fund 1,583,006 2,131,937 738,291
HOME Investment Partnerships 253,459 1,001,122 878,643
Continuum of Care 706,630 897,383 1,040,152
CDBG 1,446,620 3,567,673 . 3,105,920
Supportive Housing for the Elderly 622,631 602,984 618,265
Emergency Solutions grant 244,222 393,503 164,302
ROSS 34,351 37,076 52,802
Multifamily Housing Service 25,347 84,419 49,814
Family Self-Sufficiency 129,004 133,262 144,826
Public Housing CARES Act 27,715 - -
Section 8 CARES Act ’ 10,766 - -
ESG CARES Act 901 - -
Total $ 45,400,026 $ 42,892,270 % 41,386,123

Tenant Revenue

Tenant revenue, which accounted for 1.9% of total current year revenues, decreased by $110,930, or
approximately 12.9% from $860,390 in 2019 to $749,460 in 2020, respectively. The decrease in the
curreﬁt year revenues is attributed to charges for the period and the COVID-19 Pandemic beginning
March 16, 2020.

Other Revenue

Other income consists of program income, land sales, interest earned on cash equivalents, and other
income.

Expenses

Housing Assistance Payments

Housing assistance payments, which accounted for 66.0% and 62% of total current and prior year
expenses, increased by $3,900,404 and $751,562, or approximately 13.6% and 2.7%, from $28,598,318
in 2019 to $32,498,722 in 2020 and $27,846,756 in 2018 to $28,598,318 in 2019. The increase in the
current year expenses is attributed to increase in Section 8 Housing Choice vouchers for the period due
to higher unit month leasing costs.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses, which accounted for 33.8% and 37.9% of total current and prior year
expenses, decreased by $854,617 and $151,895, or approximately 4.9% and 0.9% from $17,481,802 in
2019 to 516,627,185 in 2020 and $17,633,697 in 2018 to $17,481,802 in 2019, respectively. The
dec:jease in 2020 was due to the delay of renovation and construction contracts caused by COVID-19
pandemic.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2018 to 2020, GHURA reported capital assets of $21,190,244 in 2018,
$19,820,875 in 2019 and $17,644,864 in 2020 invested in a variety of capital assets as reflected in the
following schedule, which represents a net decrease (net of additions and depreciation) of $2,176,009
and $1,369,370, or approximately 11% and 6.5% from 2019 to 2020 and 2018 to 2019, respectively.

GHURA's Capital Assets
As of September 30

Table 5
2020 2019 2018
Depreciable assets:
Structures $ 96,041,260 $ 94,031,160 $ 93,007,015
Furnitures, fixtures and equipment 4,404,700 4,172,629 4,159,655
Leasehold improvement 296,583 295,568 255,588
100,742,543 98,499,377 97,462,258
Accumulated depreciation (87,221,203) (83,750,010) (80,765,319)
Total depreciable assets, net 13,521,340 14,709,367 16,696,939
Nondepreciable assets:
Land 3,675,882 3,675,882 3,675,882
Homes for transfer to persons 322,515 706,129 817,423
Construction in pregress 125,128 729,496 -
Total nondepreciable assets 4,123,525 5,111,507 4,493,305
Total capital assets, net $ 17,644,865 $ 19,820,874 $ 21,190,244

For additional information on GHURA’s capital assets, please refer to Note 5 to the accompanying
financial statements,

Debt Qutstanding
As of year-end, GHURA had $821,572 in debt (mortgage loan) outstanding compared to $896,243 in
2019, for a $74,671 decrease (debt retirement). Last year, GHURA had $896,243 in debt outstanding

compared to $966,317, for a $70,074 decrease (debt retirement} in 2018. For additional information on
GHURA's outstanding long-term debt, please refer to Note 7 to the accompanying financial statements,
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Economic Factors
Significant economic factors that affect GHURA are as follows:

Federal funding of HUD. As GHURA receives the majority of its operating revenue from financial
assistance from HUD, GHURA and its financial operations are significantly affected by the federal
government’s annual appropriation to HUD.

GHURA has been proactive in assessing its financial condition and attempting to align its activities and
the financial position of the agency so it can respond to new terms and conditions that may be
incorporated into this extension. By incorporating its estimate of these possible changes and reductions
into its budget for the current and future fiscal years, GHURA hopes to avoid any significant reductions
in service levels or ongoing operations. However, any deviation from current estimates of funding to be
received would have to be reexamined.

GHURA locally administers certain programs of the U. S. Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The

funding source for all major programs is virtually 100% dependent on the U. S. Federal government,

through HUD. Funding and funding related issues are therefore subject to Congressional approval on an

annual basis, Major changes continue to occur in HUD program rules, regulations, and requirements,

particularly as they relate to funding methodology, which will affect GHURA's future operations and

gdministration of these federal programs. Funding is provided for HUD programs on a calendar year
asis.

Low-income families, veterans, senior citizens and disabled individuals waiting for assistance under the
federal housing voucher program may have to wait even longer as public housing agencies begin to cope
with budget cuts due to the sequestration order.

On March 1, 2013, the President of the United States, as required by the Budget Control Act of 2011,
issued a sequestration order cancelling $85 billion in Federal budgetary resources across the Federal
government for FY 2013. As a result of the sequestration, those major HUD programs administered by
the Agency that are expected to be most impacted by funding pro-rations are as follows: Housing Choice
Voucher (HCV) program housing payments assistance program - approximately 94.1%; HCV program
funding for administrative fees at 69.1%; and Low Rent Public Housing Operating Fund at 73% to 77%.

HUD's letter to PHAs estimated that only 94.1% of the funding necessary to meet renewal needs would
be available for the Housing Choice Voucher program, resulting in a shortfall for 125,000 program
participants. In addition to holding back any new vouchers that PHAs may have been offering, PHAs
have been authorized to take a number of mitigation steps in order to address budget shortfalls. GHURA
is looking at a number of proposed steps that would include increasing payment standards, revising
portlability rules, increasing minimum rents, and trying to get those who live in larger units to move to
smaller units.

In order to comply with statutory Flat Rent changes contained within the FY2015 Appropriations Act and
Notice PIH 2015-13 that replaces Notice PIH 2014-12, GHURA has updated its Public Housing Agency
(PHA) Plan for Fiscal Year 2015 and is in the process of revising applicable portions of its Admissions and
Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP).

In keeping with the requirements, GHURA set the flat rent amounts for each public housing unit at no
less than 80 percent of applicable Fair Market Rents (FMRs); limited annual increases to 35% for current
program participants that pay flat rent; and in circumstances where utilities are paid for by the resident,
reduced the flat rent amount to account for reasonable utility costs.
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The local economy is heavily dependent on the tourism industry, the source of which is from Asian
markets, primarily Japan. Unlike most public housing authorities in the U. 5. mainland, the local economy
does not follow the U. 5. national economic trends. The tourism industry appears to be in an initial
recovery stage. However, adverse economic conditions, compounded by the effects of ever-increasing
worldwide prices of oil, are and will continue to affect residents, clients, and partners. The local
government revenues have greatly reduced the amount of welfare assistance provided to those tenants
of GHURA, who were or are welfare recipients.

Local inflationary, recessionary and unemployment trends continue to affect resident incomes and
therefore the amount of dwelling rental income GHURA is able to charge and collect. Unemploymentis
estimated at 8%, and has affected those individuals with low to moderate income paying jobs, many of
whom include the tenants in GHURA’s housing programs. Tenants’ reduced incomes result in lower
dwelling rental income received by GHURA, and lower collection rates, which have affected operations.

Inflationary pressure on utifity rates, supplies and other costs — Utility rates have been fluctuating. Utility
costs must be factored into utility allowances for tenants, which increase the level of assistance provided
in terms of utility allowances, which increases the costs of the housing programs in general.

Results from the 2009 Guam Comprehensive Housing Study show that Guam'’s housing market has
become unaffordable for households looking to move to a new unit. Only 41.5% of households
interested in buying a home had the resources to find an affordable unit while 49% of renters had
sufficient income to move to a new rental unit.

Low- and moderate-income households represent 59.4% of households interested in buying a home.
However, only 25.9% of the housing supply is within the affordable range for low- and moderate-income
buyers.

Landlords are expected to maximize their rental income and are attracted to the subsidized military
rental market rather than to the Housing Choice Voucher program, which provides subsidies to civilian
households with incomes below 50% of area median income. In 2010, GHURA’s payment standard
provided a maximum rent of $1,633 for a 3-bedroom house to include utilities. Depending on rank, a
military household could receive a housing allowance of $1,700 to $2,500. Developers are targeting the
higher income housing market, which can demand rents of $2,000 or more.

Rental Assistance Demonstration

The HUD Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program is under continuing review by GHURA.
GHURA’s aim is to determine its applicability and benefit to the island’s inventory of Public Housing.
Participation in the RAD Program would see the conversion of Public Housing properties to a Section 8
Project-Based Voucher (PBV) or Project-Based Rental Assistance (PBRA) program. The RAD Program is a
key component of the HUD Office of Public and Indian Housing's rental housing preservation strategy,
working to preserve the nation’s stock of deeply affordable rental housing, and to promote efficiency
within and among HUD programs to build strong, stable communities.

Audit and Compliance

In order to ensure accountability for performance and results, the Executive Management is using a
Management Scorecard. The Executive Management will use this scorecard to track how well
departments are executing the management initiatives, and where they stand at a given point in time
against the overall standards for success. Scores are based on standards established under the Public
Housing Assessment System, Section Eight Management Assessment System, Voucher Management
System, Rental Integrity Monitoring Reviews, and independent audits, to name a few. Over time, the
scores should improve as departments correct the problems. The Executive Management will update
this report twice a year and issue a mid-year report. We will hold ourselves responsihle and report
honestly, when progress is too slow.
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Systems, Controls, and Legal Compliance
Systems

Currently GHURA utilizes a commercially developed package that integrates all housing program areas
under one common software umbrella, The software incorporates Section 8 Tenant & Landlords,
Occupancy & Rent, Applications Waiting List, Receivables, General Ledger, Work Orders, Purchase
Orders, Budgeting and Payroll as the main modules. All data entry is self-contained within this system
and, ultimately feeds into the financials, where pay out, reporting, and tracking occurs. On average, the
system generates approximately $4.25 million per month in payments to tenants, landlords, employees,
and vendors. Data is available real-time and on-line,

The software exchanges data with HUD's web-based reporting requirements, and transmits and receives
electronic banking payment (receivables) on a daily basis, as well as other various GovGuam agencies.
ANl modules are accessible simultaneously by the approximate 90 staff via remote sites, designed to
improve our customer service and support, These remote locations in Agat, Yona, Toto, Tumon, and
Agana all access the main host server located in Sinajana via a common telecommunications media.
Additionally, a second software is utilized to effectively track and forecast grant expenditures managed
by CPD. These grants include CDBG, Home, ESG, and Continuum of Care programs. Data from both
systems are exchanged and utilized in the reconciliation process, payment, and reporting requirements.
Numerous controls, interface programs, and preventive measures have been developed, tested and
implemented to ensure the integrity and accuracy of the data, to include quality control and discrepancy
reports.

Controls

Management controls are the organization, policies, and procedures used to reasonably ensure that (1)
programs achieve their intended results; (2) resources are used consistent with agency’s mission; 3)
programs and resources are protected from waste, fraud, and mismanagement; (4) laws and regulations
are followed; and {5) reliable and timely information is obtained, maintained, reported and used for
decision making.

Managers must take systematic and proactive measures to (1) develop and implement appropriate, cost-
effective management controls for results-oriented management; (2) assess the adequacy of
management controls in Federal programs and operations; (3} identify needed improvements; (4) take
corres?onding corrective action; and (5) report monthly, semi-annually, and annually on management
controls.

Legal Compliance

GHURA is required to comply with a wide range of laws and regulations, including appropriations,
employment, health and safety, and others. Responsibility for compliance primarily rests with agency
management; compliance is addressed as part of agency financial statement audits.

Accountability

Management accountability is the expectation that “managers are responsible for the quality and
timeliness of program performance, increasing productivity, controlling costs and mitigating adverse
aspects of agency operations, and assuring that programs are managed with integrity and in compliance
with applicable law.”

Fraud, Waste, and Abuse

GHURA must maintain its credibility with applicant and participant families, owners, HUD, and the larger
community by enforcing program requirements. When families, owners, or GHURA employees fail to
adhere to program requirements, GHURA must take appropriate action. The action that is appropriate
depends on the particular case or circumstances.
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GHURA will address program errors, omissions, fraud, or abuse through both prevention and detection,
Preventive measures are the most effective way to deter widespread program irregularities. Errors,
omissions, fraud, and abuse will occur, and GHURA will have preventive measures in place so that any
irregularity can be quickly detected and resolved as efficiently, professionally, and as fairly as possible.
Because preventive monitoring measures are the most effective way to deter widespread program
irregularities, they will be an integral part of daily operations.

GHURA must ensure that GHURA operates legally and with integrity. The central principle underlying the
public ethics codes is the Conflict of Interest, more specifically, the conflict between a public official’s
individual self-interest and the public interest. We, as public officials, are held to a higher standard than
individuals in the private sector are. Public officials are repositories of the public trust and as such have
a duty to faithfully and honestly represent the interests of the public.

CoviD-19

GHURA received two separate allocations of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Securities Act (CARES
Act) funds through the HUD's Office of Community Planning and Development. CDBG and ESG funds are
intended to fund activities and programs that would directly address the COVID-19 pandemic
emergency. In general, funds are intended to prevent, prepare, and respond to the community's needs
hecause of the pandemic and to do so by consulting with public health and other government officials
to identify how best to meet the needs of the public.

The total allocation of CDBG funds amounts to $2,678,702. The total allocation of ESG funds amounts to
$3,519,238. Guam will amend its existing 5-Year Consolidated Plan and the PY2019 Annual Action Plan
to propose projects for COVID-19 purposes. Both programs have made liberal adjustments to program
rules that positively affect the use of funds to maximize their reach to the populations rendered
vulnerable due to the emergency.

The CARES Act also provided supplemental Public Housing Operating funding under Notice PIH 2020~
07, as well as funding provisions for the Housing Choice Voucher Program Administrative Fees under
Notice PIH 2020-08. The CARES Act funding amounts are $745,204 and $1,157,936,
respectively. The notices provide guidance on the disbursement of funds, reporting requirements,
and a description on eligible and ineligible expenses. Funding availability is now through December
31, 2021, as extended by HUD Notice PIH 2020-24.

Financial Contact

Requests regarding any information contained in this report or any additional information or questions
concerning the report should be addressed to Ray S. Topasna, Executive Director, Guam Housing and
Urban Renewal Authority, 117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, Guam 96910.
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Statements of Net Position
September 30, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2020 2019
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 14,984,922 § 14,581,779
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 2,179,877 1,031,577
Receivables, net:
HUD 1,451,115 684,633
Notes receivable - current 336,731 352,953
Tenants 201,622 167,426
Other government 9,774 8,774
Accrued interest receivable 12,037 2,378
Miscellaneous 365,449 435,963
Allowance for doubtful accounts (256,772) {229,858)
Prepayments and other current assets 96,655 106,250
Inventory 305,839 264,628
Total current assets 19,687,249 17,407,503
Noncurrent assets:
Notes receivable, net of current portion 4,397,508 4,240,542
Capital assets:
Depreciahle assets, net of accumulated depreciation 13,521,340 14,709,367
Non-depreciable assets 4,123,525 5,111,507
Other real estate 2,636,152 2,636,152
Total noncurrent assets 24,678,525 26,697,568
Total assets 44,365,774 44,105,071
Deferred outflows of resources:
Pension 3,442,200 2,615,848
QPEB 3,948,293 1,390,559
Total deferred outflows of rescurces 7,350,493 4,006,407
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources S 51,756,267 S 48,111,478
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other deposits S 2,031,376 S 1,520,784
Due to HUD 16,332 14,264
Current portion of accrued compensated absences 96,901 72,124
Current portion of note payable 79,000 75,000
Accrued payroll and other liabilities 262,321 539,304
Unearned revenues 1,557,815 494,507
Security and escrow deposits 359,774 333,598
Other current liabilities 181,787 317,599
Total current liabilities 4,625,306 3,367,120
Acerued compensated absences, net of current portion 775,474 625,730
Note payahle, net of current portion 742,572 821,243
Net pension liability 14,905,260 13,551,420
OPEB liability 15,873,373 11,630,596
Total liabilities 36,921,985 29,996,169
Deferred inflows of resources:
Pension 301,674 381,591
OPER 3,561,228 4,588,763
Total deferred inflows of resources 3,862,902 4,970,354
Commitments and contingencies
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 19,459,445 21,560,783
Restricted 18,279,634 16,820,947
Unrestricted (26,767,699) (25,236,775)
Total net positicn 10,971,380 13,144,955
Total liahifities, deferred inflows of resources and net position S 51,756,267 S 48,111,478

See accompanying notes to financial statements, 24



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Statemnents of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Qperating revenues:
HUD PHA Operating Grants
Tenant rental income
Other income

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Housing assistance payments
Salaries and wages
Depreciation
Employee benefits
Other administrative expenses
Repairs and maintenance

Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Retiree healthcare costs and other pension benefits

Utilities

Office expense
Compensated ahsences
Insurance

Professional fees

Bad debts expense (recovery}
Protective services

Payments in lieu of taxes
Advertising

Travel

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Contributions from GovGuam for retiree benefits

Fraud recovery
Interest income
Other income
Casualty losses
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues, net
toss before capital grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions:
Federal grants

Change in net position

Net position at the beginning of the year

Net position at the end of the year

2020 2019

S 44,722,486 $ 41,273,978
749,460 860,390
359,511 340,818
45,831,457 42,475,186
32,498,722 28,598,318
4,668,454 4,386,611
3,431,193 3,024,691
2,227,813 1,759,132
2,030,496 2,564,656
1,788,438 4,155,479
1,048,452 414,341
492,762 525,118
293,198 330,660
174,522 50,958
164,028 82,268
153,616 112,651
56,822 (15,421)
44,060 3,159
32,897 -
20,434 66,448

- 21,051
49,125,907 46,080,120
(3,294,450} (3,604,934)
390,944 414,569
30,390 49,982
13,782 14,576
60,028 80,836
- (21,833)

(51,809) (56,406)
443,335 481,724
(2,851,115) (3,123,210}
677,540 1,618,292
(2,173,575} (1,504,918)
13,144,955 14,649,873
$ 10,971,380 $ 13,144,955

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating grants recejved
Receipts from tenants and customers
Hausing assistance paid
Payments to suppliers for gocds and services
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital grants received
Acquisition of capital assets
Repayment of note payable
Interest paid

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from Investing activities:
Interest and other

Net change in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Bad debts expense (recovery)
Retiree healthcare costs and other pension benefits
Noncash pension cost
Fraud recovery and other income
(increase) decrease in assets:
Receivables
Note receivable
Prepayments and other current assets
Inventory
Increase {decrease} in liabilities:
Accounts payable and other deposits
Due to HUD
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued payroll and other liabilities
Unearned revenues
Security and escrow deposits
Other current Habilities

Net cash provided by cperating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements. -

26

2020 2019
44,686,857 S 41,238,349
1,388,306 1,377,972
(32,498,722) {28,598,318)
{7,488,992) (7,265,914)
{3,845,664) {5,917,615)
2,241,785 834,474
677,540 1,618,252
{1,255,184) [1,655,321)
{74,671) {70,074)
(51,809) {56,406)
{704,124) {163,509)
13,782 14,576
1,551,443 685,541
15,613,356 14,927,815
17,164,799 5 15,613,356
(3,294,450} $ (3,604,934)
3,431,193 3,024,691
56,822 {15,421)
1,048,452 414,341
447,571 126,346
90,418 130,818
{769,731) 150,471
(140,744) {176,590}
9,595 (21,471)
{41,211) (4,258)
510,592 657,996
2,068 2,164
174,521 41,183
(276,983} 18,133
1,063,308 36,436
66,176 38,702
{135,312) 15,867
2,241,785 S 834,474
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

Reporting Entity

(2)

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA), a component unit of the Government
of Guam {GovGuam), was created on December 18, 1962 by Government Code, Vol. I, Title XIV,
Chapter X, 13902, The primary purpose of GHURA is to provide safe, decent, sanitary, and
affordable housing for low to moderate-income families and elderly families in the Territory of
Guam, and to operate its housing programs in accordance with federal and local laws and
regulations. GHURA’s federal programs are administered through the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development {HUD) under the provisions of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended.

The administration and operation of GHURA is under the control of a six-member Board of
Commissioners appointed by the Governor of Guam with the advice and consent of the Legisiature
with one of the seven members being a resident of the Public Housing program, elected by the
residents and appointed by the Governor. GHURA has no component units required to be reported
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are
Component Units.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of GHURA have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis -
for State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial
Statements - and Manogement’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments:
Omnibus, GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures, and GASB
Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 14 and 34, establish financial reporting standards for governmental entities, which require that
management’s discussion and analysis of the financial activities be included with the basic financial
statements and notes and modifies certain other financial statement disclosure requirements.

Organization and Program Descriptions

GHURA, formed to pursue an active community development program through urban renewal
projects and to provide housing of low income, administers the following community programs:

Housing Assistance Payments Program:

HUD funds the Housing Choice Voucher Program. The principal purpose of the program is to enable
lower income families to reside in existing privately owned housing. Assistance is calculated
according to family needs and paid directly to the dwelling owner. As of September 30, 2020 and
2019, GHURA was authorized by HUD to approve housing assistance payment contracts for up to
2,581 and 2,571 families, respectively, dependent upon budget authority and available resources.
Total contracted units under lease totaled 2,503 or 97% and 2,419 or 94% as of September 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively. The project-based voucher program located at the Summer Town
Estates in Lada, Dededo, consists of 112 units, which began in November 2015. As of September
30, 2020 and 2019, Elderly Families occupied 112 and 107 units, respectively.

Public Housing Capital Fund Program:

The Capital Fund Program Grant accounts for modernization funds received from HUD for capital
improvements, major repairs, management improvements, operational costs and related planning
costs to improve the physical quality of low-income housing. Upon completion of major capital
improvement, the assets are transferred to the Low income Housing Program.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Organization and Program Descriptions, Continued

Supportive Housing for the Elderly:

The Supportive Housing for the Elderly project is designed to provide housing accommodations for
elderly residents of Guam. The project was built on land donated by GovGuam at an appraised
value of $1,380,000. The project officially commenced operations in March 1980. Rentals are
subsidized through HUD’s Section 8 muiti-family housing program.

Low Income Housing Program:

Under this program, GHURA rents its own units to low-income households. The Low Income
Housing Program is operated under an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) with HUD, and HUD
provides operating subsidies to enable GHURA to provide the housing at a rent that is based on 30
percent of household income. GHURA entered into an ACC that allowed them to develop and
operate a Low-Income Housing Program. Since that time, nine projects were developed: Guam 1-
1 through 1-9. For the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, 730 and 723 units, respectively,
were available for rent, of which 20 and 27 units, respectively, were modernized under HUD's
Capital Funds Program. In 2020 and 2019, 708 or 97% and 716 or 99% units were occupied,
respectively.

GHURA implemented HUD’s mandated transition to “Project-Based Accounting” based on their
Asset Management Model beginning fiscal year 2008. As such, GHURA has organized its 750 units
into four Asset Management Project {AMP) sites. The new financial reporting model allows GHURA
to develop and maintain a system of budgeting and accounting for each project in a manner that
allows for analysis of actual revenues and expenses associated to each property.

HOME Investment Partnership Program:

This program is designed to increase homeownership and affordable housing opportunities for
fow-income and very low-income Americans, Program funds are used to provide incentives to
develop and support affordable rental housing and homeownership affordability through the
acquisition, new construction, reconstruction, or rehabilitation of non-luxury housing with suitable
amenities, among others.

Continuum of Care Program:

GHURA administers grant funds received through the HUD’s Continuum of Care Grant to serve the
housing and service needs of homeless individuals with disabilities. GHURA acts as the
collaborative applicant to submit for annual consideration a series of grants that are awarded to
different island NGO’s providing services to their individual populations.

Community Development Block Grants (CDBG):

These grants are used to carry out a wide range of community development activities directed
toward neighborhood revitalization, economic development, and improved community facilities
and services. All CDBG activities must meet one of the following national objectives: benefit low-
income and moderate-income persons; aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight; or
meet certain community development needs having a particular urgency. Some of the activities
that these funds can be used for include the acquisition of real property; rehabilitation of
residential and nonresidential properties; provision of public facilities and improvements, such as
water, sewer, streets, and community centers; clearance, demolition and removal of buildings and
improvements; homeownership assistance; and assistance to for-profit businesses for economic
development activities.

28



{2)

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Nates to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Organization and Program Descriptions, Continued

Emergency Solutions Grant Program:

This program provides grants to assist homeless and near-homeless individuals by providing rapid
re-housing and homeless prevention services. The grants cover rental and utility assistance for
persons and individuals who are homeless or on the verge of becoming homeless. Eligible
househoids also can receive housing relocation and stabilization services such as counseling, case
management and money management classes.

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services:

This program works to promote the development of local strategies to coordinate the use of
assistance under the Public Housing program with public and private resources, for supportive
services and resident empowerment activities. These services should enable participating families
to increase earned income, reduce or eliminate the need for welfare assistance, make progress
toward achieving economic independence and housing self-sufficiency or, in the case of elderly or
disabled residents, help improve living conditions and enable residents to age-in-place.

Multifamily Housing Service Coordinator:

The purpose of this program is to link elderly, especially frail and disabled, or disabled non-elderly
assisted housing and neighborhood residents to supportive services in the general community; to
prevent premature and unnecessary institutionalization; and, to assess individual service needs,
determine eligibility for public services and make resource allocation decisions, which enable
residents to stay in the community longer.

Economic, Social and Political Development of the Territories (Compact Impact):

This program is funded by the U.S. Department of the Interior to promote the economic, social and
political development of the territories and freely associated states, leading toward greater self-
government and self-sufficiency for each of them. In addition, Federal funding is provided for
capital improvement programs and technical assistance to the insular areas including Guam.

Family Self-Sufficiency Program:

The objectives of the Family Self-Sufficiency program promotes the development of local strategies
to coordinate the use of assistance under the Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing
programs with public and private resources to enable participating families to increase earned
income and financial literacy, reduce or eliminate the need for welfare assistance, and make
progress toward economic independence and self-sufficiency.

Neighborhood Stabilization Program — Recovery Act Fund:

The objectives of this program are to stabilize property values; arrest neighborhood decline; assist
in preventing neighborhood blight; and stabilizing communities across America hardest hit by
residential foreclosures and abandonment. These objectives are to be achieved through the
purchase and redevelopment of foreclosed and abandoned homes and residential properties that
will allow those properties to turn into useful, safe and sanitary housing.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Organization and Program Descriptions, Continued

Low-Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) Program:

This program was created by the Tax Reform Act of 1986 and is intended to encourage the
construction or rehabilitation of low-income rental units. The regulations governing this program
are contained in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code” or IRC). The LIHTC Program
provides Federal tax credits to qualified project owners who agree to maintain all or a portion ofa
project’s units for low-income individuals or families.

Local Funds:

GHURA is charged with administrative oversight responsibility for a variety of community projects
as established and funded by GovGuam through contributions and local grants-in-aid.

Revolving and Trust Funds:

These funds function primarily to facilitate cash management for all funds.

Other Funds:
Other funds consist primarily of local projects that have been completed and have undergone a

final close out audit. Such projects include disaster rehabilitation for Typhoon Pamela, Yona and
Sinajana Urban Renewals, and neighborhood facilities constructed in Agat and Sinajana.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the financial
statements. GHURA has elected to use proprietary fund types as its principle reporting.
Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives of its measurement focus are the
determination of operating income, changes in net position {or cost recovery), financial position
and cash flows. All assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows
or resources (whether current or noncurrent) associated with the operation of GHURA are included
in the statement of net position. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. Under this
method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. GHURA accounts for those operations that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where GHURA has decided
that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for
management accountability. The principal operating revenues of GHURA are operating subsidies
and administrative fees received from HUD and rental revenues received from residents.

Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligible requirements have been
met. Gains from sale of capital assets are included in non-operating revenues. Operating expenses
of GHURA include the cost of operating housing units, cost of tenant services, protective services,
general, administrative, maintenance, depreciation, and housing assistance payments.

Other expenses of GHURA include interest expense. Housing assistance payments from HUD are
received by GHURA for each unit rented to gualified tenants in the public housing and Section 8
programs. HUD grants associated with capital acquisition and improvements are considered non-
operating revenues and are separately presented as capital contributions in the accompanying
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Budgets

GHURA is not legally required to adopt budgets; however, GHURA has contractual requirements to
adopt budgets for applicable HUD programs. GHURA’s governing body, the Board of
Commissioners, adopts budgets on a program level basis. These budgets are submitted by
GHURA’s Executive Director and approved by resolutions of the Board of Commissioners. GHURA
is segmented into divisions and/or cost centers. These organizational units, individually and
collectively, are expressed financially by program or fund source and budgets are developed
annually for a 12 month term, which begins October 1 and ends September 30 of fiscal each year.
Throughout the fiscal year, GHURA monitors and evaluates expenditure rates and patterns.
GHURA’s Board of Commissioners may authorize amendments to the budget based on the
availability of financial resources. Formal budget revisions are authorized in the same manner as
original budget submissions. When necessary, all HUD grant program revisions are submitted to
HUD for required approval.

Net Position

Net position represents the residual interest in GHURA’s assets and deferred outflows of resources
after liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are deducted and consists of the following
categories:

Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and
reduced by outstanding debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.

Restricted nonexpendable - net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that require
GHURA to maintain them permanently.

Restricted expendable - net position whose use is subject to externally imposed stipulations that
can be fulfilled by actions of GHURA pursuant to those stipulations or that expire with the passage
of time. GHURA'’s restricted expendable net position pertains to unexpended HUD funds under
various federal programs.

Unrestricted - net position that is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. Unrestricted net
position may be designated for specific purposes by action by management or the Board of
Commissioners or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.

All of GHURA's restricted net position is expendable. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, generally it is GHURA's policy to use restricted resources first and
the unrestricted resources when they are needed.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of net position and of cash flows, GHURA considers cash and cash
equivalents to be cash on hand, cash in checking and savings account and time certificates of
deposit with original maturities of less than three months.

As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, cash and cash equivalents were $17,164,799 and $15,613,356,
respectively, and the corresponding bank balances were $17,304,660 and 515,742,471,
respectively, which are maintained in a financial institution subject to Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) insurance.

As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, bank deposits in the amount $250,000 were FDIC insured. In
accordance with 5 GCA 21, Investments and Deposits, GHURA requires collateralization of deposits
in excess of depository insurance limits at 100%. Such collateralization shall be in securities in U.5.
treasury notes or bonds or in U.S. government agencies for which the faith and credit of the United
States are pledged or such other securities as may be approved by GMHA. As of September 30,
2020 and 2019, all of GHURA’s bank deposits in excess of depository insurance limits are
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution but not in GHURA's name.

Receivables from HUD

Reimbursements due to GHURA for its expenditures on federally funded reimbursement and grant
programs are reported as “receivables from HUD" in the accompanying financial statements.

Accounts Receivables - Tenants

GHURA recognizes bad debts using the allowance method and receivables are only written off after
approval by management and subsequent reporting to the Board of Commissioners. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is determined based on management estimates. While
management believes the amount is adequate, the ultimate uncollectible balance may differ from
the amounts provided.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are stated at the amount of unpaid principal. The allowance for doubtful accounts
is established through a provision charged to expense. Notes are charged against the allowance
when the principal due aged beyond 90 days.

Prepayments

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit future periods are recorded as prepaid
items.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted average cost or market {net realizable value).

Capital Assets and Depreciation

All capital assets with a value greater than $5,000 and a useful life over one year are capitalized.
Capital assets are stated at cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available
except for certain parcels of land donated by GovGuam, which are recorded at the estimated fair
market value at date of donation.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Capital Assets and Depreciation, Continued

The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to operations as incurred and improvements are
capitalized. Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Property and equipment items for the Supportive Housing for
the Elderly are stated at cost, while property that was donated or contributed is carried at the fair
value on the date of donation or contribution.

Property and equipment items for this project are depreciated utilizing straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives. Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis method over
estimated useful lives as follows:

Category Useful Life
Structures , 15-40 years
Leasehold improvements 15 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-7 years

Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets recorded, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the respective program’s or fund’s accounts and any gain or loss is
included in the respective program’s or fund’s current operations. GHURA also has other assets,
which consist primarily of property inventory under the Local Funds programs. Additionally, capital
assets include deferred charges, developmental costs, management improvements, and dwelling
and non-dwelling costs from other various projects.

GHURA evaluates events or changes in circumstances affecting fong-lived assets, including
intangible and capital assets, to determine whether an impairment of its assets has occurred. If
GHURA determines that a long-lived asset is impaired, and that the impairment is significant and
other-than temporary, then an impairment loss will be recorded in GHURA's financial statements,
in 2020 and 2019, GHURA did not recognize any loss on impairment related to its long-lived assets.

Other Real Estate

Other real estate consists primarily of land transferred from GovGuam to GHURA to construct 500
single-family homes under the GHURA 500 Low Cost Housing Project. This property is recorded at
the fair value less estimated selling cost. Management periodically performs valuations and
property held for sale is carried at the lower of new cost basis or fair value less cost to sell.
Impairment losses on property to be held and used are measured as the amount by which the
carrying amount of the property exceeds its fair value. Costs of significant improvement are
capitalized, whereas costs relating to holding property are expensed.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources {deduction of net position) until then. GHURA has
determined the differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or
demographic factors in the measurement of the total pension liability, differences between
projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, changes in actuarial assumptions or
other inputs, pension and OPEB contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, and
changes in proportion and differences between GHURA pension and OPEB contributions and
proportionate share of contributions qualify for reporting in this category.
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summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Deferred Inflows of Resources

in addition to liabilities, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources {additions to net position) until then. GHURA has
determined the differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or
demographic factors in the measurement of the total pension liability and the OPEB liability, the
differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, changes in
actuarial assumptions or other inputs, and changes in proportion and differences between GHURA
pension and OPEB contributions and proportionate share of contributions qualify for reporting In
this category.

Pensions

Pensions are required to be recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of accounting. GHURA
recognizes a net pension liability for the defined benefit pension plan in which it participates, which
represents GHURA’s proportionate share of excess total pension liability over the pension plan
assets - actuarially calculated - of a single-employer defined benefit plan, measured one year prior
to fiscal year-end and rolled forward. The total pension liability also includes GHURA's
proportionate share of the liability for ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) and supplemental
annuity payments that are anticipated to be made to defined benefit plan members and for
anticipated future COLA to DCRS members.

Changes in the net pension liability during the period are recorded as pension expense, or as
deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature of the
change, in the period incurred. Those changes in net pension liability that are recorded as deferred
inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial
assumptions or other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience are amortized
over the weighted average remaining service life of all participants in the qualified pension plan
and recorded as a component of pension expense beginning with the period in which they are
incurred. Projected earnings on qualified pension plan investments are recognized as a component
of pension expense. Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are reported
as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources and are amortized as a
component of pension expense on a closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the period
in which the difference occurred.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB}

OPEB is required to be recognized and disclosed using the accrual basis of accounting. GHURA
recognizes a net OPEB liability for the defined benefit OPEB plan in which it participates, which
represents GHURA's proportionate share of total OPEB liability - actuarially calculated - of a single-
employer defined benefit plan, measured one year prior to fiscal year-end and rolled forward. An
OPEB trust has not been established thus the OPEB plan does not presently report OPEB plan
fiduciary net position. Instead, the OPEB plan is financed on a substantially “pay-as-you-go” basis.

Changes in the net OPEB liability during the period are recorded as OPEB expense, or as deferred
inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature of the change, in
the period incurred. Those changes in net OPEB liability that are recorded as deferred inflows of
resources or deferred outflows of resources that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or
other inputs and differences between expected or actual experience are amortized over the
weighted average remaining service life of all participants in the qualified OPEB plan and recorded
as a component of OPEB expense beginning with the period in which they are incurred.
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Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are accrued and reported as a liability in the period earned. Annual leave,
expected to be paid out within the next fiscal year, is accrued and is included in current liabilities.
The maximum accumulation of annual leave convertible to pay upon termination of employment
is limited to 320 hours. Pursuant to Public Law 27-106, employees who have accumulated annual
leave in excess of 320 hours as February 28, 2003, may carry over their excess leave and shall use
the excess amount prior to retirement or termination of service, Any unused leave over 320 hours
shall be lost upon retirement. At September 30, 2020 and 2019, accrued earned compensated
absences totaled $641,054 and $519,748, respectively.

Pursuant to Public Law 26-86, employees under the Defined Contribution Retirement System
(DCRS) plan, upon their retirement, will be paid by its employer a lump sum payment of their
unused sick leave up to fifty percent (50%). At September 30, 2020 and 2019, $231,321 and
$178,106 were accrued in the accompanying financial statements, respectively,

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues arise when resources arrive before GHURA has legal claim for them, such as
when federal award money is received before the qualifying expenditure is made. In the
subsequent period, when GHURA has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned
revenue is reduced and the revenue is recognized.

HUD Subsidies and Contributions

Subsidies and contributions from HUD are received periodically and represent the most significant
source of revenues to GHURA. The terms of these subsidies are defined in various Consolidated
Annual Contributions Contracts. HUD subsidies for ongoing operations and housing assistance
payments for each unit rented to qualified tenants are recorded as operating grant revenues. HUD
contributions for project acquisition and development or modernization are recorded as capital
contributions. : ‘

Tenant Rental Income

Revenue from rental charges to residents is recognized ratably over the terms of the lease
agreements, which are generally on a month-to-month basis or 12-month period.

Other Income

Other income includes a revenue-portion of ‘Good Faith’ deposits, forfeiture of other deposits and
program income under the HOME Investment Partnership and other local fund programs, ‘Good
Faith’ deposits pertain to 10% of the total tax credits approved for a contractor qualitied under the
LIHTC program. Of the deposit, 60% is recognized by GHURA as an administrative fee while 40%
may be refunded to the applicant at GHURA’s sole discretion. As of September 30, 2020 and 2019,
GHURA retains $708,711 and $804,281, respectively, of ‘Good Faith’ refundable deposits, which
are included in the accompanying financial statements within accounts payable and other deposits
in the statement of net position.
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Management Fees

In lieu of a Cost Allocation Plan, HUD requires Housing Authorities to charge each AMP property
management and bookkeeping fees ($7.50 per eligible unit) and an asset management fee ($10.00
per AMP unit). Such fees are accounted for in GHURA’s Central Office Cost Center (COCC), which
is reported in the Other Enterprise Funds. HUD regulates the amount of management fees that
can be paid from its programs. Additionally, the COCC earns fees from local programs it
administers, GHURA paid management and bookkeeping fees to COCC of $1,548,972 and
$1,463,041 for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which are eliminated
on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for financial statement
presentation.

Administrative and General Expenses

Certain operating facilities and materials used by the programs are shared with other programs.
Costs associated with these facilities and materials are accumulated and paid by a central
disbursement fund which allocates such costs to the various programs based on each program’s
pro rata share of payroll hours.

Income Taxes

Income derived or generated by GHURA is not subject to federal income tax pursuant to Internal
Revenue Code Section 115. GHURA is exempt from local property taxes. :

Advertising and Marketing Expenses

GHURA incurred advertising and marketing costs totaling $20,435 and $66,448 for the years ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. These costs primarily relate to construction bids and
related procurement solicitation costs.

CoviD-19

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the disease resulting from a novel
strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) a global pandemic and recommended containment and mitigation
measures worldwide. On March 13, 2020, President Donald J. Trump declared a national
emergency within the United States. In response to the national emergency declared by the U.S.
President, on March 14, 2020, Guam Governor Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero issued Executive Order
2020-03 declaring a state of emergency in response to COVID-19. Further, Executive Order 2020-
04 ordered the closure of all non-essential GovGuam offices, prohibited large gatherings, and
restricted entry into Guam from countries with confirmed COVID-19 cases. Asa result, schools and
non-essential government agencies and businesses have closed. GHURA, being a non-essential
component, has closed its office to visitors and has implemented staggered staffing to address
social distancing.

GHURA was awarded direct Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Securities Act {CARES Act) funds
through the HUD’s Office of Community Planning and Development in two separate allocations of
$2,678,702 and $3,519,238 for CDBG and ESG, respectively. Funds are intended to prevent,
prepare, and respond to the community's needs as a result of the pandemic. GHURA was also
awarded $1,157,936 for its Section 8 HCV program and is authorized to disburse $745,204 for its
Public Housing programs. As of September 30, 2020, $40,801 has been expended, of which $901
or 2.21% was spent on Administrative expenses and 539,900 or 97.79% on Tenant Services.

While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is uncertainty around the
duration. Due to uncertainty, the accompanying financial statements do not reflect any
adjustments that may ultimately arise from these matters.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Motes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

New Accounting Standards

During the year ended September 30, 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the
Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which postpones the effective dates of GASB
Statement No. 84, 89, 90, 91, 92 and 93 by one year and GASB Statement No. 87 by 18 months;
however, earlier application of the provisions addressed in GASB Statement No. 35 is encouraged
and is permitted to the extent specified in each pronouncement as originally issued. In accordance
with GASB Statement No. 95, management has elected to postpone implementation of these
statements.

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement is to improve
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting
purposes and how those activities should be reported. The requirements of this Statement will
enhance consistency and comparability by (1) establishing specific criteria for identifying activities
that should be reported as fiduciary activities and (2) clarifying whether and how business-type
activities should report their fiduciary activities. Management does not believe that this statement,
upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 84 will be effective for fiscal year ending September
30, 2021.

in June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments, This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’
financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and as inflows of resources or outflows of resources
recognized based on the payment provisions of the contract. Management does not believe that
this statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No, 87 will be effective for fiscal year
ending September 30, 2022,

In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End
of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period
and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.
Management does not believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a material
effect on the financial statements. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement
No. 89 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

In March 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - An Amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain
component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest
in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding
of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets
the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a
special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment
(including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those governments and funds
should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. Management does not believe that this
statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 90 will be effective for fiscal year
ending September 30, 2021.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

New Accounting Standards, Continued

In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2}
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This
Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt
obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing
standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and
improving required note disclosures. Management does not believe that this statement, upon
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with GASB
Statéament No. 95, GASB Statement No. 91 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30,
2023. :

In January 2020, GASB issued statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement
are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency
of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety
of topics and includes specific provisions about the effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and
Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, for interim financial reports, the terminology used to
refer to derivative instruments and the applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84,
Fiduciary Activities, to postemployment benefits. The requirements related to the effective date
of GASB Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reissuance recoveries and
terminology used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance. The remaining
requirements of GASB Statement No. 92 is effective for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The
primary objective of this statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting
implications of the replacement of an IBOR. Management does not believe that this statement,
upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 95, GASB Statement No. 93 wili be effective for fiscal year ending September
30, 2022.

In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership
arrangements. This statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for
availability payment arrangements. Management does not believe that this statement, upon
implementation, will have a material effect on the financial statements. GASB Statement No. 94
will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023.

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2} establishes that a SBITA results in a right-
to-use subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription liability; (3)
provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including
implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) reguires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. Management
does not believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the
financial statements. GASB Statement No. 96 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30,
2023.
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New Accounting Standards, Continued

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32.
The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related
to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component
unit does not have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a
governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain
defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment henefit (OPEB)
plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit
plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the
relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for internal
Revenue Code {IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the
definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans. Management doesnot
believe that this statement, upon implementation, will have a material effect on the financial
statements. GASB Statement No. 97 will be effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

Reclassification

Certaln balances in the 2019 presentation have been reclassified to conform to the 2020
presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The deposits and investment policies of GHURA are governed by 5 GCA 21, Investments and
Deposits. Legally authorized investments include securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S.
Treasury or agencies of the United States government; demand and time deposits in or certificates
of, or bankers’ acceptances issued by, any eligible financial institution; corporate debt obligations,
including commercial paper; certain money market funds; state and local government securities,
including municipal bonds; and repurchase and investment agreements. With the exception of
investments in U.S. government securities, where are explicitly guaranteed by the United States
government, all other investments must be rated Aal/P-1 by Moody's.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, GHURA’s deposits may not be
returned to it. Such deposits are not covered by depositor insurance and are either
uncollateralized or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or held
by the pledging financial institution but not in the depositor-government’s name. GHURA has an
investment and deposit policy for custodial credit risk. For deposits, GHURA and the depository
must execute a general depository agreement pursuant to HUD regulations. The depository bank
must be a bank or financial institution whose deposits are insured by FDIC, Federal Savings and
Loan Insurance Corporation or the National Credit Union Administration and all deposits must be
fully collateralized by U.S. securities.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Continued

As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, GHURA maintains certain cash and cash equivalents for
restricted and designated purposes, which are summarized as follows:

2020 2019
Public Housing $ 1,339,735 S 1,339,524
Section 8 HCV — CARES Act 1,147,170 -
Section 8 HCV 687,984 586,592
Supportive Housing for the Elderly 564,570 391,474
Revolving Fund 101,519 101,438
Local Funds 33,124 12,768

$ 3,874,102 $ 2431796
Supportive Housing for the Elderly

In accordance with the Farmers Home Administration loan covenants, GHURA is required to
maintain a reserve account of $168,600 to be held as collateral for loan reserves. Of this amount,
no less than 50%, or $84,300, shall be maintained in cash. The remaining 50% may be deposited
or invested in time certificates of deposit, which must be insured by the FDIC, As of September 30,
2020 and 2019, GHURA had $549,216 and $373,897, respectively, in a designated cash account for
the Supportive Housing for the Elderly and $15,354 and 517,577, respectively, in a designated cash
account tenant security deposits. Interest income earned is reinvested when related time
certificates of deposit mature.

Section 8 HCV and Low Rent Housing

Escrow accounts have been established for Section 8 HCV and Low Rent Public Housing participants
in the Family Self-Sufficiency program (FSS). A portion of rent paid by residents participating in this
program is held from them until the participating family meets individually established self-
sufficiency goals. The escrow amount is remitted to the head of household upon completion of
their specific work plan or thirty percent {30%) of the family’s monthly-adjusted income equals or
exceeds the appropriate fair market rent. Escrows are nonrefundable if the family leaves the
program. Interest is accrued on the account. GHURA holds FSS escrow amounts for participants
in the program, which totaled $333,303 and $219,695 as of September 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Section 8 HCV program also has designated cash of
$354,681 and $366,897, respectively, which represent the remaining housing assistance payment
{HAP) revenue that has accumulated since January 1, 2005. HUDPIH Notice 2006-03 required that
excess {unused) HAP funding received in excess of related HAP expenses, from the above date be
recognized as revenue, and that the accumulated revenue (HAP equity) be segregated as part of
undesignated fund balance. Upon further clarification by HUD in PIH Notice 2008-09, which was
issued on January 30, 2008, concerning the implementation of the aforementioned notice, the
associated cash related to the aforementioned HAP equity under proprietary fund reporting should
be reported as restricted. These funds are available only for certain eligible HAP expenses and not
for program administrative purposes.

As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Low Rent Housing program also has additional designated
cash totaling 51,154,228 for each year, which consists primarily of a separate, HUD approved
typhoon coverage self-insurance fund. Based on the terms of the self-insurance agreement with
HUD, GHURA would need HUD’s approval for any withdrawal and expenditure of these funds. As
of September 30, 2020 and 2019, total typhoon coverage self-insurance fund of $1,032,707 and
$1,031,577, respectively, are presented as “Cash and cash equivalents — restricted” in the
statements of net position. '
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
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Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

(4) Notes Receivable

Notes receivable consist primarily for first time homebuyers to provide assistance to eligible
residents to purchase or construct a primary owner-occupied dwelling. The loans under GHURA’s
Down Payment and Closing Cost Assistance Program are interest free with a maximum loan amount
of the lesser of $18,000 or 18% of the purchase price and are collateralized by second mortgages
on real estate. Under the Renewal Homes Program, loans carry a 3% interest rate with a 30-year

term.

Notes receivable consist of the following as of September 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020
Down Payment HOME CBDG and
and Closing Cost  Rehabilitation Renewal Homes
Assistance Program Program Program Total
Due in varying monthly Installments,
interest free, with maturities
to 2028 including loans 5 361,735 $32,892 ) - S 394,627
Due in varying monthly Installments,
3% interest, with maturities
to 2050 including loans - - 4,339,612 4,339612
361,735 32,892 4,339,612 4,734,239
Current porticn 216,980 7.667 112,084 336,731
S 144,755 $ 25225 $4,227,528 $ 4,397,508
2019 _
Down Payment HOME CBDG and
and Closing Cost  Rehabilitation Renawal Homes
Assistance Program Program Program Total
Due in varying monthly installments,
interest free, with maturities
to 2028 including loans $ 436,437 $ 41,580 S - S 478,117
Due in varying monthly installments,
3% interest, with maturitias
1o 2049 including loans - - 4,115,378 4,115,378
436,437 41,680 4,115,378 4,593,495
Current portion 245,160 9,338 98,455 352,953
$191,277 $32,342 ) 4,016,923 $ 4,240,542

Maturities of the principal balances subsequent to September 30, 2020 are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30
2021 S 336,731
2022 164,596
2023 163,515
2024 155,221
2025 152,091
Thereafter 3,762,085
$ 4,734,239

At September 30, 2020 and 2019, the allowance for doubtful accounts on notes receivable
amounted to $182,515 and $198,475, respectively.

41
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(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2020 and 2019

(5) Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 are as

follows:
2020
Balance Balance
October 1 Additions Deletions September 30
Depreciable assets:
Structures S 94,031,160 $ 2,010,100 S - S 96,041,260
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 4,172,629 232,071 - 4,404,700
Leasehold improvement : 295588 995 - 296,583
98,499,377 2,243,166 - 100,742,543
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization (83,790,010} (3.431,193) - (87,221,203}
14,709,367 (1,188,027} - 13,521,340
Non-depreciable assets:
Land 3,675,882 - - 3,675,882
Homaes for transfer to persons 706,129 - (383,614) 322,515
Construction in progress 729,496 125,128 (729,49¢5) 125,128
5,111,507 125,128 (1,113,110) 4,123,525
Tetal capital assets, net $.19,820874  $.(1062,896)  ${1113,110} $ 17,644,865
2019
Bafance Balance
October 1 Additions Deletions September 30
Deprecliable assets:
Structures $ 93,007,015 $ 1,024,145 S - $ 94,031,160
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 4,159,655 12,874 - 4,172,629
Leasehold improvement 295,588 - - 295,588
97,462,258 1,037,119 - 88,459,377
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization {80,765,319) (3,024,691} - {23,790,010)
16,696,939 {1,987,572) - 14,709,367
Non-depreciable assets:
Land 3,675,882 - - 3,675,882
Homes for transfer to persons 817,423 322,515 {433,809) 706,129
Construction in progress - 729,496 - 729,496
4,493,305 1,052,011 433,808) 5,111,507
Total capital assets, net $ 21,190,244 $ _{935,561) $ {433,809} $ 19,820,874

{6) Other Real Estate

GovGuam transferred five parcels of land to GHURA to construct 500 single-family homes under
the GHURA 500 Low Cost Housing Project. Upon completion of the construction and GHURA's
conversion from other comprehensive basis of accounting (HUD accounting) to GAAP, the
estimated value per house based on the development cost incurred totaled $34,653. As of
September 30, 2020 and 2019, GHURA had seventy-four (74) lots in its inventory with an estimated
value of $2,564,322. In addition, GHURA has five (5) lots in the GovGuam Astumbo Housing Project
with estidmated per lot value of $14,366 for a total estimated value of $71,830 as of September 30,
2020 and 2019.
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Note Pavable

(8)

On March 26, 1980, GHURA entered into a Section 515 Rural Rental Housing loan with the U.S,
Department of Agriculture {USDA) Farmers Home Administration for $2,000,000 for the
construction of elderly housing known as Guma Trankilidat. The loan bears interest at 6% per
annum and is secured by a first mortgage and assignment of rental income and assessments. In
the event that GHURA defaults in the payment of the loan or in the performance of any of its
obligations under the promissory note, or GHURA or any other party defaults in their respective
obligations under any of the related security documents, USDA would have the option to declare
the unpaid principal amount of the loan, together with any accrued and unpaid interest and
charges, immediately due and payable. Approximate annual debt service requirements to maturity
for principal and interest are as follows:

Year Ending Total
September 30 Principal Interest Debt Service
2021 S 79,000 S 47,480 S 126,480
2022 84,000 42,480 126,480
2023 89,000 37,480 126,480
2024 85,000 31,480 126,480
2025 101,000 25,480 126,480
Thereafter 373,572 37,928 411,500
$ 821,572 $ 222,328 S 043,800

The changes in note payable for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019
At October 1 S 896,243 S 966,317
Payments (74,671} (70,074)
At September 30 | $ 821,572 S 896,243
Due within one year $ 79,000 $ 75,000

Other Noncurrent Liabilities

The changes in other long-term liabilities for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:

Balance Balance
October September Due Within
1,2019 Additions Reductions 30, 2020 Cne Year
Compensated absences 5 697,854 5 174,521 $ - S 872,375 $ 96,901
Net pension liability 13,551,420 1,353,840 - 14,905,260 -
OPEB liability 11,630,596 4,242,777 - 15,873,373 -
$ 25,879,870 $5.771,138 5 $ 31,651,008 $ 96,901
Balance Balance
October September Due Within
1,2018 Additions Reductions 30,2019 Cne Year
Compensated absences S 434,233 $ 263,566 S - $ 697,854 § 72,124
Net pension iability 12,312,864 1,238,556 - 13,651,420 -
OPEB liability 14,924,532 - (3,293,936) 11,630,556 -
427,671,684 $ 1,502,122 $ {3,293 536) 425,879,870 § 72124
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Commitments

Housing Assistance Payments:

At September 30, 2020 and 2019, GHURA had 2,581 and 2,571 voucher contracts, respectively,
with dwelling owners, all of which are funded for a period of twelve months. Of the 2,503 and
2,419 vouchers leased-up, 112 and 107, respectively, were project-based vouchers located at the
Summer Town Estate in Lada, Dededo. These units were 100% and 94% occupied with elderly
families as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. HUD will fund the entire amount of
assistance payments committed under these contracts.

Local Funds

Proceeds of $460,000 from the sale of property have been committed for use in a construction
project jointly agreed to by GovGuam and GHURA, Atotal of $459,403 had been expended for the
construction project prior to the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. On October 13, 2014, Bill
number 327-32 {COR) was signed into law {Public Law 32-194) that placed the custodianship,
discretion, and purview of the GHURA 500 lot land sales under GHURA.

Construction Work-in-Progress

GHURA has entered into development stage contracts for certain programs. Ongoing and
unliquidated contracts as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020
Contract Unliguidated
Amount Liguidations Contract
Community Development Block Grant $ 5,397,970 $ (1,208,667} 54,189,303
Capital Fund Program 233,500 - 238,500
HOME Investment Partnership 71,100 - 71,100
Supportive Housing for the Elderly 151,300 {125,128) 26,172
$ 5,858,870 $ (1,333,795) § 4,525,075
2019
Contract Unligquidated
Amount Liguidatians Contract
Community Development Block Grant $5,743,022 5 (1,029,677) $ 4,713,345
Capital Fund Program 2,446,584 : (1,676,309) 770,275
HOME Investment Partnership 747,221 {555,418) 191,803
Supportive Housing for the Elderly 240,300 (94,000} 146,300
Low Income Housing 659,301 (653,301) 6,000
$9,836,428 $ (4,008,705) $5,827,723
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(10}  Pensions

GHURA is statutorily responsible for providing pension benefits for GHURA employees through the
GovGuam Retirement Fund (GGRF).

A. General Information About the Pension Plans:

Plan Description: GGRF administers the GovGuam Defined Benefit (DB) Plan, a single-employer
defined benefit pension plan, and the Defined Contribution Retirement System (DCRS). The DB
Plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to plan members who enrolled inthe
plan prior to October 1, 1995, Article 1 of 4 GCA 8, Section 8105, requires that all employees
of GovGuam, regardless of age or length of service, become members of the DB Plan prior to
the operative date. Employees of a public corporation of GovGuam, which includes GHURA,
have the option of becoming members of the DB Plan prior to the operative date. All
employees of GovGuam, including employees of GovGuam public corporations, whose
employment commences on or after October 1, 1995, and prior to January 1, 2018 are required
to participate in the Defined Contribution Retirement System (DCRS) Plan. Hence, the DB Plan
became a closed group.

Members of the DB Plan who retired prior to October 1, 1995, or their survivors, are eligible to
receive annual supplemental annuity payments. In addition, retirees under the DB and DCRS
Plans who retired prior to September 30, 2019 are eligible to receive an annual ad hoc cost of
living allowance (COLA).

A single actuarial valuation is performed annually covering all plan members and the same
contribution rate applies to each employer. GGRF issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the DB Plan,
That report may be obtained by writing to the Government of Guam Retirement Fund, 424 A
Route 8, Maite, Guam 96910, or by visiting GGRF’'s website — www.ggrf.com.

Plan Membership: As of September 30, 2019 (the measurement date), plan membership -
consisted of the following:

DB members:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 7,360
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 3,162
Active employees 4,850
_ 15,372

DCRS members:
Active employees 6,286
21,658

Benefits Provided: The DB Plan provides pension benefits to retired employees generally based
on age and/or years of credited service and an average of the three highest annual salaries
received by a member during years of credited service, or $6,000, whichever is greater.
Members who joined the DB Plan prior to October 1, 1981 may retire with 10 years of service
at age 60 (age 55 for uniformed personnel); or with 20 to 24 years of service regardless of age
with a reduced benefit if the member is under age 60; or upon completion of 25 years of service
at any age. Members who joined the DB Plan on or after October 1, 1981 and prior to August
22, 1984 may retire with 15 years of service at age 60 (age 55 for uniformed personnel); or with
25 to 29 years of service regardless of age with a reduced benefit if the member is under age
60; or upon completion of 30 years of service at any age.
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Pensions, Continued

A. General Information About the Pension Plans, Continued:

Members who joined the DB Plan after August 22, 1984 and prior to October 1, 1995 may retire
with 15 years of service at age 65 (age 60 for uniformed personnel); or with 25 to 29 years of
service regardless of age with a reduced benefit if the member is under age 65; or upon
completion of 30 years of service at any age. Upon termination of employment before attaining
at least 25 years of total service, a member is entitled to receive a refund of total contributions
including interest. A member who terminates after completing at least 5 years of service has
the option of leaving contributions in the GGRF and receiving a service retirement benefit upon
attainment of the age of 60 years. In the event of disability during employment, members
under the age of 65 with six or more years of credited service who are not entitled to receive
disability payments from the United States Government are eligible to receive sixty six and two-
thirds of the average of their three highest annual salaries received during years of credited
service. The DB Plan also provides death benefits,

Supplemental annuity benefit payments are provided to DB retirees in the amount of 54,238
per year, but not to exceed 540,000 per year when combined with their regular annual
retirement annuity. Annual COLA payments are provided to DB and DCRS retirees in a lump
sum amount of $2,000. Both supplemental annuity benefit payments and COLA payments are
made at the discretion of the Guam Legislature, but are funded on a “pay-as-you-go” basis so
there is no plan trust, 't is anticipated that ad hoc COLA and supplemental annuity payments
will continue to be made for future years at the same level currently being paid. |

On September 20, 2016, the Guam Legislature enacted Public Law 33-186, which created two
new government retirement plans; the DB 1,75 Plan and the Guam Retirement Security Plan
(GRSP). On February 4, 2020, the Guam Legislature terminated the GRSP. Commencing April
1, 2017, eligible employees elected, during the “election window”, to participate in the DB 1.75
Plan with an effective date of January 1, 2018.

The DB 1.75 Plan is open for participation by certain existing employees, new employees, and
reemployed employees who would otherwise participate in the DC Plan and who make election
on a voluntary basis to participate in the DB 1.75 Plan by December 31, 2017. Employee
contributions are made by mandatory pre-tax payroll deduction at the rate of 9.5% of the
employee’s base salary while employer contributions are actuarially determined. Members of
the DB 1.75 Plan automatically participate in the GovGuam deferred compensation plan,
pursuant to which employees are required to contribute 1% of base salary as a pre-tax
mandatory contribution. Benefits are fully vested upon attaining 5 years of credited service.

Members of the DB 1.75 Plan may retire at age 62 with 5 years of credited service, or at age 60
with 5 years of credited service without survivor benefits, or at age 55 with 25 years of credited
service but the retirement annuity shall be reduced % of 1% for each month that the age of the
member is less than 62 years (6% per year). Credited service is earned for each year of actual
employment by the member as an employee. Upon retirement, a retired member is entitled to
a basic retirement annuity equal to an annual payment of 1.75% of average annual salary
multiplied by years of credited service. Average annual salary means the average of annual base
salary for the three years of service that produce the highest average.

Contributions and Funding Policy: Contribution requirements of participating employers and
active members to the DB Plan are determined in accordance with Guam law. Employer
contributions are actuarially determined under the One-Year Lag Methodology. Under this
methodology, the actuarial valuation date is used for calculating the employer contributions
for the second following fiscal year. For example, the September 30, 2018 actuarial valuation
was used for determining the year ended September 30, 2020 statutory contributions.
Member contributions are required at 9.52% of base pay.
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Pensions, Continued

A. General Information About the Pension Plans, Continued:

As a result of actuarial valuations performed as of September 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
contribution rates required to fully fund the Retirement Fund liability, as required by Guam law,
forfthe years ended September 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, have been determined
as follows:

2020 2019 2018

Normal costs (% of DB Plan payroll) 13.86%  13.54% 15.97%
Employee contributions {DB Plan employees) 9.52% 9.52% 9.55%
Employer portion of normal costs (% of DB Plan payroll) 4.34% 4.02% 6.42%
Employer portion of normal costs (% of total payroli) 2.39% 2.29% 1.60%
Unfunded liability cost (% of total payroll) 20.70%  21.29% 22.12%
Government contribution as a % of total payroll 23.09%  23.58% 23.72%
Statutory contribution rates as a % of DB Plan payroll:

Employer 26.28%  26.56% 27.83%

Employee 9.52% 9.52% 9,55%

GHURA's contributions to the DB Plan for the years ended September 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018
were $886,974, $887,110 and $792,182, respectively, which were equal to the required
contributions for the respective years then ended.

GHURA has recognized supplemental annuity benefit payments and the COLA payments as
transfers from GovGuam for the years ended September 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, totaling
$171,100, $185,570 and $187,808, respectively, which were equal to the statutorily required
contributions for the respective years then ended.

Members of the DCRS plan, who have completed five years of government service, have a
v}izsted balance of 100% of both member and employer contributions plus any earnings
thereon.

Contributions into the DCRS plan by members are based on an automatic deduction of 5% of
the member’s regular base pay, which increased to 6.2% effective January 1, 2018, The
contribution is periodically deposited into an individual annuity account within the DCRS.
Employees are afforded the opportunity to select from different annuity accounts available
under the DCRS,

Statutory employer contributions for the DCRS plan for the years ended September 30, 2020
and 2019 are determined using the same rates as the DB Plan. Of the amount contributed by
the employer, only 5% of the member’s regular pay is deposited into the DCRS, which increased
to 6.2% effective January 1, 2018. The remaining amount is contributed towards the unfunded
liability of the defined benefit plan.

GHURA’s contributions to the DCRS Plan for the years ended September 30, 2020, 2019 and
2018 were $466,523, $384,338 and $447,374, respectively, which were equal to the required
contributions for the respective years then ended. Of these amounts, $356,540, $294,620 and
$357,167 were contributed toward the unfunded liability of the DB Plan for the years ended
September 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions:

Pension Liability: At September 30, 2020 and 2019, GHURA reported a net pension liability for
its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities measured as of September 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively, which is comprised of the following:

2020 2019
Defined benefit plan $11,913,613 $ 10,897,784
Ad hoc COLA/supplemental annuity
plan for DB retirees 2,212,240 2,021,716
Ad hoc COLA plan for DCRS retirees 779,407 631,920

$ 14,905,260 $ 13,551,420

GHURA’s proportion of the GovGuam net pension liabilities was based on GHURA's expected
plan contributions relative to the total expected contributions received by the respective
pension plans for GovGuam and GovGuam’s component units. At September 30, 2020 and
2019, GHURA's proportionate shares of the GovGuam net pension liabilities were as follows:

2020 2019

Defined benefit plan 0.98% 0.92%
Ad hoc COLA/supplemental annuity

plan for DB retirees 0.68% 0.70%

Ad hoc COLA plan for DCRS retirees 1.30% 1.28%

Pension Expense (Benefit); For the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, GHURA
recognized pension expense for its proportionate share of plan pension expense from the
above pension plans as follows:

2020 2019
Defined benefit plan $ 334,327 S 236,689
Ad hoc COLA/supplemental annuity
plan for DB retirees 46,563 86,786
Ad hoc COLA plan for DCRS retirees 66,681 (197,129)
S 447,571 S 126,346

48



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

(10)  Pensions, Continued

8. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued:

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources: At September 30, 2020 and 2019, GHURA
reported total deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources:
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2020
Ad Hoc COLA/SA Ad Hog COLA
Defingd Benefit Plan Plan for DB Plan for DCRS
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Qutflows of Inflows of Outflows of  Inflows of Outflows of  Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources
Difference between expected
and actual experience s 17,100 $ 105,610 $ 15,330 $ 5,803 4 82,084 § 22,638
Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension
plan invastments 418,921 - - - - -
Changes of assumptions 198,619 34,390 187,644 75,614
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 1,243,514 - 143,100 - 28,000 -
Changes in proportion and difference
between GHURA contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 858,005 - 20,386 30,983 229,497 25,636
$2537,540  $105,61 $377,435 572176 §527,225  $123.888
2019
Ad Hoc COLA/SA Ad Hoe CGLA
Defined Benefit Plan Plan for DB Plan for DCRS
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Ouiflows of Inflows of Outflows of  Inflows of Outflows of  Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources Resqurces
Difference between expected
and actual experience $ 30,755 4 - § 29,911 ) $ 90,791 $ 5,775
Net difference between projected
and actual earnings on pensicn
plan investments - 195,363 - - - -
Changes of assumptions - Co- - 67,102 75,261 84,342
_ Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 1,181,730 159,570 26,000 -
Changes in proportion and difference
between GHURA contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 733,306 - 38,919 - 245,605 25,009
$1.945791  $195363 $228,400  $67.102 $441,657  §119.126
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Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

(10)  Pensions, Continued

B. Pension Liahilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued:

Deferred outflows resulting from contributions subsequent to measurement date will be
recognized as reduction of the net pension liability in the following year. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions at September 30, 2020 will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending Defined Ad Hoc COLA/SA Ad Hoc COLA Plan
September 30 Benefit Plan Plan for DB Retirees for DCRS Retirees
2021 S 507,049 S 71,133 S 42,201
2022 254,886 70,049 42,201
2023 263,818 20,977 42,201
2024 162,663 - 42,201
2025 - - 42,201
Thereafter - - 164,332

S 1,188,416 S 162,159 : $ 375,337

Actuarial Assumptions: Actuarially determined contribution rates for the DB Plan are
calculated as of September 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which
contributions are reported. The methods and assumptions used to determine contribution
rates are as follows:

Valuation Date: September 30, 2018

Actuarial Cost Method: Entry age normal

Amortization Method: Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining Amortization Period: May 1, 2033 (14.58 years remaining as of
September 30, 2018)

Asset Valuation Method: 3-year smoothed market value (effective
September 30, 2009)

Inflation: 2.50% per year

Total payroll growth: 2.75% per year

Salary Increases: 4% to 7.5%

Retirement age: 50% probability of retirement upon first eligibility for

unreduced retirement. Thereafter, the probability of
retirement is 20% for each year until age 75, and
increases to 100% at age 75.

Mortality: RP-2000 healthy mortality table {males +3, females
+2). Mortality for disabled lives is the RP 2000
disability mortality {males +6, females +4}. Both tables
are!projected generationally from 2016 using 30% of
Scale BB,
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Pensions, Continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows

of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued:

The actuarial assumptions used in the September 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period October 1, 2011 to September 30, 2015. The
rationale for each significant assumption is provided in the experience study. To the extent that
actual experience differs from the assumptions, future pension costs will differ. The next
experience study for the period October 1, 2015 to September 30, 2019 is scheduled to be
performed prior the next year’s valuation.

The investment rate assumption as of September 30, 2018 was 7%. The long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and the assumed rate of inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of the expected
nominal return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Target Nominal

Asset Class Allocation Return

U.S. Equities (large cap) : 26.0% 6.81%
U.S. Equities (small cap) 4.0% 8.12%
Non-U.S. Equities 17.0% 8.33%
Non-U.S. Equities (emerging markets) 3.0% 10.28%
U.S. Fixed Income (aggregate) 24.0% 3.87%
Risk Parity 8.0% 5.56%
High Yield Bonds 8.0% 5.45%
Global Real Estate {REITs) 5.0% 8.01%
Master Limited Partnerships 5.0% 7.44%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the DB Plan as
of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was 7.0%, which is equal to the expected investment rate of
return. The expected investment rate of return applies to benefit payments that are funded
by plan assets (including future contributions), which includes all plan benefits except
supplemental annuity payments to DB retirees and ad hoc COLA to both DB and DCRS retirees.
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the supplemental annuity and
ad hoc COLA payments as of September 30, 2019 was 2.66% (4.18% as of September 30, 2018},
which is equal to the rate of return of a high quality bond index.

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis: The following presents the sensitivity of the net pension
liability to changes in the discount rate. The sensitivity analysis shows the impact to GHURA's

proportionate share of the net pension liability if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:

Defined Benefit Plan:

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
6.0% 7.0% 3.0%
Net Pension Liability S 15,040,349 $11,913,613 $9,222,984
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(10)  Pensions, Continued
B. Pension Liahilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued:
Ad Hoc COLA/Supplemental Annuity Plan for DB Retirees:
1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
1.66% 2.66% 3.66%
Net Pension Liability - S 2,440,677 S 2,212,240 . $2,017,484
Ad Hoc COLA Plan for DCRS Retirees:
1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
1.66% 2.66% 3.66%
Net Pension Liability S 883,218 . S 779,407 S 690,544
(11)  Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

GHURA participates in the retiree health care benefits program. GovGuam’s Department of
Administration is responsible for administering the GovGuam Group Health Insurance Program,
which provides medical, dental, and life insurance benefits to retirees, spouses, children and
survivors. Active employees and retirees who waive medical and dental coverage are considered
eligibie for the life insurance benefit only. The program covers retirees and is considered an OPEB
plan.

A. General Information About the OPEB Plan:

Plan Description: The OPEB plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan that provides
healthcare benefits to eligible employees and retirees who are members of the GovGuam
Retirement Fund. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4
of GASB Statement No. 75. The Governor’s recommended budget and the annual General
Appropriations Act enacted by the Guam Legislature provide for a premium level necessary for
funding the program each year on a “pay-as-you-go” basis. Because the OPEB Plan consists
solely of GovGuam’s firm commitment to provide OPEB through the payment of premiums to
insurance companies on behalf of its eligible retirees, no stand-alone financial report is gither
available or generated.

Plan Membership: As of September 30, 2019 and 2018 {the respective measurement periods),
OPEB plan membership consisted of the following as of September 30, 2018 {the actuarial
valuation dates for both years):

2019 2018

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 7,462 7,930
Active plan members 10,832 10,136
Total plan members 18,294 18,066
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), Continued

A. General Information About the OPEB Plan, Continued:

Benefits Provided: The OPEB Plan provides post employment medical, dental and life insurance
benefits to GHURA retirees, spouses, children and survivors, which are the same benefits as
provided to active employees. Active employees and retirees who waive medical and dental
coverage are considered eligible for the life insurance benefit only. GHURA contributes a
portion of the medical and dental premiums, based on a schedule of semi-monthly rates, and
reimburses certain Medicare premiums to eligible retirees. Retirees are also required to pay a
portion of the medical and dental insurance premiums. Three types of health plans are offered
to eligible participants:

o Standard islandwide Preferred Provider Organization' (PPO) Plan
. High Deductible {Health Savings Account - HSA} PPO Plan
) Retiree Supplement Plan (RSP}

The PPO and HSA Plans apply to both active employees and retirees and work with set
deductible amounts whereas the RSP Plan is an added option for retirees only.

Contributions: No employer contributions are assumed to be made since an OPEB trust has not
been established, Instead, the OPEB Plan is financed on a substantially “pay-as-you-go” basis
whereby contributions to the plan are generally made at about the same time and in about the
same amount as benefit payments and expenses becoming due.

During the years ended September 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, GHURA recognized certain on-
behalf payments as transfers from GovGuam, totaling $219,844, $228,999 and $258,531,
respectively, representing certain healthcare benefits that GovGuam’s General Fund paid
directly on hehalf of GHURA retirees and were equivalent to the required contribution for those
years.

. Total OPEB Liability:

As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, GHURA reported a total OPEB liability of $15,873,373 and
$11,630,596, respectively, for its proportionate share of the GovGuam total OPEB liability
measured as of September 30, 2019 and 2018. The foliowing presents GHURA's proportion
change in proportion since the prior measurement date:

Proportion at prior measurement date, September 30, 2018 0.62%
Proportion at measurement date, September 30, 2019 0.62%
Increase in proportion 0.00%
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), Continued

B. Total OPEB Liability, Continued:

The total OPEB Iiabi!it?/ for the OPEB Plan was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
t

September 30, 2019

he measurement date) using the following actuarial assumptions,

applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation:

Amortization method:

Salary increases:

Healthcare cost trend rates:

Dental trend rates:

Participation rates:

Medicare enroliment:

Actuarial cost method:

2.75%.

Level dollar amount over 30 vyears on an open
amortization period for pay-as-you-go funding.

7.5% per year for the first 5 years of service, 6% for 6-10
years, 5% for 11-15 years and 4% for service over 15 years.

For 2019, Non-Medicare 13.5%; Medicare -25%; and Part B
5.33%. For the second year, 6.75% then reducing 0.25%
annually to an ultimate rate of 4.25% for 2029 and later
years. Health care trend assumptions begin at current levels
and grade down over a period of years to a lower level equal
to some real rate plus inflation. The principal components
of health trend are medical inflation, deductible erosion,
cost shifting, utilization, technology and catastrophic
claims. The overall effect of these components are
expected to decline year by year. Medical trend rates are
applied to retiree contributions, Medicare Part B and
Medicare Part D premium reimbursements.

3.8% in year one, 3.75% per year thereafter, based on a
blend of historical retiree premium rate increases as well as
observed U.S. national trends.

Medical - 100% of active employees covered under a
GovGuam medical plan will elect to participate at
retirement. Dental - 100% of active employees under 2
GovGuam dental plan will elect to participate at retirement.
Life - 100% of eligible retirees will elect to participate at
retirement. Current retirees will continue in the GovGuam
plan as provided in the data, and upon attainment of age
65, will remain in that plan or enroll in a Retiree
gqulemental Plan per Medicare Enroliment assumption
elow.

15% of current and future retirees are assumed to enrollin
Medicare and will enroll in a Retiree Supplemental Plan
upon attainment of age 65. All employees retired prior to
September 30, 2008 are assumed ineligible for Medicare
upon attainment of age 65 and therefore will not enroll in
a Medicare Supplemental Plan.

Entry Age Normal. The costs of each employee’s post-
employment benefits are allocated as a level basis over the
earnings of the employee between the employee’s date of
hire and the assumed exit ages.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), Continued

C. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability:

Changes in GHURA’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability for the years ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019
Balance at beginning of the year 511,630,596 $ 14,924,532
Changes for the year:
Service cost 612,534 772,295
Interest 505,950 565,102
Change of assumptions 3,529,030 (1,104,386)
Change in proportionate share (126,609) (28,187}
Differences between expected
and actual experience - (3,240,229)
Benefit payments (278,128) (258,531}
Net change 4,242,777 (3,293,936)
Balance at end of the year $ 15,873,373 $ 11,630,596

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents the
sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The sensitivity analysis
shows the impact to GHURA’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher
than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease in Current 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
1.66% 2.66% 3.66%
Total OPEB Liability $ 18,960,524 $ 15,873,373 $ 13,419,707

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates: The following
presents the sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate.
The sensitivity analysis shows the impact to GHURA’s proportionate share of the total OPEB
liability if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

Healthcare Cost

1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase
Total OPEB Liability $ 12,898,859 $ 15,873,373 519,314,599
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(11)  Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), Continued
D. OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB:
For the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, GHURA reported total OPEB expense of
$657,508 and $487,302, respectively, for its proportionate share of the GovGuam total OPEB
expense measured for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018. At September 30, 2020
and 2019, GHURA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to QPEB from the following sources:
2020 2019
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resgurces
Changes of assumptions S 3,460,081 $ 1,480,044 5 842,358 $1,930,263
Differences between expected .
"and actual experience - 2,081,184 - 2,658,500
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 219,844 - 228,999 -
Changes in proportion and difference
between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 268,368 - 319,202 -
$3,948,203 $ 3,561,228 $ 1,390,559 $ 4,588,763
Deferred outflows resulting from contributions subsequent to measurement date will be
recognized as reduction of the total OPEB liability in the following year. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
at September 30, 2020 will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Year Ending
September 30
2021 S {44,611)
2022 {44,611)
2023 (340,580)
2024 196,761
2025 400,262
5167,221
{12) _ Risk Management

GHURA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; operation liability, errors and omissions, employee injuries and illnesses; employee health,
dental and accident benefits and natural disasters. GHURA maintains commercial insurance to
provide for claims arising from most of these risks except for typhoon insurance.

Beginning in fiscal year 2005, GHURA decided to stop carrying commercial insurance for typhoon
coverage because it was cost-prohibitive. A typhoon insurance coverage waiver was granted by
HUD provided that GHURA establish and maintain a separate typhoon coverage escrow account in
which it will deposit $200,000 annually until the account balance reaches a minimum of balance of
$1 million. HUD must approve each draw against the typhoon coverage escrow account. When
funds are used to pay typhoon claims, GHURA must replenish the escrow account on an annual
basis to maintain the $1 million minimum balance. As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, GHURA
had deposited $1,032,706 and $1,031,578, respectively, into the typhoon coverage escrow
account.

There were no material losses sustained because of GHURA's risk management practices.
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Contingencies

(14)

Federal Award Programs and HUD

GHURA participates in a number of federal award programs for specific purposes that are subject
to review and audit by grantor agencies, namely the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). Cumulative questioned costs of S0 and $7,102 exist from these audits as of
September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The questioned costs will be resolved by the
applicable grantor agency and due to GHURA's inability to predict the ultimate outcome of this
matter, no provision for any liability, if any that may result from this matter has been made in the
accompanying financial statements. Such questioned costs could lead to requests for
reimbursements from the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the
applicable grant.

During fiscal year 2015, GHURA received a letter from the HUD dated May 26, 2015 informing
GHURA of HUD’s DEC on-site review whose report was dated February 20, 2015, Based on the
results of the on-site review, several instances of conflict of interest were cited including one
pertaining to GHURA's prior legal counsel who was a landlord with the Section Housing 8 HCV while
serving as legal counsel for GHURA. DEC recommended that GHURA repay $577,626 from its non-
federal funds for the amounts paid to the attorney as a landlord and for legal services paid while
serving as legal counsel to GHURA. The report is under review with HUD’s Honolulu Field Office
and shared with GHURA for further discussions. No decisions have been made at this time.

During fiscal year 2004, GHURA transferred $1,700,940 from its HCV Program’s unrestricted net
assets to its Low Rent Public Housing Program to construct a new building for its central operations.
GHURA spent approximating $295,000; however, the new building was not constructed. DEC is
recommending that GHURA use non-federal funds repay $1,405,940 to the HCV Program for the
unused funds. The report is under review with HUD’s Honolulu Field Office and shared with GHURA
for further discussions. No decisions have been made at this time. Therefore, no liability that may
ultimately arise from these matters have been recorded in the accompanying financial statements.

Litigation

GHURA is subject to various claims, unlawful detainer complaints and other legal actions in the
normal course of business, GHURA consults their legal counsel whenever there is a potential or
asserted claim and relies on the advice of counsel for direction and for establishing reserves for
potential unfavorable outcomes.

GHURA is involved in a pending litigation filed on September 13, 2019 for an alleged retaliatory
firing of an employee. The plaintiff is seeking for reinstatement to his former position, back wages,
interests and compensation for special damages. The plaintiff was rehired in the same position
during fiscal year 2019.

Economic Dependency

For the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, HUD provided to GHURA $46.34 million and
$42,89 million, respectively, which represent approximately 98% and 97% of GHURA’s total
operating and capital grant revenues, respectively.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Required Supplemental Information {Unaudited)
Schedule of Pensfon Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years®

2020 2019 2018 2017 2015 2015 w014
Statutotily determined contribution H 1,244,540 B 1,181,730 5 1,040,652 $ 1,168,865 1,134,620 1,134,630 1,134,630
Contributlon In relation to the statutorily determined
contributlon 1,192,343 1,255,456 1,044,787 1,026,636 1,100,358 1,052,958 1,115,118
Contributlen {excess} deflclency E 52,087 5 {razes) ¢ 4,098 5 142,229 34,232 alee2 18,512
GHURA's covered-employee payroll ** $ 4,998,061 § 4,745,017 s 4239078 5 4,177,889 4,183,506 4,404,881 4,244,860
Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 23.B6% 26.44% 24.65% 24.57% 26.30% 23.90% 26,29%

* This data Is presented for those years for which informatien is avallable.
** fovered-employee payrofl data from the actuarlal valoation data with one-year lag.

See Accompanying Independent Audltors' Report,
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Required Supplemental Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
tast 10 Fiscal Years®

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Total OPES liability**:

Service cost 5 612,534 & 772,295 ] 865,827 g 698,974 Mot Avellahle
"intarest 505,350 565,102 491,053 435,051 Mot Avallable
Change of assumptlens 3,528,030 {1,104,386) {1,532,055) 1,538,939 Not Avallable
Change In proportionate share (126,608} (28,187} 30,317 - Not Avallable
Differences batween expected and actual experlence - (3,240,229} - - Not Avallable
Banefit payments {278,128 258,531 {245,526} {245,526) Not Avallable
Nat change In total OPER Hability 4,242,777 {3,293,936) {390,384} 2,547,438

Toal OPEB fability - beginning 11,630,556 14,924,532 15,314,916 S 12,767,478 Nt Avallable
Total OPEB [lability - ending 3 15,873,373 $ 11,630,596 $ 14,524,532 $ 15,314,916 $ 12,767,478
Covered payrall as of valuation date $ 4,739,363 5 5,008,944 s 3,794,652 S 3,794,652

Tatal GPER lability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 334.93% 232.20% 393.30% 403.55%

Notes to schedula:

Discount rate 2.66% 4.18% 3.63% 3.058% 3.71%
Changes of beneflt terms!

Nene

Changes of ossumptlons:

Discount rata has changed from respectlve measurement dates

* Infarmation for 2011 - 2016 Is not available

** No assets accumulated In a trust to pay the benefits.

See Accompanying Independent Auditers' Report.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Total OPER llabiliry **

GHURA's proportlon of the total OPEB Liabiiity
GHURA's propartion of the total OPEB Liability
GHURA's covered-employee payroll

GHURA's prapartionate share of the total OPEB Liability
as a percantage of Its covered employee payroll

* |nformation for 2011 - 201615 not avallable
** No assats accumulated in a trust to pay the benefits,

See Accompanying Independent Auditers' Report.

2020

Required Supplemental Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2018

2018 2017
H 2,553,523,376 1,874,970,335 2,431,048,672 2,532,753,040
S 15,873,373 11,630,596 14,924,532 15,314,916
0.62% 0.62% 0.61% 0.60%
4,73%,363 5,008,944 8,784,652 3,794,652
334.93% 232.20% 383.30% 403.55%
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GUANM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Required Supplemental Information (Unaudited)
schedule of QPEB Employer Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years®

2020 2019 2018 2017

Actuarially determined contribution § 1,325,418 3 1,625,198 [ 1,679,438 1,437,562
Contributions [n refation to the actuarizlly determined contrlbution 278,128 258,531 245,526 245,526
Contributlon deficlency - 1,047,290 s 1,366,667 5 1,433,872 1,152,035
Cavered payroll as of valuation date ] 4,738,363 5 5,008,944 3 3,794,652 3,794,652
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 5,87% 5.16% 6.47% 5.47%
Motas to Schedule
Veluation date: Actuarlally determined contributiens rates are calculated as of September 30, 2018,
Method and assumptlons used to determing contributions rates:

Actuarial cost mathod: Entry age normal.

Amertizatlon methad: Level dollar amount en an open amortlzation peried

Amortizatien perloed: 30 years

Inflation: 2.75%

Healthcare cost trend rates: For 2018, Non-Medlcare 13.5%; Medicare -25%; and Part B 5.33%.

For the second year, 6.75% then reducing 0,25% annuaily to
an ultimate rate of 4.25% for 2028 and later years

Salary Increase. 4% to 7.5%

Mortzlity (Healthy Retirea): RKP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, set forward 3
years and 2 years for males and females, respectively.

Mortallty {Dlsabled Retlres): RP-2000 Disakle Mortality Table, set forward 6 years and
4 years for males and females, raspectively.

* Information for 2011 - 2016 Is not avallable

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Schedule of Salaries, Wages and Benefits (Unaudited)
Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Salaries g 5,222,709 4,863,804
Retiremeant benefits 1,405,842 1,282,770
Benefits other than retirement 376,300 350,017
Overtime pay 129,225 117,783
Total salarles, wages and benefits S 7,134,076 6,614,374
Employeas at end of year 98 100
Note 1: The salaries, wages and benefits noted above are reported in the accompanying

financial statements on a functional basis by program for the years ended
Septembher 30, 2020 and 20183.

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
[A Component Unit of the Government of Guam]

Comblning Statements of Net Posltion
September 30, 2020

Ma]oi Non-Major Other
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
ASSETS AND QFFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES Funds Funds Funds Ellminatlons Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equlvalents $ 2,240,532 5 12,001,852 § 742,438 § -1 14,884,922
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted - 2,172,317 7,560 - 2,179,877
Recelvables, net:
Due from other fupds 323,187 1,475,385 5,401,974 {7,200,548) .
HUD 235,984 1,215,131 . - 1,451,115
Notes recelvable - current - 112,084 224,647 - 335,731
Tenants 133,676 38,046 29,900 - 201,622
Other government ) - - 9,774 - 5,774
Acerued Interast recelvable - 12,036 1 - 12,037
Miscellaneous 302,28% - 63,150 - 365,445
Allowance for doubtful accounts (5,228) {57,514) [154,030) - {256,772)
Prepayments and other current assets - 15,903 80,752 - 96,655
Inventery 14,716 2_91,123 - - 305,839
Total eurrent assets 3,245,156 17,276,463 6,366,176 (7,200,546) 19,687,249
Noncurrent assets:
Notes receivable, net of current portion - 4,227,528 168,930 - 4,397,508
Capital assets:
Depregiable assets, net of accumulated depreclation 9,524,603 3,493,874 502,863 - 13,521,34¢
Non-depraciable assets 1,505,128 2,453,292 165,105 - 4,123,523
Other rezl estate - - 2,636,152 - 2,636,152
Total nencurrent assets 11,029,731 10,174,694 3,474,100 - 24,678,525
Tatal assets 14,274,887 27,451,157 9,840,276 {7,200,545) 44,365,774
Deferred outflows of resources:
Pension . 212,166 1,707,631 822,403 - 3,442,200
OPEB 907,236 2,125,147 ©15,910 - 3,948 293
Total deferred outflows of raseurces 1,819,402 3,832,778 1,738,313 - 7,390,493
Total assets and deferrad outflows of resources 4 16,094,280 S 31,283,935 § 11,578,589 & [7,200,546) § 51,786,267
LABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET PQSITION
current llabllities:
Accounts payable and cther deposits ] 8,952 § 11,660 % 2,010,764 5 -5 2,081,376
Dus to HUR 16,332 - - - 16,342
Due to other funds 1,463,268 2,306,455 3,430,723 {7,200,546) -
Current portion of accrued compensated absences 21,598 45,041 30,262 - 86,901
Current portion of note payable 79,000 - - - 79,000
Accrued payroll and other liabilltles 24,943 58,475 178,903 - 262,321
Unearned revenues 372,886 1,156,509 28,420 - 1,557,815
Securlty and escrow deposlts 234,765 161,836 3,173 - 399,774
Other current liabilitles 24,323 916 156,548 - 181,787
Total gurrent liabilities 2,246,167 3,740,892 5,838,793 (7,200,54€) 4,625,306
Accrued compansated absences, net of current portion 181,032 400,126 194,315 - 775,474
Note payahle, net of current portion 742,572 - - . 742,572
Net pension liability 4,219,016 7,072,048 3,614,196 - 14,505,260
OPER flabllity 3,647,370 8,543,757 3,682,246 - 15,873,373
Total llablilties 11,036,157 _19,756,823 13,329,551 {7,200,546) 35,921,985
Deferred inflows of resources:
Pension ’ 66,037 166,303 69,334 - 301,674
OPEB 818,298 1,816,810 826,120 - 3,561,228
Tote deferred inflows of resources 834,335 2,083,113 895,454 - 3,862,902
Net position:
Net Investment in capltal assets 10,208,159 5,947,166 3,304,120 - 19,459,445
Restricted 896,957 17,382,677 - - 18,279,634
Unrestricted 16,831,319) 113,885,844 (5,950,536) - {26,767,699)
Total net pasition 4,173,797 9,443,989 {2,646,416) - 10,971,280
Total fiabifities, deferred Iinflows of resourcas and
net position 5 16,094,288 S 31,283,935 5 11,578,589 S (7,200,546) § 51,756,267

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
|4 Component Unlt of the Government of Guam]

Comblning Statements of Revenues, Expensas and Chapges In Net Posltlon
Year Enced September 30, 2020

Majar Nen-Majer Other
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise
Funds Funds Funds Ellminatlons Total
Operating revenues:

HUD PHA Operating Grants ] 36,016,834 § 8,705,652 & -5 -8 44,722,486

Tenant rental Income 103,574 645,886 - - 749,460

Management feas - . 1,170,155 {1,170,155) -

Asset manzgement fees - - 90,000 {90,000) -

Bookkeeping fees - - 288,817 {288,817) -

Other income 800 221,006 137,706 - 359,541

Total operating revenues 36,121,208 9,572,543 1,686,678 11,548,972} 45,831,457
Operating expenses:

Houslng assistance payments 37,382,648 116,073 - - 32,498,722

Salaries and wages 1,484,484 1,877,569 1,306,401 - 4,668,454

Depreciation 1,326,778 2,021,230 83,185 - 3,431,193

Employee benefits 894,637 970,823 362,353 - 2,227,813

Other adminlstrative expenses 310,275 1,598,572 121,649 - 2,030,496

Repairs and maintenance 28,723 1,708,352 50,363 - 1,788,438

Retlree healthcare costs and other pension benefits 128,674 461,527 458,251 - 1,048,452

Utilities 192,524 233,712 66,526 - 492,762

Office expanse 118,170 144,329 30,699 - 253,198

tompensated absences 38,485 72,388 63,645 - 174,522

Insurance 16,451 127,571 20,006 - 164,028

Professional fees 63,021 22,658 67,937 - 153,616

Bad debts expense 2,458 48,264 6,100 - 56,822

Protective services - 44,060 - - 44,060

Payments In lieu of taxes - 32,897 - - 32,897

Advertising 11,262 5,878 3,293 . 20,434

Management fees 560,827 605,328 - {1,170,155) -

Bookkeeping fees 222,682 66,135 - {28g,817) -

Asset managernent foes - 50,000 - (c0,000} -

Total operating expenses 37,782,100 19,252,367 2,640,412 {1,548,972) 49,125,907
Operating loss {1,660,852) |679,824) (953,734 - (3,234,450)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses);

Contributions from GovGuam far retiree benefits - - 390,944 - 390,944

Fraud recovery 30,390 - - - 30,350

Interest income - 13,466 316 - 13,782

Other income 48,091 11,437 500 - 60,028

Interest expense {51,809) - - - {51,805}

Total nonpperating revenues, het 26,672 24,903 351,760 - 443,335
Loss bafore capltal grants and contributions {1,634,220) {654,921} (561,974) - [2,851,115)
Capital grants and contributions;

Federal grants 677,540 - - - 677,540
Change In net positlon [956,680) {654,921) {561,974) - {2,173,575)
Net position at the beginning of the year 5,130,477 10,098,920 (2,084,442) - 13,144,955
Net position at the end of the year S 4,173,787 & 9,443,995 S (2,646,416} -8 10,971,380

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Government of Guam)

Combining Staterments of Net Positlon - Majer Enterprise Funds

ASSETS AND DEFERRED QUTFELOWS OF RESOURCES
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net;
Due from other funds
HUD
Tenants
Miscellaneous
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventory

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Depreaclable assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Non-depreciable assets
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources:
Pension
OREB
Total deferred cutflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION

Current liabilittes:
Aceounts payable and other deposits
Due to HUD
Due to other funds
Current portion of accrued compensated absences
Current portion of note payable
Accrued payroll and other labiilties
Unaarned revenues
Securlty and escrow depaosits
Othar current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion
Note payable, net of current portion
Net pension liability
OPER liability
Total liabillties
Deferred inflows of resources:
Pension
OPEB
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net position;
Net investment In capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Taotal net position

Total ltabliities, deferred inflows of resources and
net posltion

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

September 30, 2020

Section 8 Public Housing Supportive
Housing Capital Fund Housing for
Choice Voucher Program the Elderly Total
5 1,493,070 § - & 747,462 $ 2,240,532
2,888 320,575 (278) 323,187
{40,647} 276,631 - 235,984
132,169 - 1,507 133,676
302,289 P - 302,289
- - (5,228) {5,228)
. 14,716 14,716
1,889,768 587,206 758,181 3,245,156
217,758 8,810,028 496,816 5,524,503
- - 1,505,128 1,505,128
217,758 8,810,029 2,001,944 14,029,73%
2,107,527 9,407,235 2,760,125 14,274,887
864,576 - 47,590 912,166
832,198 - 75,038 507,236
1,686,774 - 122,628 1,819,402
8 3,804,301 § 9,407,235 § 2,882,753 § 16,094,289
$ {24,674) 3 - § 33,626 $ 8,952
16,332 - - 16,332
1,109,324 167,767 186,277 1,463,368
20,145 - 1,452 21,598
- - 79,000 79,000
20,500 2,395 1,648 24,8432
66,913 305,973 - 372,886
221,294 - 13,471 234,765
- - 24,323 24,323
1,430,235 476,135 339,797 2,246,167
165,955 - 15,077 181,032
- - 742,572 742,572
4,052,536 - 166,480 4,219,016
3,345,694 - 301,676 3,647,370
8,094,420 476,135 1,585,602 11,036,157
59,820 - 6,217 66,037
750,616 - 67,682 818,298
810,436 - 73,899 884,335
247,758 8,810,029 1,180,372 10,208,155
293,579 121,071 482,307 896,957
16,511,892} - {413,427) {5,931,319)
{6,000,555) 8,531,100 1,243,252 4,173,797
] 3,804,301 § 9,407,235 § 2,882,753 S 16,094,289
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Camponent Unit of the Government of Guam)

Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Pesition - Major Enterprise Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Section § Publlc Housing Supportive
Houslng Capltal Fund Housing for
Choice Voucher Program the Elderly Total
Cperating revenues:

HUD PHA Cperating Grants H 34,488,737 § 805,466 § £22,631 $ 36,016,834

Tenant rental Income - - 103,574 103,574

Other income - 8C0 - 800

Total operating revenues 34,488,737 906,266 726,205 36,121,208
Operating expenses:

Housing asslstance payments 32,382,649 - - 32,382,549

Salarles and wages 1,161,362 221,580 101,542 1,484,484

Depraclation 46,158 1,167,772 112,848 1,326,778

Employee benefits 697,303 71,686 125,648 394,637

Other administrative expenses 284,377 798 25,100 310,275

Repairs and maintenance 40 “ 28,683 28,723

Retirea healthcare costs and other penslon henefits 110,987 - 17,687 128,674

Utllitles 3,031 - 189,493 192,524

Office expense 109,746 13 8,411 118,170

Compensated absences 39,942 - {1,457} 38,485

Insurance 10,266 - 6,185 15,451

Profassional fees 61,517 - 1,504 63,021

Bad debts expense - - 2,458 2,458

Advertising 6,919 4,041 302 11,262

Management fees 519,436 - 41,391 560,827

Bookkeeping fees 222,682 - - 222,682

Total operating expenses 35,656,415 1,465,850 650,795 37,782,100
Operating {loss) Income (1,167,678) {559,624] 66,410 (1,6_60,892)
Nonoperating revenues {expenses):

Fraud recovery 30,390 - - 30,390

Other income 44,718 - 3,373 48,091

Interest expense - - |51,809) {51,809)

Total nonoperating revenues {expenses), net 75,108 - {48,436) 26,672
{Loss) Income before capital grants and contributions {1,092,570) {559,624) 17,974 [1,634,220)
Capital grants and contributions:

Federal grants - 677,540 - 677,540
Change in net position (1,082,570) 117,916 17,974 |958,680]
Net position at the beginning of the year {4,807,985) 8,813,184 1,225,278 5,130,477
Net position at the end of the year 5 {6,000,555} S 8,931,100 $ 1,243,252 $ 4,173,797

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Companent Unit of the Gevernment of Guam)

Comblning Statements of Net Pesttion - Other Enterprise Funds
Septembar 30, 2020

Local Revalving Trust Other
ASSETS AND DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Funds Funds funds Funds Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents s 247,938 § 379,411 § 75,434 29,654 § 742,438
Cash and cash equivalents - restrictad 7,560 - - - 7,560
Recelvables, nat:
Due from other funds 792,063 4,058,237 3,865 546,809 5,401,574
Notaes receivable - current 224,647 - - “ 224,647
Tehants 28,800 - - - 24,900
Other government - 9,774 - - 2,774
Accrued Interest raceivable - - 1 g 1
Miscellaneous 4,740 54,980 - 3,440 63,160
Allowance far doubtful accounts {191,480) (2,550) - - {194,030)
Prepayments and other current assets - 80,752 - - BD,752
Total current assets 1,115,369 4,581,604 79,300 589,903 6,366,176
Noneurrent assets:
Notes recelvable, net of current pertion 169,980 - - - 169,980
Capital assets:
Depreclable assets, nat of accumulated depreciation 217,326 31,079 - 254,458 502,853
Non-depreciable assats - 41,598 - 123,507 165,105
Qther rea! estate 2,636,152 - - - 2,636,152
Total noncurrent assets 3,023,458 72,677 - 377,965 3,474,100
Total assets 4,138,827 4,654,281 79,300 967,868 3,840,276
Deferred outflows of resources:
Pension 822,403 - - - 822,403
QPEB 315,810 - - - 915,210
Total deferred outflows of resources 1,738,313 - - - 1,758,313
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 5 5,877,140 § 4,654,281 § 78,300 967,868 S 11,578,589
LIABILITIES, REFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION
Current llabllitles:
Accounts payable and other deposits 3 27,835 3 1,982,929 % - -3 2,010,764
[ue to other funds 556 2,004,939 - 1,425,228 3,430,723
Currant portion of accrusd compensated absences 30,262 - - - 30,262
Accrued payroll and other lfabllitles 42,869 135,034 - - 178,903
Unearned revenues 23,155 5,265 - - 28,420
Securlty and escrow deposits . 3,173 - - - 3,173
Other current liabllltles - 156,548 - - 156,548
Total current llabllities 127,850 4,285,715 - 1,425,228 5,838,793
Accrued compensated absences, nat of current pertlon 194,316 - - - 194,316
Net pension liabllity 3,614,196 - - - 3,614,196
QPREB llabllity 3,682,246 - - - 3,682,246
Total llabllities 7,618,608 4,285,715 - 1,425,228 13,329,551
Deferred inflows of resources:
Pension 69,334 - - - 63,334
QPEB 826,120 - - - 826,120
Total deferred inflows of resources 895,454 - - - 895,454
Net pasition:
Net Investment in capltal assets 2,853,478 72,677 - 377,965 3,304,120
Restricted - - - - -
Unrestricted (5,450,400} 295,889 79,300 (835,325} {5,950,536)
Total nat positien {2,686,522 368,566 79,300 {457,360) {2,646,415)
Total Nabllitles, deferred inflows of rasources and ' - .
net position 5 5,877,340 $ 4,654,281 § 79,300 967,868 & 11,578,589

Sea Accompanylng Independent Auditors' Report,
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
{A Component Unlt of the Government of Guam}

Combulning Statements of Reventies, Exgenses and Changes in Net Positien -« Other Enterprise Funds
Year Ended Septamber 30, 2020

Local Revelving Trust Gther
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
Qperating revenues:
Managemant fees 3 1,170,155 § -5 -8 - 3 1,170,155
Asset management feas 90,000 - - - 90,000
Bopkkeeping fees 288,817 - - - 288,817
Qther Income 50,885 86,811 - - 137,706
Total operating revenues 1,599,867 86,811 - - 1,686,678
Operating expanses;
Sataries and wages 1,257,866 47,919 - ElE 1,306,403
Depreclation 50,674 8,270 - 23,244 23,185
Employee bengfits 345,824 16,326 - 203 362,353
Other admlnlstrative expensas 28,655 81,295 - 11,699 121,649
Repalrs snd maintenance 50,363 - - - 50,363
Retiree healthcara costs and other pensien benefits 67,307 390,944 - - 458,251
Utilities 65,526 - - - 66,526
Offlee expense 30,537 138 - 24 30,688
Compenasated absances 63,649 - - - 63,549
Insurance 20,006 N - - 20,006
Professlonal fees 39,234 - - 28,703 67,937
Rad debts expensa . 6,100 - - - £,100
Advertlsing 3,293 - - - 3,293
Total oparating expensss 2,030,031 545,832 - 64,489 2,640,412
Dperating loss {430,154) {459,081 - {64,489) {955,734)
Nonoperating revenues:
Contributicns from GovGuam for retirea benefits - 390,244 - - 390,944
Interest income 102 60 86 51 316
Other Income - 500 - - 500
Total neneperating revenues 109 391,504 26 61 391,750
Change In net position (420,055) (67,577) 86 {64,428) (561,974)
Net position at the beginning of the year {2,206,867) 436,143 79,214 (392,932) {2,084,442)
Nat position at the end of the yaar $ (2,636,922) % 368,566 % 79,300 § {457,360) $ [2,646,418)

See Accompanying Independant Audltors' Report,
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- Deloitte & Touche LLP
361 5. Marine Corps Drive
O Tamuning, GU 96913-3973

LSA

Tel: {671) 646-3884
Fax: (671) 649-4932
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
- COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Guam Housing and
Urban Renewal Authority {GHURA), which comprise the statement of net position as of September 30,
2020, and the related statements of revenues and expenses and changes in net position, and of cash
flows for the vear then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated March , 2021. Our report includes an explanatory paragraph concerning the
impact of COVID-19.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements. we considered GHURA's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control} as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of GHURA’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of GHURA's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or emplovees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weaknessis a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies. in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet impertant enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance. '

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragranh of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
mav exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identifv
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identifv
certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanving Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs as items 2020-001, 2020-002, and 2020-004 that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.



Deloitte.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether GHURA's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compiiance with those
provisions was not an obijective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

GHURA'’s Response to Findings

GHURA's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accoimpanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. GHURA's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

M&m\.@

March 30, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Commissioners
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority’s (GHURA’s) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of GHURA’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30,
2020. GHURA’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of GHURA’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about GHURA’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of GHURA’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, GHURA complied, in all material respects, with the tvpes of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended September 30, 2020.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanving
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2020-002 through 2020-005. Our opinion on each
major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.

GHURA’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanving Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. GHURA’s response was not subiected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the response,

GHURA is responsible for preparing a corrective action plan to address each audit finding included in
our auditor’s report. GHURA's corrective action plan was not subiected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of GHURA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the tvoes of compliance reauirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered GHURA's internal contro! over compliance with the tvpes of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each maior federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each maior federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of GHURA's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not aliow management or emplovees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a tvoe of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a tvpe of comnpliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timelv basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over complianceis a deficiencv, or a combination of
deficiencies. in internal control over compliance with a tvpe of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, vyet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identifv all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies mav exist that have not been identified. We did not identify anv
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, described in the accompanving
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2020-002 through 2020-005 that we consider to
be significant deficiencies.
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GHURA’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described
in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, GHURA’s response was not subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the response,

GHURA is responsible for preparing a corrective action plan to address each audit finding included in
our auditor’s report. GHURA’s corrective action plan was not sublected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solelv to describe the scope of our
testing of internal contro! over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of GHURA as of and for the vear ended September 30, 2020,
and have issued our report thereon dated March 30, 2021, which contained an unmodified opinion on
those financial statements and included an explanatory paragraph concerning the impact of COVID-19.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole,
The accompanving Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a reauired part of the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlving accounting and other records used to prenare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directlv to the
underlving accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

ANy

March 30, 2021



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Federal Passed Through Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title CFDA Number to Subrecipients Expendltures
U.5, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
Direct Programs:
COVID-19 Central Office Cost CARES Act Funding 14,CCC 5 1,419
Supportive Housing for the Elderly 14.157 565,093
Multi-Family Housing Service Coordinaters 14,151 48,528
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster:
Community Developmeant Block Grants/Special Purpose Grants/Tnsular Area 14.225 $ 233,978 2,141,697
CD8G - Entitlament Grants Cluster Total 2,141,697
COVID-19 Emergency Solutions Grant Program CARES Act 14,231 901
Emergency Sciutions Grant Program 14,231 153,210 244,222
Home Investment Partnerships Pragram 14.239 4,582,704
Continuum of Care Program 14,267 371,676 706,630
Public and Indizn Housing 14.850 4,320,537
Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services - Service Coordinaters 14.870 32,253
Housing Youcher Cluster:
COVID-19 HCV CARES Act Funding 14.HCC 10,766
Section 8 Housing Cholge Vouchers 14.871 35,290,084
Maingtream Vouchers 14,879 116,073
Housing Voucher Cluster Total 35,416,923
COVID-19 Public Housing CARES Act Funding ) 14.PHC 27,715
Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 1,623,731
Family Self-Sufficiency Program 14.896 134,623
Total U.S, Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 759,464 S 45,846,977
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 759,484 % 49,846,977
See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards,
Reconcillation of total aperating expenses to total expenditures of Federal awards:
Total Operating expenses $ 49,125,907
Plus loans receivable, beginning balances:
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 4,157,058
Community Development Biock Grants/Special Purpose Grants/insular Areas ) 436,437
Plus Management Fees:
Supportive Housing for the Elderly Management Fees 41,393
HCV Management Fees © 519,436
HCV Management Fees - CARES 709
PH Management Fees 607,909
PH Management Fees - CARES 708
COCC Management Fees - CARES 1,419
Plus PH Asset Management Fees 90,000
Plus Bookkeeping Fees:
HCV Bookkeeplng Fees 222,683
PH Bookkeeping Fees 66,135
Plus Capital Assets 1,503,408
Less Depreciation expense {3,348,008)
Less Pension expense included In employee henefits {447,574)
Less Retiree healthcare costs and other pension henefits {1,048,452)
Less Other Enterprise Funds not incluged in SEFA (2,182,191}
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards s 49,846,977



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2020

1. Scope of Audit

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA), a component unit of the Government
of Guam, was formed primarily to provide safe, decent, sanitary, and affordable housing for low- to
moderate-income families and elderly families in the Territory of Guam. Only the operations of
GHURA are included within the scope of the Single Audit. The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development is the oversight agency for GHURA’s Single Audit.

2. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
award activity of GHURA under programs of the federal government for the year ended September
30, 2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of GHURA, it is not intended to and does not
present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of GHURA.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis of Accounting

For purposes of this Schedule, certain accounting procedures were followed, which help
illustrate the expenditures of the individual programs. Expenditures reported on the Schedule
are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following
the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Disbursements made to subrecipients
related to the grant agreements are reported as expenditures.

b. Subgrants
Certain program funds are passed through GHURA te subrecipient organizations. The Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards does not contain separate schedules disclosing how the
subrecipients outside of GHURA’s control utilized the funds.

c. Funds Received

GHURA received all the funds indicated on this Schedule in a direct capacity in fiscal year 2020.
GHURA also administers all the funds and is responsible for compliance with the laws and
regulations.

d. Indirect Costs
GHURA does not have an indirect cost negotiation agreement and does not elect to use the de

minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.414.



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, Continued
Year Ended September 30, 2020

4. Loan Funds

GHURA, on behalf of the Government of Guam, has been designated the responsibility of
implementing and carrying out the objectives of the HOME Program. The program is designed to
increase homeownership and affordable housing opportunities for low- and very low-income
Americans. HOME loan applicants that have been determined to be eligible for financial assistance
are required to comply with the terms and requirements. Balances and transactions relating to the
HOME program are included in GHURA's financial statements. Loans made during the year and the
balances of loans from previous years for which the federal government imposes continuing
compliance requirements are included in the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule. As of
September 30, 2020, the HOME and CDBG Program expenditures include $425,646 and $1,705,260
in current year disbursements and the beginning balance of HOME and CDBG loans of $4,157,058
and $436,437 with continuing compliance requirements, respectively. The balance of HOME
Investment Partnerships and CDBG grant loans outstanding and recorded by GHURA at September
30, 2020 is $4,372,504 and $361,735, respectively.



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements

1. Type of report the auditors issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal contro! over financial reporting:

2. Material weakness{es) identified? No
3. Significant deficiency(ies} identified? Yes
4. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:
5. Material weakness(es) identified? No
6. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes

7. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

8. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes

9. ldentification of major federal programs:

CFDA
Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.157 Supportive Housing for the Elderly
Housing Voucher Cluster:
14 HCC HCV CARES Act Funding
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
14.879 Mainstream Vouchers

14.PHC/14.872 Public Housing CARES Act Funding/Public Housing Capital Fund

10. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
Programs: $1,495,409

11. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
Section Ii - Financial Statement Findings

Reference Number Findings

2020-001 General Ledger and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
2020-002 Reporting
2020-004 Reporting



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended September 30, 2020
Section Il - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Reference CFDA
Number Number Findings

2020-002 14.157 Reporting

2020-003 14.157 Special Tests and Provisions-Residual Receipts Account
2020-004 14.871/14.879 Reporting
2020-005 14.872 Procurement and Suspension and Debarment

Total Federal Questioned Costs

10

Questioned

Costs

$

———



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Finding No.: 2020-001
Area: General Ledger and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Criteria:

General ledger balances and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) should be
periodically reconciled.

Condition:

The SEFA was provided on February 17, 2021, which is a six-month improvement over the prior year’s
August submission. However, the SEFA did not include approximately $1.6M in capital outlays. GHURA
corrected the SEFA on March 29, 2021.

Cause:

GHURA did not effectively perform monitoring controls over the SEFA,

Effect:

On an interim basis, the SEFA may be materially misstated and could impact the ability to facilitate
timely and accurate interim and external financial reporting.

Identification as a Repeat Finding: 2019-001

Recommendation:

GHURA should develop and implement controls over the timely preparation and reconciliation of the
SEFA to the general ledger. Furthermore, GHURA should consider obtaining training for accounting
personnel relative to Uniform Guidance requirements for the SEFA.

Views of Responsible Officials:

Additional accounting personnel resources were hired and will continue to address accounting
reconciliations and SEFA preparation, with the ultimate goal of the general ledger reconciled to the
SEFA, and to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the SEFA.

GHURA’s Corrective Action Plan provides additional details.

11



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Finding No.: 2020-002

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
CFDA Program: 14.157 Supportive Housing for the Eiderly

Federal Award No.:  Section 8 Contract Number GQ10R000001

Area: Reporting

Questioned Costs: SO

Criteria:

In accordance with applicable reporting requirements, each recipient that administers covered public
and Indian housing assistance, regardless of the amount expended, must submit HUD 60002, Section 3
Summary Report, Economic Opportunities for Low- and Very Low-Income Persons, using the automated
Section 3 Performance Evaluation and Registry System (SPEARS) (24 CFR sections 135.3(a)(1) and
135.90).

Condition:

GHURA did not submit the required HUD 60002 report.

Cause:

GHURA did not enforce compliance with applicable reporting requirements. Information technology
issues with SPEARS is preventing submission as of March 2021.

Effect:

GHURA is in noncompliance with applicable reporting requirements. No questioned cost is presented
as we are unable to quantify the extent of noncompliance.

Identification as a Repeat Finding:  2019-005 for CFDA 14.871/14.879 Housing Voucher Cluster

Recommendation:

Responsible personnel should enforce compliance with applicable reporting requirements and should
continue to coordinate with HUD to resolve technical issues with SPEARS so that the reports can be
submitted.

Views of Responsible Officials:

GHURA sought guidance with U.S. HUD Section 3 Division to verify if HUD Form 60002 is required when
reserve funds were used versus for construction or renovation activity during the fiscal year for the
Housing Choice Voucher Program. However, HUD Section 3 did not provide a response to GHURA’s
question. GHURA Management will seek further guidance with its Field Office Representatives to
ensure compliance efforts are acceptable.

GHURA’s Corrective Action Plan provides additional details.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Finding No.: 2020-003

Federal Agency: 1.5, Department.of Housing and Urban Development
CFDA Program: 14.157 Supportive Housing for the Elderly

Federal Award No.: Section 8 Contract Number GQ10R0O00001

Area: Special Tests and Provisions - Residual Receipts Account

Questioned Costs: SO

Criteria:

In accordance with applicable special tests and provisions requirements, any funds in the project funds
account {including earned interest) at the end of the fiscal year shali be deposited in a federally insured
account within 60 days following the end of the fiscal year. Withdrawals from this account may be
made only for project purposes and with the approval of HUD (24 CFR sections 891.400(¢) and
891.600(e)).-

Condition:

At September 30, 2020, the unobligated balance of funds in the project funds account was $175,527.
Such residual was not deposited in the established account for residual receipts until March 2021. No
questioned cost is presented as the residual balance was not expended.

Cause:

GHURA did not enforce compliance with applicable 5peciai tests and provisions requirements over the
residual receipts account.

Effect:

GHURA is in noncompliance with applicable special tests and provisions requirements for the residual
receipts account. There is a potential for delayed transfers of residual balances to be expended without
prior approval by HUD.

Recommendation:

Responsible personnel should enforce compliance with applicable special tests and provisions
requirements over the residual receipts account.

Views of Responsible Officials:

The balance of funds in the project funds account, net of outstanding checks, was $175,527.43. This
amount was deposited in the project reserve account on March 26, 2021.

GHURA's Corrective Action Plan provides additional details.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Finding No.: 2020-004

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
CFDA Program: 14.871/14.879 Housing Voucher Cluster

Area: Reporting

Questioned Costs: SO

Criteria:

Each recipient must submit HUD 60002, Section 3 Summary Report, Economic Opportunities for Low-
and Very Low-Income Persons.

Condition:
GHURA did not submit the required HUD 60002 report.
Cause:

GHURA did not enforce compliance with applicable reporting requirements. Information technology
issues with SPEARS is preventing submission as of March 2021.

Effect:

GHURA is in noncompliance with applicable reporting reguirements. No questioned cost is presented
as we are unable to quantify the extent of noncompliance.

Identification as a Repeat Finding: 2019-005

Recommendation:

Responsible personnel should enforce compliance with applicable reporting requirements and should
continue to coordinate with HUD to resolve technical issues with SPEARS so that the reports can be
submitted.

Views of Responsihle Officials:

GHURA sought guidance with U.S. HUD Section 3 Division to verify if HUD Form 60002 is required when
reserve funds were used versus for construction or renovation activity during the fiscal year for the
Housing Choice Voucher Program. However, HUD Section 3 did not provide a response to GHURA’s
question. GHURA Management will seek further guidance with its Field Office Representatives to
ensure compliance efforts are acceptable.

GHURA's Corrective Action Plan provides additional details.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Finding No.: 2020-005

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
CFDA Program: 14.872 Capital Fund Program

Federal Award No.: GQO8P001501-18

Area: Procurement and Suspension and Debarment

Questioned Costs: S0

Criteria:

In accordance with applicable procurement and suspension and debarment requirements, a state must
follow the same policies and procedures it uses for procurements from its non-federal funds. Therefore,
sealed bidding shall be used for all contracts that exceed the small purchase threshold of $50,000 for
construction,

Condition:
For one (or 17%) of 6 transactions tested, aggregating $331,314 of $1,877,176 in total non-payroll

Program expenditures with contractors, the small purchase procurement method was used in June
2019 to procure a construction contract in excess of $50,000, as follows:

Project  Document ID Date Vendor No.  Amount Tested Contract Amount
AMP2 2020-12-504  01/02/2020 CO00001791 $ 27,009 $93,316
Cause:

GHURA did not enforce compliance with applicable procurement requirements,

Effect:

GHURA is in potential noncompliance with applicable procurement requirements. No questioned cost
is presented as the applicable small purchase threshold for the Government of Guam as a whole is
$100,000 for construction. Subsequently, in August 2020, GHURA aligned its Procurement Policy with
the Government of Guam thresholds.

Identification as a Repeat Finding:  2019-006

Recommendation:

Responsible procurement personnel should enforce compliance with GHURA’s written procurement
policy and should monitor such policy for timely alignment with any future changes to the Government
of Guam’s procurement regulations accordingly.

15



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Finding No.: 2020-005, Continued

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
CFDA Program: 14.872 Capital Fund Program

Federal Award No.: GQO8P001501-18

Area: Procurement and Suspension and Debarment

Questioned Costs: SO

Views of Responsible Officials:

GHURA aligned its Procurement Policy with federal and local laws and regulations governing small
purchase procurement which reflected the Authority’s intent to comply with the existing maximum
limits for such purchases and all purchases. Policy amendment was adopted by the GHURA Board of
Commissioners to increase the small purchase limit to the legal limit of $100,000. GHURA procurement
management had been adhering to the Authority’s approved policy since approval of BOC Resolution
No. FY2020-21, Resolution Amending the Procurement Policy for the Guam Housing and Urban
Renewal Authority, during the BOC Meeting dated August 28, 2020. Therefore, GHURA disagrees with
this finding.

GHURA’s Corrective Action Plan provides additional details.

Auditor Response:

Our finding acknowledges that the policy alignment occurred in August 2020 and is for a transaction
that occurred seven months prior to the corrective action.

16
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Plan of Corrective Action
Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
September 30, 2020
Finding No.: 2020-001
Area; General Ledger and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Condition:

The SEFA was provided on February 17, 2021, which is a six-month improvement over the prior
year’s August submission. However, the SEFA did not include approximately $1.6M in capital
outlays. GHURA corrected the SEFA on March 29, 2021.

Corrective Action Stated and Taken:

Additional accounting personnel resources were hired and will contioue to address accounting
reconciliations and SEFA preparation, with the ultimate goal of the general ledger reconciled to the
SEFA, and to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the SEFA.

Responsible Party:

Lucele Leon Guerrero, Controller

Anticipated Date of Completion:

March 29, 2021

GHURA does not discriminaic against persons with disabilities.
"The Chief Planner has been designated as Section 504 Coordinator.
The Coordinator can be contacted at the above address and telephone numbers.

17



& UERAN
ATAY
% §

Jé
2
»

0, 2g6n#”

GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Plan of Corrective Action
Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued

September 30, 2020
Finding No.; 2020-002
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Renewal
CFDA Program: 14.157 Supportive Housing for the Elderly
Federal Award No.: Section 8 Contract Number GQ10R(}0001
Area: Reporting
Questioned Costs: $0
Condition;

GHURA did not submit the required HUD 60002 report.

Corrective Action Stated and Taken:

GHURA sought guidance with U.S. HUD Section 3 Division to verify if HUD Form 60002 is required when
reserve funds were used versus for construction or renovation activity during the fiscal year for the Housing Choice
Voucher Program. However, HUD Section 3 did not provide a response to GHHURAs question,

GHURA Management will seek further guidance with its Field Office Representatives to ensure compliance efforts-
are acceptable.

Responsible Party:

Sonny Perez, Architectural & Engineering Manager

Anticipated Date of Completion:

On-going.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Plan of Corrective Action
Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
September 30, 2020
Finding No.: 2020-003
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Renewal
CFDA Program: 14.157 Supportive Housing for the Elderly
Federal Award No.: Section 8 Contract Number GQLOR000001
Area: Special Tests and Provisions — Residual Receipts Account
Questioned Costs: $0
Condition:

At September 30, 2020, the unobligated balance of funds in the project finds account was $175,527. Such residual
was not deposited in the established account for residual receipts until March 2021. No questioned cost is presented
as the residual balance was not expended.

Corrective Action Stated and Taken:

The balance of fimds in the project funds account, net of outstanding checks, was §175,527.43. This amount was
deposited in the project reserve account on March 26, 2021,

Responsible Party:
Lucele Leon Guetrero, Controller

Anticipated Date of Completion:

March 26, 2021
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Plan of Corrective Action
Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
September 30, 2020

Finding No.: 2020-004
Federal Agency: U.S. Departrent of Housing and Urban Renewal
CFDA Progran: 14.871/14.879 Housing Voucher Cluster
Area: Reporting
Questioned Costs: $0
Condition:

GHURA did not submit the required HUD 60002 report.

Corrective Action Stated and Taken:

GHURA sought guidance with U.S. HUD Section 3 Division to verify if HUD Form 60002 is required when
reserve funds were used versus for construction or renovation activity during the fiscal year for the Housing Choice

Voucher Program. However, HUD Section 3 did not provide a response to GHURA’s question,

GHURA Management will seek further guidance with its Field Office Representatives to ensure compliance efforts
are acceptable. ‘

Responsible Party:
Sonny Perez, Architectural & Engineering Manager

Anticipated Date of Completion;

On-going.
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

Plan of Corrective Action
Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
September 30, 2020

Finding No.: 2020-005
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Renewal
CFDA Program: 14,872 Public Housing Capital Fund
Federal Award No.: GQ8PO01501-18
Area; Procurement and Suspension and Debarment
Questioned Costs: $0
Condition:

For one (or 17%) of 6 transactions tested, aggregating $331,314 of $1,877,176 in total non-payroll Program
expenditures with contractors, the small purchase procurement method was used in June 2019 to procure a
construction contract in excess of $50,000, as follows:

Project Document 1D Date Vendor No, Amount Tested  Contract Amount
AMP 2 2020-12-504 01/02/2020  CO00001791 $27,009 $93.316

Corrective Action Stated and Taken:

GHURA aligned its Procurement Policy with federal and local laws and regulations governing small purchase
procurement which reflected the Authority’s intent to comply with the existing maximum limits for such purchases
and all purchases. Policy amendment was adopted by the GHURA Board of Commissioners to increase the small
purchase limit to the legal limit of $100,000. GHURA procurement management had been adhering to the
Authority’s approved policy since approval of BOC Resolution No. FY2020-21, Resolution Amending the
Procurement Policy for the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority, during the BOC Meeting dated August
28,2020, Therefore, GHURA disagrees with this finding.

Responsible Party:

Greta Balmeo, Buyer Supervisor 11

Anticipated Date of Completion:

Completed on August 28, 2020
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GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Audit Finding #

2019-001 In October 25, and November 9, 2020, the Accountant II and Deputy
Controller were hired, respectively. The SEFA will be reconciled
going forward,

2019-002 Corrective action has been taken. Program income has been
recorded in HHUD’s Integrated Disbursement and Information
System (IDIS) and is being monitored on a quarterly basis.
GHURA receives technical assistance from HUD to improve its
planning for the use of program income.

2019-003 Corrective action has been taken. The Division has since adopted

several new processes to the rent reasonableness requirements:

1. Rent reasonableness testing is conducted for every client, new

or renewed.

2. New forms were created to document the process of

determining rent reasonableness. The forms were adapted

and adopted from standards utilized by Section 8.

a. Data Collection
i. Contract Rent Request and Certification of
Rent Charges form
1. Landlords are sent the RRC form to
input information on the proposed
unit,
2. The form is signed by the landlord and
returned to GHURA where it is evaluated
by trained staff with access to data on
current non-subsidized rental units island
wide.
b. Data Analysis
i. Reasonable Rent Certification form

1. A trained staff member conducts the
comparable analysis of the unit to a
database maintained by Section 8. The
comparable data is based on
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2019-004

2019-005

2019-006

2017-01

unsubsidized units. A
recommendation is made based on
this analysis and signed by the staflf
member,

2. The completed analysis and
subsequent recommendation are
submitted for review and concurrence
with a supervisor level staff
member. Upon concurrence, the
determination is acknowledged and
signed.

This information is provided to the Program Manager who then engages the
landlord to notify them of their options to accept or reject the findings of
the analysis. Upon acceptance, the contract process will continue. Upon
rejection, the landlord will be notified of the maximum rent supportable for
the proposed unit to determine if they wish to reconsider and bring their
rent in line with the program limits. GHURA receives technical assistance
from HUD to improve its compliance with program rules and regulations.

Corrective action has been taken on Condition 1 and 2. For condition 3, Unit
23MAOQ - Adult household members did not complete the required community
service hours, In lieu of the Community Service Timesheet, a "Community
Service Work Out Agreement” was signed by the Adult Household Members
committing to complete required CS hours upon lifting of the HUD Covid-19
Community Service Waiver and Tabbed in Flap 4.

Corrective action has been taken during the submission of the FY 2019 Audited
Financial Data Schedule on the first condition. For the second condition,
GHURA sought guidance with U.S. HUD Section 3 Division to verify if HUD
Form 60002 is required when there is no activity during the fiscal year for the
Housing Choice Voucher Program. However, HUD Section 3 did not provide
a response to GHURA'’s question.

Corrective action has been taken. GHURA’s Policy has been amended by
BOC Resolution No. FY2020-21 on August 28, 2020,

This finding is unresolved. The Capital Fund Grant reconciliations are
ongoing.
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